Notice of Public Meeting

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Navajo County
Community College District Governing Board (Board) and to the general public that the Board
will hold a regular District Governing Board Meeting open to the public on February 15, 2011,
beginning at 11:00 a.m. Further notice is given that the Board will hold a Study Session open to
the public beginning at 9:00 a.m. All sessions will be held at the Northland Pioneer College
Painted Desert Campus, Tiponi Community Center meeting room, located at 2251 E. Navajo
Blvd., Holbrook, Arizona.

The public is invited to check on addenda that may be posted up to 24 hours prior to the meetings.
Copies of the meeting agenda may be obtained through the Office of the President, Northland
Pioneer College, Painted Desert Campus, 2251 E. Navajo Blvd., Holbrook, AZ, telephone (928)
524-7418 or (800) 266-7845 Ext. 7418, at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. If any
disabled person needs any type of accommodation, please notify Russell Dickerson at the above
address or telephone number at least 24 hours prior to the scheduled time.

The Board may vote to hold an executive session for the purpose of obtaining legal advice from
the District’s attorney on any matter listed on the agenda pursuant to A.R.S. 838-431.03 (A)(3).
Should the District’s attorney not be present in person, notice is further given that the attorney
may appear by speakerphone.

I, _ Russell Dickerson , certify that this notice of public meeting, prepared pursuant to A.R.S.
§ 38-431.02, was posted on the _14th day of February at _9:00 a.m.

Russell Dickerson, Recording Secretary to the Board
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Governing Board Study Session Agenda’

Painted Desert Campus Tiponi Community Center
2251 East Navajo Boulevard, Holbrook, Arizona

Date: February 15, 2011

Time: 9:00 am.

Iltem Description

o g AWM

© N

Community College Strategic Plan (T3) (First Read)
2011-2012 Tuition and Fees Schedule (T4) (First Read)
Update on Revision to Procedure 2720 (T5) (Infor mational)
Request to Approve Procedure 2755 External I nvestigators (T6) ------- (Action)
Request to Accept the 2009-10 Single Audit Reporting Package (T7) -- (Action)
Request to Approve M ember ship in the Apache/Navajo Counties Regional

Sustainability Consortium (T8) (Action)
Request to ApproveTitle 11 Evaluation Contract (T9) ------------------- (Action)
Request to Approve 2011-2012 Academic Calendar (T10) ---------------- (Action)
Request to Approve Program Deletionsand M odifications (T11) ------- (Action)

Resour ce

President Swarthout
Vice President Hatch
Vice President Hatch
President Swarthout
Vice President Hatch
President Swarthout

Director Bishop
Vice President Vest
Vice President Vest

! The District Governing Board may consider any item on this agenda in any order and at any time during the meeting.




Governing Board M eeting Agenda®

Painted Desert Campus Tiponi Community Center
2251 East Navajo Boulevard, Holbrook, Arizona

Date: February 15, 2011

Time: 11:00 am.

Iltem Description

1.

2.
3.
4

10.
11.
12.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

Adoption of the Agenda (T1)

Call for Public Comment

(Action)

Reports

COEWPOMUO®>

m

A. Oath of Office and Seating of District 2 Board M ember

onsent Agenda
January 18, 2011 Study Session Minutes (T2)

January 18, 2011 Regular Board M eeting Minutes (T2)
January 20, 2011 Teleconference M eeting Minutes (T2)

Financial Position (T12)
NPC CASO

NPC Faculty Association

NPC Student Gover nment Association

NPC Foundation

(Action)

2009-2010 Dual Enrollment Intergover nmental Agreement Between the
Navajo County Community College District and Hopi Junior/Senior High

Schooal, Inc.

2010-2011 Dual Enrollment Intergover nmental Agreement Between the
Navajo County Community College District and Chinle Unified School

District No. 24 and Window Rock Unified School District No. 8
Old Business

New Business
Request to Approve Procedure 2755 External Investigators (T6) --- (Action)
Request to Accept the 2009-10 Single Audit Reporting Package (T7) (Action)
Request to Approve M ember ship in the Apache/Navajo Counties Regional

C. Human Resour ces Update (T 13)
President’s Report
Board Report/Summary of Current Events
Announcement of Next Regular M eeting
Adjournment

mo owp

Sustainability Consortium (T8)
Request to Approve Title 111 Evaluation Contract (T9)

Request to Approve 2011-2012 Academic Calendar (T10) ------------
Standing Business
A. Request to Approve Program Deletionsand M odifications (T11) --- (Action)
B. Strategic Planning and Accreditation Steering Committee Update --

(Action)

(Action)
(Action)
(Action)

March

15, 2011
(Action)

Resour ce

Chairman Jeffers
Chairman Jeffers
Chairman Jeffers

Vice President Hatch
Ina Sommers

Gary Mack

Jake Hinton

Lance Chugg
Chairman Jeffers

Navajo County School
Superintendent

President Swarthout
Vice President Hatch
President Swarthout

Director Bishop
Vice President Vest

Vice President Vest
Director Bishop
Peggy Belknap
President Swarthout
Board Members
Chairman Jeffers
Chairman Jeffers

! The District Governi ng Board may consider any item on this agendain any order and at any time during the meeting. The District
Governing Board may take action to approve, or may take other action, regarding all items of New Business, Old Business, Standing
Business, or the President’ s Report.




Navajo County Community College District

Governing Board Study Session Minutes
January 18, 2011
2251 East Navgjo Boulevard, Holbrook, Arizona, 86025

Governing Board M embers Present: Bill Jeffers, Ginny Handorf and E.L. Parsons.

Staff Present: President, Jeanne Swarthout; Vice President, Blaine Hatch; Vice President, Mark Vest; Director, Eric Bishop;
Recording Secretary to the Board, Russell Dickerson.

Reports:

1.

Study Session Agenda Item 1.: Shared Governance (I nfor mational) — President Swarthout

Dr. Swarthout presented a new shared governance structure as outlined in college procedure 2125 and explained that
the updated procedure provides for a more streamlined committee structure. Dr. Swarthout added that the new
governance model increases student, staff and faculty involvement, provides for greater transparency and
accountability and more clearly defines communication pathways between shared governance entities. Dr.
Swarthout noted that the new governance structure also includes a definition and purpose of shared governance to
provide greater understanding of what shared governance meansto the institution. Dr. Swarthout explained that the
shared governance procedure was disseminated to the faculty and staff organizations and feedback was incorporated
into several successive revisions. Responding to a question from Chairman Jeffers, Dr. Swarthout stated that there
is strong college-wide consensus that the new shared governance procedure is an improvement and that it will be
implemented in fall 2011.

Study Session Agenda Item 2.: Distance Education Guidelines (Informational) — Vice President Vest

Mr. Vest presented the latest iteration of the college' s Distance Education Guidelines and explained that the
document recognizes the emergence of technologies that go beyond the audio, video and I nternet based coursework
the college has implemented for years. Mr. Vest explained that the guidelines include language and structures for
developing web conferencing classes and the creation of hybrid class environments through the introduction of
technology into stand alone classes. Mr. Vest noted that the guidelines spell out how the college’ s Faculty in
Educational Technology will provide technical quality control for distance education courses through the use of a
nationally recognized quality rubric. Mr. Vest added that an extensive quality review of existing courses will occur
for new and existing distance education courses.

Study Session Agenda Item 3.: Proposed Revision to Procedure 2720 (Informational) — Vice President Hatch
Mr. Hatch reported that the revised procedure expands upon the reduction in force procedure to include adjustments
in work hours and compensation, as well as furloughs, thereby providing increased flexibility to the college in the
face of ongoing State funding concerns and the general economic outlook. Mr. Hatch added that the revised
procedure allows the college to make employment term adjustments mid-contract in order to address circumstances
not controlled by the college. Mr. Hatch explained that should adjustments to terms of employment become
necessary, staff will present arecommendation and information to the Board. Mr. Hatch explained that should the
Board approve the staff recommendation, changes to terms of employment would take place no sooner than 90 days
for an existing contract. Dr. Swarthout added that the 90 day timeframe is of sufficient length so asto allow the
affected employee to finish out a semester or see a program to completion prior to changes to employment status.
Responding to the concerns of Mr. Parsons, Mr. Hatch explained that through good financial planning and frugality,
the college currently has reserves that would allow the college to adjust to virtually any circumstances and clarified
that the 90 day timeframe is not a severance, rather a 90 notice requiring Board approval prior to implementation.
Chairman Jeffers noted that the 90 day timeframe aligns well with the length of a semester. Dr. Swarthout explained
that proposed revisions to procedure have been reviewed by the college attorney and will go out to the college today
for aperiod of review and comment.
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Study Session Agenda Item 4.: Proposed Revision to Employee Contracts (Informational) — Vice President
Hatch

Mr. Hatch presented the revised employee contracts which reference Procedure 2720 and includes language that
allows the college to adjust base salaries for all types of employees due to changed circumstances. Mr. Hatch
explained that the new contracts come in three versions, faculty, staff and administrators. Mr. Hatch explained that
staff members are those employees that are neither faculty nor administrators and added that administrators serve at
the pleasure of the college president without entitlement or expectation of a continued contract. Responding to a
question to Chairman Jeffers, Dr. Swarthout confirmed that in most cases, a reduction of salary would be the
primary course of action as opposed to areduction in force. Dr. Swarthout added that the new contracts are simpler,
more easily understood and that NPC is the last Arizona community college to incorporate this type of language into
employee contacts. Board members agreed that the college needs to be in position to take action in afinancial worst
case scenario. Dr. Swarthout reported that the new contracts will be sent out to the college for atwo week period of
review and comment and that they will be brought back to the Board by April for formal approval. Mr. Parsons
asked staff members to research contract language from other colleges with regard to the 90 day timeframe for
employee notification noting that the State tends to make adjustments to funding in January or February which
would result in the 90 day timeframe coinciding with the end of the fiscal year. Mr. Hatch reiterated that due to
sound financial management, the college has the ability to manage necessary adjustments for the 90 day period
without adverse effect to the college. Mr. Parsons suggested that procedure language should read “may give 90 days
notice” which would give the college the flexibility to make adjustmentsin the face of catastrophic financial
circumstances.

Agenda ltem 7.A.: Request to Approve Open Pathway for Accreditation — President Swarthout and Director
Bishop

Dr. Swarthout presented the Strategic Planning and Accreditation Steering Committee (SPASC) recommendation to
approve the Open Pathway for accreditation from the Higher Learning Commission (HLC). Dr. Swarthout
explained that NPC isin the first group of ingtitutions that must choose a pathway due to the timing of the last
accreditation visit. Dr. Swarthout reported that SPASC and the college have looked carefully at the two pathway
options and even invited Dr. Lynn Priddy of the HLC to the spring 2011 convocation to present more information on
the Open Pathway. Responding to a Board question, Dr. Swarthout explained that NPC is scheduled to enter a new
accreditation pathway in 2012-2013 as the 10 year model is going away. Responding to a question from Chairman
Jeffers, Mr. Bishop explained that the college could be ready for the AQIP pathway in five or six years but currently,
the AQIP requirements and formalized processes are outside of the scope of what the college can accomplish. Dr.
Swarthout added that the college’ s Institutional Research function is not yet ready to work under the AQIP model.
Dr. Swarthout explained that Open Pathway gives the college the liberty to choose projects that will improve the
institution.

Agenda Item 7.B.: Request to Approve Budget Development Calendar — Vice President Hatch

Mr. Hatch presented the staff recommendation to approve the proposed 2011-2012 Budget Development Calendar
and reported that beyond the updating of dates for 2011, not much has changed from the previous year calendar
sequences. Mr. Hatch reported that budget estimates are being generated and departmental budget information is
being collected. Mr. Hatch summarized the calendar which included the following: initia review of a proposed
tuition and fee schedule in February with final adoption scheduled for March; presentation of the preliminary budget
analysis and wage and salary schedulesin March; review of the proposed budget and salary schedulesin April with
final budget adoption scheduled for May2011following budget and truth in taxation hearings. Responding to a
Board question, Mr. Hatch acknowledged that the college does not always have al financia information from
external entities prior to the beginning of the budget adoption process and in the past has received adjustments to
financial information from State and County entities after the budget process has begun. Mr. Hatch recommended
that the college continue to formulate a budget based upon the best information available, noting that a budget can,
at any time, be adjusted downward following adoption.

Mr. Hatch reported a proposed budget has been unveiled by the Governor’s Office. With regard to NPC, Mr. Hatch
reported that the Governor’s budget calls for a cut to State operating aid of about $2 million, or 47%, and a small
reduction to equalization funding. Mr. Hatch reported that over the last decade, the college has become more reliant
on State equalization funding as operating aid has continued to be reduced. Mr. Hatch noted that the reference in the
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narrative section to 2007 is beneficial asit captures the height of State funding of community colleges. Mr. Hatch
added that State assertion that community college funding is being cut by only 6% is based upon outdated estimates
by college chief financial officers with regard to property tax and tuition revenues. Mr. Hatch added that Navajo
County tax assessments are estimated to be down by about 3% resulting in a tax levy amount, assuming the
maximum 2% increase, decrease of about $150,000 for the college. Mr. Hatch anticipates that all college revenue
amounts will fall well short of the figures contained in the budget proposal. Mr. Hatch reported that currently,
tuition and fee revenues are lagging behind budget expectations with about $400,000 collected for the first half of
January 2011. Mr. Hatch reported that NPC is the only community college currently experiencing an enrollment
decline and added that historically, NPC, due to its demographics, tends to be aleading indicator of enrollment for
the state. Mr. Hatch reported that overall, Arizona community colleges will see atwo-thirds reduction,
approximately $73 million, in operating aid as well as a small reduction to equalization aid.

Agenda ltem 7.C.: Request to Approve Acceptance of Nursing Grant — Vice President Vest

Mr. Vest presented the staff recommendation to approve acceptance of a $30,000 direct grant to the college to
provide scholarships to Nursing students. Mr. Vest reported that the college has administered the HRSA grant
several timesin the past, most recently in 2009. Mr. Vest reported that historically, availability of the grant funds
has positively affected Nursing program completion as well as performance on Nursing examinations. Mr. Vest
reported that scholarship funds are based upon a set of established objective criteria.

Agenda Item 7.D.: Request to Approve Intergovernmental Agreement with Navajo County — Director Bishop
Mr. Bishop presented the staff recommendation to approve a network sharing agreement between Navajo County
and NPC that will allow both taxpayer supported entities to work together to save money. Mr. Bishop reported that
there are several current Navajo County projects that could utilize the college’ s expanded network resources for
substantial cost savings and added that he anticipates that future college projects will realize cost savings through the
network sharing relationship. Mr. Bishop reported that the agreement was drafted by the college attorney and that
there is no detriment or negative financial impact to the college.

Agenda Item 7.E.: Request to Approve Land L ease with the White M ountain Apache Tribe— Director Bishop
Mr. Bishop reported that the college had aland lease that lapsed in 2009 and the college has since continued the
relationship on a month to month basis. Mr. Bishop explained that the college wanted to have a current land lease in
place prior to making improvements at McKay's Peak and Whiteriver Point. Mr. Bishop reported that the new lease
agreement starts at arate of $7,200 per year with 2.5% increases each year for an initial term of seven years, with an
option to extend for an additional 5 years.

Agenda ltem 7.E.: Request to Grant Sewer Easement — Vice President Hatch

Mr. Hatch explained that the Town of Snowflake has approved the extension of a sewer line north of the Silver
Creek Campus running along the ADOT right of way which needsto join up with a manhole that isinside the
campus property, just south of an entrance to the parking lot. Mr. Hatch explained that instead of having to cut
through the entryway, the line can be run into an existing sewer line that is already below the entryway. Mr. Hatch
reported that developer Kelly Willis is amenable to the installation of a backflow prevention device that would
prevent sewer problems at the Learning Center building. Mr. Hatch recommended that the Board approve a sewer
easement with the Town of Snowflake and that Dr. Swarthout be authorized to sign the document. Snowflake Town
Manager Paul Watson and engineer Doug Brimhall addressed Board member concerns over a 90 degree turn in the
proposed sewer line and Mr. Willis made assurances that college landscaping would be returned to its current state
upon completion of the sewer line work.

Study session ended at 11:00 a.m.
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Respectfully submitted,

Russell Dickerson
Recording Secretary to the Board

Bill Jeffers
Chairman

Ginny Handorf
Secretary to the Board

Navajo Community College District Governing Board Study Session —01/18/10 — Page 4 of 4




Navajo County Community College District

Governing Board Meeting Minutes
January 18, 2011 —11:00 am.
2251 East Navgjo Boulevard, Holbrook, Arizona, 86025

Governing Board Member Present: Bill Jeffers, Ginny Handorf and E.L. Parsons.

Staff Present: President, Jeanne Swarthout; Vice President, Blaine Hatch; Vice President, Mark Vest;
Information Services Director, Eric Bishop; Recording Secretary to the Board, Russell Dickerson.

OthersPresent: Ann Hess, Rickey Jackson, David Roberts, Peggy Belknap, Maderia Ellison, John Bremer,
Lauren Sedillo, Matt Weber, Beaulah Bob-Pennypacker, Paul Watson, Kelly Willis, Doug Brimhall and Ina
Sommers.

Agenda Item 1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Chairman Jeffers called the meeting to order at 11:05 am. Ms. Handorf led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Agendaltem 2: Adoption of Agenda

Mr. Parsons moved to adopt the agenda as presented with the provision that the Board move agendaitem 7.F,
Request to Grant Sewer Easement, to the top of the agenda. Ms. Handorf seconded the motion. The vote was
unanimous in the affirmative.

Agendaltem 3: Call for Public Comment
None.

Agendaltem 7: New Business (See Agenda Item 2: Adoption of Agenda)

7.F. — Request to Grant Sewer Easement — Vice President Hatch

Mr. Hatch presented the staff recommendation for approval of a sewer easement to the Town of Snowflake as
discussed in study session. Mr. Hatch summarized earlier discussion noting that a backflow prevention device
would be ingtalled, the Town of Snowflake will be responsible for sewer line maintenance and that Dr. Swarthout
will be authorized to sign sewer easement documentation. Town of Snowflake and developer representatives
answered specific questions with regard to college property. Ms. Handorf moved that NPC grant the sewer
easement to the Town of Snowflake as presented and discussed. Mr. Parsons seconded the motion. The vote was
unanimous in the affirmative.

Agenda Item 4: Reports
4.A. — Financial Position —Vice President Hatch

Mr. Hatch reported that through the end of November 2010, the primary property levy isjust over 50% collected
in line with expected collection trends and that April 2011 is expected to be the next month of substantial
collections. Mr. Hatch reported that the college has received 50% of State aid and that the college expects to be
fully funded and has requested a third quarter allocation. Mr. Hatch reported that tuition and fee collection
through November are at 41% and continue to fall below expected levels. Mr. Hatch reported that investment
earnings are on target, as are all other genera fund areas. Mr. Hatch reported that through November, general
fund revenues are at 52% with 42% of the budget period expired and that expenditures are at 30%. Mr. Hatch
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reported that unrestricted plant fund revenues are the result of transfers from the genera fund and fund
expenditures remain light as the college continues to be cautious with regard to capital expenditures. Mr. Hatch
reported that restricted, auxiliary and agency fund revenues are greater than expenditures and through November
net cash for all activitiestotals approximately $7.1 million.

4.B. — NPC CASO — Ina Sommers

Ina Sommers, CASO President, reported that CASO held an annual planning meeting following the January
convocation, CASO members are looking forward to the April NPC picnic and CASO members will once again
hold a non-foods drive to benefit organizations in NPC communities.

4.C. — NPC Faculty Association — Gary Mack

Gary Mack, NPC Faculty Association President, reported that Sandy Manor, NPC Disability Resource and Access
Coordinator, will be invited to attend the next Faculty Association meeting to discuss college policy and
procedures regarding student mental health problems as faculty members would like information following the
shootings in Tucson, Arizona. Mr. Mack reported that the Faculty Association held a successful retreat on
December 10, 2010 and discussion centered around the impact of technology on classrooms. Mr. Mack reported
that work continues on a Faculty Senate congtitution.

4.D. — NPC Sudent Government Association — Jake Hinton

Mr. Hinton reported that the Second Annual Coed Basketball Tournament will take place on February 12" and
13" at Holbrook High School. Mr. Hinton reported that auditions for the Third Annual NPC Talent Show will
take place on February 18, 19, 25 and 26 at the Little Colorado Campusin Winslow. Mr. Hinton reported that
SGA will hold special electionsto fill senator positions at the White Mountain and Painted Desert Campuses and
the Kayenta Center.

4.E. — NPC Foundation —Lance Chugg
No report.

Agenda ltem 5: Consent Agenda
Ms. Handorf moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Mr. Parsons seconded the motion. The vote was
unanimous in the affirmative

Consent Agenda (Action):

A. November 16, 2010 Study Session Minutes

B. November 16, 2010 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

C. 2009-2010 Dual Enrollment Intergovernmental Agreement Between the Navagjo County Community College
District and Blue Ridge USD No. 32

D. 2010-2011 Dual Enrollment Intergovernmental Agreement Between the Navagjo County Community College
District and Hopi Junior/Senior High Schoal, Inc.

Agenda Item 6: Old Business
None.
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Agendaltem 7: New Business

7.A. —Request to Approve Open Pathway for Accreditation — President Swarthout and Director Bishop
Dr. Swarthout presented the staff request to approve arecommendation for the college to move to the Open
Pathway for Higher Learning Accreditation as discussed in study session. Ms. Handorf moved to approve
movement to the Open Pathway accreditation pathway. Mr. Parsons seconded the motion. The vote was
unanimous in the affirmative.

7.B. —Request to Approve 2011-2012 Budget Development Calendar — Vice President Hatch

Mr. Hatch presented the staff request to approve the 2011-2012 budget devel opment calendar that was reviewed
and discussed in study session. Mr. Hatch noted that the proposed calendar is consistent with what the college has
donein the past. Mr. Parsons moved to approve the 2011-2012 budget devel opment calendar as presented. Ms.
Handorf seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous in the affirmative.

7.C. —Request to Approve Acceptance of Nursing Grant — Vice President Vest

Mr. Vest presented the staff request to approve acceptance of afederal Health Resources and Service
Administration (HRSA) Nursing scholarship grant in the amount of $30,000 as discussed in study session. Mr.
Vest noted that the college has successfully administered the HRSA grant in the past. Mr. Vest notified Board
members that the college did not receive notification of the award before half the grant period expired and added
that he does not anticipate any problems awarding the money to nursing students by the grant completion date of
June 30, 2011. Mr. Parsons moved to approve acceptance of the HRSA Nursing scholarship grant in the amount
of $30,000 as presented. Ms. Handorf seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous in the affirmative.

7.D. —Request to Approve IGA with Navajo County — Director Bishop

Mr. Bishop presented the staff request to approve the network resources sharing agreement between Navagjo
County and the college district as discussed in study session. Mr. Bishop explained that the agreement will allow
both tax supported entities to collaborate on networking projects that will result in future cost savings. Mr.
Bishop noted that the agreement will create no negative impact on the college and will produce immediate
benefits for the County and future benefits for the college. Ms. Handorf moved to approve the intergovernmental
agreement with Navajo County as presented. Chairman Jeffers seconded the motion. The motion was approved
by a majority affirmative vote and a single abstention by Mr. Parsons.

7.E. —Request to Approve Land Lease with the White Mountain Apache Tribe — Director Bishop

Mr. Bishop presented the staff request to approve aland lease with the White Mountain Apache Tribe for network
facilitieslocated at McKay's Peak and Whiteriver Point as discussed in study session. Mr. Bishop explained that
the college has operated under a month to month arrangement with the Tribe as the most recent lease expired in
2009. Mr. Bishop added that the coll ege needs to have a lease agreement in place that will cover additional land
required for network improvements. Mr. Bishop reported that the lease rate starts at $7,200 for the first year with
standard 2% yearly increases for aterm of 7 years with an option extend for an additional 5 years. Mr. Bishop
added that the locations are necessary for operations at the Whiteriver Center. Mr. Parsons moved to approve the
land lease with the White Mountain Apache Tribe as presented and discussed. Ms. Handorf seconded the motion.
The vote was unanimous in the affirmative.

7.F. — Request to Grant Sewer Easement — Vice President Hatch
Item moved to the top of the agenda. (See Agenda Item 2: Adoption of Agenda)
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Agenda ltem 8: Standing Business

8.A.

— Strategic Planning and Accreditation Seering Committee (SPASC) Report — Director Bishop

Eric Bishop, SPASC Co-Chair, reported that in December, SPASC made a recommendation to President
Swarthout to move to the Open Pathway for Higher Learning Commission accreditation. Mr. Bishop reported
that SPASC will meet on February 4, 2011 to begin revising the college strategic plan which will be sent out this
year for college-wide comment. Mr. Bishop reported that the webcast of Dr. Lynn Priddy’ s Open Pathway
presentation at the January convocation was a success and was attended virtually by approximately 100-120
people from Coconino, Arizona Western, Cochise and Mohave Community Colleges.

8.B. — Human Resources Update — Peggy Belknap

Peggy Belknap presented the Human Resources update for January and provided updated numbers of applicants
for currently open positions. Ms. Belknap introduced two new employees, Mr. John Bremer, Controller and Ms.
Lauren Sedillo, Genera Ledger Account, to Board members. Ms. Belknap announced that Ms. Nancy Williams
assumed therole of Interim Dean of Nursing and Allied Health and will serve in that capacity through June 2011.

Agenda ltem 9: President’s Report — President Swarthout

Dr. Swarthout reported that she is working with the Navajo County Schools Superintendent on an appointment for
the District 2 seat vacated by Mr. A.T. Sinquah in December. Dr. Swarthout and Board members agreed to hold a
special teleconference Board meeting at 8:00 am. on Thursday, January, 20, 2011 for the purpose of electing
Board officersfor 2011. Dr. Swarthout reported that ACCPC will meet on Wednesday and Thursday and the
group is currently working to get an appointment to meet with the Governor. Regarding the impact of budget cuts
to community colleges, Dr. Swarthout explained that the Governor’s proposed budget cuts university funding by
approximately 10% and community colleges by approximately 50%. Dr. Swarthout noted that there islarge
inequity in state funding per student with universities receiving about $4,950 per student while community
colleges receive only $750 per student. Dr. Swarthout added that ACCPC is close to completing a community
college strategic planning document. Dr. Swarthout announced that the spring NPC picnic will take place on
Friday, April 20, 2011 in Snowflake.

Agenda Item 10: Board Report/Summary of Current Events

Ms. Handorf reported that AADGB has a hew representative from Maricopa Community Colleges and that the
group isworking on a position statement that outlines AADGB constituents, goals and means of increasing
community college affordability and accessibility.

Agenda Item 11: Announcement of Next Regular M eeting: Tuesday, February 15, 2011.
Agenda ltem 12: Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned upon a motion by Mr. Parsons, a second by Ms. Handorf and a unanimous
affirmative vote.
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Respectfully submitted,

Russell Dickerson
Recording Secretary to the Board

Bill Jeffers
Chairman

Ginny Handorf
Secretary to the Board
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Navajo County Community College District

Governing Board Teleconference Meeting Minutes
January 20, 2011 — 8:00 am.
1-800-266-7845, extension 7479

Governing Board Member Present: Bill Jeffers, E.L. Parsons and Daniel Peaches.

Staff Present: President, Jeanne Swarthout; Vice President, Blaine Hatch; Vice President, Mark Vest;
Information Services Director, Eric Bishop; Recording Secretary to the Board, Russell Dickerson.

Other s Present: Everett Robinson.

Agendaltem 1: Call to Order
Chairman Jeffers called the meeting to order at 8:00 am.

Agenda ltem 2: Adoption of Agenda
Mr. Peaches moved to adopt the agenda as presented. Mr. Peaches seconded the motion. The vote was
unanimousin the affirmative.

Agenda Item 3: Call for Public Comment
None.

Agenda ltem 4: New Business

4.A. — Election of Board Officersfor 2011 — Chairman Jeffers

Chairman Jeffers opened the floor for nominations for the position of Board Chairman for 2011. Mr. Peaches
nominated Mr. Jeffers as 2011 Chairman. Mr. Parsons seconded the nomination. Chairman Jeffers accepted the
nomination and recommended that Board members consider another candidate next year. Mr. Jeffers was eected
2011 Board Chairman by a unanimous affirmative vote. Chairman Jeffers opened the floor for nominations for
the position of Secretary for 2011. Mr. Parsons nominated Ms. Handorf for the position of Secretary for 2011.
Mr. Peaches seconded the nomination. Ms. Handorf was elected 2011 Board Secretary by a unanimous
affirmative vote. Chairman declared the 2011 Board elections closed.

Agenda ltem 11: Announcement of Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, February 15, 2011.
Agenda Item 12: Adjour nment

The teleconference meeting was adjourned upon a motion by Mr. Parsons, a second by Mr. Peaches, and a
unanimous affirmative vote.
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Respectfully submitted,

Russell Dickerson
Recording Secretary to the Board

Bill Jeffers
Chairman

Ginny Handorf
Secretary to the Board
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Study Session
Agenda Item #1.
(First Read)
February 15, 2011

Community College Strategic Plan

Summary:
Over the past five months, the Arizona Community College Presidents Council has

worked diligently on drafting a long-term strategic plan for the entire 10 community
collegedistrictsin Arizona. The Community College Strategic Plan is still in draft form,
subject to final review in light of the recent Governor’s budget proposal. NPC feels that
many elements of the plan should be adopted by our institution with the support of the
District Governing Board. Thus, the executive team brings the draft plan to the DGB for
afirst read, subject to final ACCPC approval.

It isfurther proposed that the Community College Strategic Plan be incorporated, to the
degree possible, into the NPC Strategic Plan, asthere are shared goals and strategies.
The community college districts' staff has worked hard to select data points that measure
our success in moving our goals forward. Further, staff has aligned, across the state,
shared definitions for these metric data points, ensuring consistent performance metrics.
These performance metrics respond to external stakeholder needs for information
regarding the state of community college quality and performance as well as allow the
community colleges to line up data points with the universities and the number of
Initiatives on higher education within Arizona.




UOoISIABpIMa)}e)S/NnpaedooLiew mmm
[IoUNOY ,sjudpIsald 9ba||oH AJlunwwion) erUOZLIY

SIA J1931VYlS
d31-ONO'1
ALINNNINOD VNOZINV




‘AJISI9AIUN B 0)
Jajsuel)} 1o/pue ‘@)edi}iluad 10 aaibap e 939|dwod ‘sjeob Buiuieay pue
uonesnpa Alepuodsasisod 119y} aAdIyse oym sueuozuy jo Jaqunu
9y} aseausoul Apueosyiubis 03 siauped Ajunwwod pue ‘ssauisnq
‘uoljeanpa Yjim ajeaoqe]|jod 0} ¥99s saba|joo AJlunwiwod s .euozily

00 NOISIA ¥NO




S1N31NOD

20Uu8||90Xx] J0) salbaiensg

82 [e0S uons|dwo) Ino Buinsiyoy
12 ssalboud Jo siojeaipu| Aoy
Gz punoibyoeg :0aiy] |eo9)
ve dI4SNVYL ANV NOILITdINOD HALVIYD ‘33HHL VOO
(o 90Ud||90x] Jo} salbaiens
02 |[BOS) UORUB}SY JNO BuinsIyoy
6l ssalboud Jo siojeaipu| Aoy
Ll punoibyoeg :om| |05
91 NOILN3L3d dIAOUdNI :OML VOO
Gl 90Ud||90Xx3 Jo} salbaiens
2l |[eOS) $S822Y INO BulnaIyoy
Ll ssalboud Jo siojeaipu| Aoy
6 punoibyoeg :auQ |09

8 ONINIVYL ANV NOILYONA3d Ol SS30IJV Avordd :3INO 1v09DO

L NV1d 3H1 40 SOI413IN ANV STTVOO

ue|d Sy} 1984V ||IM S82104 [eulajx]
ainjn4 8y} IO} UOISIA
uoIsIA JO aouelodw| / UOISSIN

NVd JI1931VdlS 3HL Ol NOILONAOX™LNI

N MW O



ue|d oi1baje

NOILONAO-F5\|



SSIIUNWWOD BUOZLN
ul ay1| Jo Afenb ay) eAoidwi pue uiejuleW |IM SJUBAS pue swelBoid Alunwwod o) sseooe Buipinoid

SJOXJOM PI||INS puE pPajeoNnpa JO Slaquinu Jayealb wodj Jyauaq [[IM 92J0PJOM S BUOZIN
pajeonpa aWo09aq aJoW Se Jjaua(q ||IM ‘9)eolila9 10 9albap e yum asoy) 1snl Jou ‘SueuoziN |V
Atadsoud o1wouooss sajealb Aofus |Im sueuozily pajeonp

LNVL1¥OdII OS SI NOISIA SIHL AHM

"9J1] 40 Ajilenb [jeJano pue ‘@olopiom ‘Alouodd s euozily
JO JuBwWIBNaQ 8y} 0} [BllUSSSS aJe salbajelis pateys pue sjeob uowwod jeyy uoiubodal ul ‘UoISIA 0202
pajn ‘ueld aibajens wuel-buo|] gooz sjusbay Jo pieog Buoziy 8yl Ul INo 18s sjeob ay) JO [BloASS 0)
Apoaaip sdew osje ueld siy] "uonepuno euiwnT ayl Aq pepunj 19afoid (seaibaq pue uoneosnpg JaybiH
0] SS920y) QVJHY Bumen apmalels ayy Buipnjoul ‘euozily ul Buluie) pue uoneanpa Alepuooasisod
pue Alepuooes ubije pue anoidwi 03 suoys Bulobuo 03 seinNquIUOd pue uo spjing yloq ueid siyj|

"Bale Yoea Ul 90ua|@oxa Buinaiyoe 1oy saAleniul pue saibajels
se ||om se ‘s|jeob asay) pisemo} ssaiboid apimalels Jo siojedlpul Aay ale eale yoea UIYNIAA “Jdjsuel]
pue uone|dwo) Jajeals) pue ‘uonualdy pasosdw ‘Buiuies] pue uoeonpg AIBpuodas}SOd 0} SS90y
peo.g :sjeob |eonuo 9aiy) punose paziuebio si ueid sy "sueuoziy J0) 8yl JO Ajjenb pue ajels ino
Jo yibuans o1wouoos ay) anoidwi 0} s8b9)j00 Ajunwwod s,8)e]S 8y} 0} YIoMaWwel) e Se UOISIA d16ajel)s
wua)-buo|] apmalels siyy spuasald (DdDIVY) |1ouno) sjuspisald ab9)j0) Ajlunwwo) euozuy ayl

uona|dwod ayeoyusd/eaibap pue ‘Jajsuel) ‘Juswuielie [eob arosdwi Ajuesiubis o] .

s|eob Buiuied) 10 uoieoNpa J1vy) ybnouy} sisuies) Jo uoljualal ay) aAoIdwi O] .
sueuozuy |e Joj Buiuiesy pue uoneonpa Ajjenb-ybiy 0} ss8o0e peoiq ainsus 0 «

NOISSIN JNO




1002 ,'A18100S pue s|enpialpu| Joj uolieonp3 JaybiH jo sjyeuag oyl ‘shked uopeapg— ‘pieog 969|100 8yl .
(921nos awes woyy ydelb) 000z ‘snsua) ayj jo neaing 'sS'N,

‘SuBUOZLY JO suonelauab aininy 1o}
saniunuoddo Jepeq 8jeald pue ‘@dJoplom
Buimolb e uoddns ‘Awouoos 1sngos aiow
e ajetauab 0] djay [m sabajoo Alunwiwod
seuozuy  ‘uonsdwod  pue  ‘uonudlal
‘sseooe  panosdwi Jo sjeob Buiyoieiano
@aly; uo bBuisnooy Ag euozuy Jo
alniny 8y} O} |BIIUSSSS aJe SBWO09JN0 8say |

Sweibo.d
18U-A1ajEeS |BID0S UO douspuadap aoNpay .«

SJayJom pa||Ivs
10} spuewap a240p1om Buimolb 198 «
SONUBASI XB) 8Sealou| «

sojel
Auanod  pue JuswAojdwaun aonpay .

:0] 108dxa ued a)e]s ay)
‘euozily ul Juswuie)e [euoneanpa Buisealoul Ag -Bunjis osje ale aoendod pajeonpa ue JO S)jousq |B1eIoos ay |

"2JOW UBAS uled 0] 10adxae
ued pjal puewsap-ybiy e ul 8)ediuad 1o aalbap ab9)j00 Allunwwod e uiea oym asoy) puy , ayenpelb jooyos ybiy
B UBey} alow 90z O} 8S0|0 ‘@belaAe uo ‘ules |Im uoieonpa Alepuooasisod awos ised) je 819|dwod oym Ssjuspisal
BUOZIY ‘siajjew ab9]|00 awos uaAs ng "uoleonps |ooyos ybiy e Ajuo yjm auoswos uey} aiow uoljiw | $ JoAo
uJes 0} Joadxa ‘ebesane uo ‘ueod jJuaidioal salbep s Jojdyoeq e :Jueoiiubis si sbulules awneyl| Ul 8dUBIBYIP BY) pUY

"awnayl| Jay Jo sIy JeAo ules [Im uosltad Jey) alow ay) ‘suiepe uosiad B UoneoNnpa aIow 8y} 1Ies|o
aJe |enplAlpul 8y} 0] SHjauaq 8y 'Ssjjouaq [e}8loos pue [enplAlpul Jueoliubls sey juswuiene [euoneonps Ja)esloc)

AINONOD3 1SNTG0™ FHOIN V ANV SONINYVI 43HOIH = NOILVYONA3 0N




(S)npy uolA 1)
9aibaq sJojpyoeg e aneH Synpy JO %92

uoneonp3 Jayun4 ul pajjoJu3 Jo abepp S|geAl] B yim
pakojdw3 sieye|dwo) welboid jeuonednoddQ %zS

awo9onQ 8b9|j0H Aunwwo)
[N}SS82ONS B 9ABIYIY SJauleaT JO Jusdiad %19

ajey (uonajdwo) sjesyiued/eaibaQ) UolENPEID %0Z
Alenuuy papJiemy sajeouia) pue ssalbaq 0ZS0E
a)ey Jajsuel| Alsianiun a1LIS-U| %927
sJiajsuel ] Ajsianiun a1BIS-U| GE°L L
ajey uonusley [[e4-0}-[ed %6Y
Buipeay/ysibug jeyuswdojeAaq Jeyy SS929NS % /¢
Ule\ [ejuswdoaaaq Jeyy $se99nS %02
a)ey $$990Ng 8sIN0) |[ejuswdoaaq %29
a)ey $S990Ng 9sIN0) |9A8T-069(10D %69
$869]|00 Ayunwwo uljuswijoiuz 3514 68.'GEL
(uoneonp3 JaybiH |[e 0} Z1-Y woid)
ajey buio 8690 %SG

V1vda 0L0Z IANIT3SVE ANV

SOIRI13NN F40D

"L 10Z-8e| O} -plw ul suohiulyep
V4A 9y} o} suopneoyipow Aue Buimojjo) pazijeuly aq |[im
A8y ‘wusjul paIapISuod aq pNoyYs sainseaw asay) ‘obels
1011d Sy ul Ajualiind sI \Y4A 8y} 9snedaq ‘JaABMOH ‘[enuew
[BOIUYDD} W4/ JuSD8l JSOW By} Ul papnjoul  Suoliulep
BU} MOJ|0} UOISIA D168)e41s SIY} Ul papn|oul sainseaw 4N [IV

"soljewW
wswdojpAsp AUNWWOD puUB ‘OILIOU0DD ‘DII0PIOM SB [|oM
se ‘sainseaw sawo9lno pue ssalboud juspnis ssedwoous
SouBW YY4A "9|qejunodde piay aq ueo sabajjod Ajunwwod
yoiym Ag seinsesw ojelnidoidde-i0109s ‘Uowwod 9jeald
0} sjdwape V4A 8yl (V4A) AHlIgelunoddy jo iomawel
Aelunjop |euoneu sabs|jon Auunwwos Jo UuOoneIDoSSY
uedouBWY 8y} Ul papnjoul sainseaw }og|jas ‘ease |eob
yoea uiyym ssaliboid jo sioieoipul Aay ayy Jo abejusalad
ueoiubls B Se ||om Se ‘SOujdW 2400 8y} JO |eJaAdS

ALNIGVLNNODIV 40 MAOMINVH
AYVLNNTOA 3H1 OL NOILDINNOD

‘siseq Je|nbal e uo aje}s ay) ssoloe
paieys aq |Im saonoeld 1saq pue ‘sieak om] Aians pazhjeue
pue pajov|0o 8q |IIM Soudw asay) o} Buluieuad ejeq

'sloules| ajow ayenpelb pue ‘uoddns ‘joeiye jey; skemyied
[BUOEONPS UIBJUIBW puE 8)eald 0} SBIISISAIUN pue
S|O0OYDS Z-M YlMm MJom ued saba)j0o Ajunwiwiod |[om Moy

Se [|om se ‘saba)]j0o Ajunwwod 1oj uoddns [eulsixa Agq paouanjjul Ajiaeay aq os|e ||Im Ing ‘suonoe 86900 Ajlunwiwod
uo Ajebie| puadap |Im soujew asay) Buoje ssalbold "QL0Z JO pPud 8y} 1B alom am alaym Jo joysdeus e se ||am
se ‘ue|d siy} Buipinb soujew 2400 8y} sajeJisn||l aJay pajuasald peyd syl -Bululely Jo/pue uoneonpa Asepuodssisod
ul Buipsaoons pue Buusiue sueuozuy Jo abejusolad uojealb Apueoiubls B sapnoul ainjny ay} 1oj UOISIA INQO

FdNiNd 3H1 404 NOISIA




‘(uonyajdwos uo
uojjudjal “H'a) sease
Jayjo ui aduewopad
JO S|9A9]

jua.iInd ulejulew

0} Jap.o ul—ajdwexa
10} ‘ssa@doe
—uoISsSsiw duo
9o1110LeS 0} dARY ||IM
S}OLI}SIp Jey) ueaw
Aew suononpa.
anuaAal onjeweuq

"UOISIA
o1b6aje.)s widl-buo|
S1y} ul pauljno sjeob
ay} aAalyae o} Ayjiqe
ino o) buibewep
Ajenonaed

aJe sabaj|o9
Ajlunwwod s euoziay
10} J1oddns aje)s

Ul SUOI}ONPaL JUdIdY

"8in)n} 8|qee8salo) ay) ul sjeob asoy)
ansIyoe 0] Ayljige Jno Japuly AjaJeAss ‘Janamoy ‘seop | 'sebs|j0o Alunwiwoo
S,BUOZIIY 1O} UOISIA Wis)-Buo) Jno 1o sjeob Jno 108jje Jou seop Buipun) a)els
ul uinjumop dieys pue SISLIO 2ILIOUOD8 JUBLIND 8Y) 1BY] 810U 0] Juenodwi Si

‘(uons|dwod Jo uonuslal
“f'8) sease Joyjo ul douewlopsd JO S|9A9| JUB.IND Uulelulew O} JapJo
ul—ajdwexsa Jo) ‘SS820B—UOISSIW SUO d2ILI0BS 0} dABY [|IM SJOLISIP 1By}
ueaw Aew suononpal snusAal dljewelp pasodoud ayy ‘Aousiolys aroldul
0} Buppom usaq aaey s8b9|j00 AllUNWWOD s euozly sieak Jo) ybnouyyy

"s19Bpnq J1ay) 8oue|eq o} JapJo ul ‘suonisod Jels pue Ajnoey
Se ||oM se ‘S90IAIeS pue swelbold |enuasse IND 0} Padlo) 8q [|IM SIOLISIP
)Sow ‘paspu] ‘sejed uons|dwod pue ‘uonusiel ‘ssedde aAoidwl suoje
19| ‘S@2IAISS JUSPN]S PUB JUBW||0JUS JO S[8A8| JuaLINd Ulejulew 0) passaid
-pJey aq |m s8b8(j0o AlUNWWOD S BUOZIIY ‘SUOioNpal 8say) JO JNsal e sy

"uoIsIA o1ba)el)s wusl-buo siyy ul pauljno sjeob
ay) anaiyoe 0] Aljige uno o) Buibewep Auenoiued aie—jabpng aAlNdaxg
210z JeaA |eosi4 ayy ul pie Bunelado aje)s ul 1nd 9,99 pasodold e Buipnjoul
—s9869|100 AJUNWWOD S,eUOZUY Joj poddns 8}e}s ul suoloNpal Jusday

"S9OUBISWNIIID
3)l| pue sjeob |euoneonpa 8sJoAlp yum uoneindod e o)} Buluesy
pue uoneonpa Ajenb ybiy epinoid o) Ajjige sebs|jo0o ayy abusjeyo |Im
‘Buipuny aje)s Ul uinjumop dieys pue SISO JILOUO0Id JuUdIIND 8y} Jejndiued
ul pue ‘sadlioj asay] ‘|euoneonpe pue ‘[eonljod ‘Olwouods ‘olydesbowap
—S$9010} |euISIXd [BlaASS AQ pojeyng alJe euozuy ul $8b9jj0d Ajunwwo)

NVd SIHL 13344V T1IM S30¥804 TVNY31X3




JO
SJOId1dN ANV S1VOD




‘uolneonpa
Alepuodas)sod

10J apinoid

sobo||09 AjluNnwwoo
saljiunyioddo ayj Jo
SSaualeme aInNsua pue
‘sabeyul| [euoneonps
pue sdiysiauped
aAIsuayaldwod
ybnouy) shemyjed
|euoneonpa uayjbuans
‘Slaules| J0J JUBIUBAUOD
ale jey) seoe|d

pue sawli ]Je Ssueuozuy
||e Jo} Buluiesy pue
uoneonpa Ajljenb-ybiy
0] S$S820k peo.dg aJnsuj




‘suoljesauab snoinaud
woJ) aleyip aq Aew jeyy shkem ul sabg|0o Ino 8z|i3n pue SS8J%e ||IM
A8y} moy pue—auniny Jeau ay} Ul 8q 0} A|9YI| ale Aay} oym se |jom se—ale
Sjuapnjs Jno oym 0} uonuape asojo buiked auinbal |Im siy] ‘uoljelapisuod
ojur uonejndod Buimosb Ajpides pue asI9Alp e Jo sddsuauddxe
pue spaau anbjun ay} aye} o0} aaey |jIm sabajj0o Ajunwwod s euozuy
‘sajes $S929ns pue ssaooe ab9|j0o anoidwi Apueosyiubis 03 1apao uj

‘(ysiuedg yeads asay} JO ¥ JO N0 ¢) dwoy
1e ysibuz uey) Jeyjo abenbue| e yeads 9,8z pue ‘uiog-ubialoy si uonendod
S _BUOZIY JO %G| Jsow|e ‘@iowliaylny ‘uonendod s euoziy ay} JO pliy}-euo
Alybnoua dn eyew—aba|j0o ul pasdons pue Jajua 0} A9yl Ss9| AjleoLiolsiy
ale jey} sdnoib 8alyl—Ssuedouswy UBOLYY puB ‘SuBIpu| UBOLBWY ‘souljeT]

. 9sealoul
uonendod s aie}s 8y} JO %QE INOJe 10j JUN0JJe 0} A|9yI| 8Je—edlswy ule]
pue 02Ixap\ wol} Ajolew i1sea ayi—ualp|iyo Jisy) pue sjuelbiww] ,"0£0Z
Aq uoyiw 20} o} Buignop ueyy aiow uoiendod 0O0Z BUF YIm ‘sajels
pajyun 8y} ul (epeasN 03 xau) uonejndod Buimolb isejse) ay) sey BuUOZUY

8|14 (SINNd) eldwes ejeposoiy 8sn 2lldnd
(SOV) Aenng Ajunwiwod ueslswy §0-9002
‘neaing snsua) ‘SN :ydelb Jeq Jo} 821n0g
G00Z ‘s92IAI9S ylesH

10 Juswedsq euozuy :ydeub aid Joj 82in0g
800¢

.'Ble@ neaing snsua) :euazy— ‘wliojay
uonelbiww| uesuBWYy Joj uonelapa ,

5002 .‘0£02-17002

:xag pue aby Ag suonosloid uoneindod
wisu| &S— ‘snsua) 8y} Jo neaing ‘SN,

NOILVINdOd ONIMOYO ANV 3SUTAIQ V -ANNOHOMIVE




0102 .‘dnoibgns Aq ajeis ay 4o} ajed pelb Jeak unoy 60— ‘uoneonp3 jo Juswyedsq euozuy

"spJepue)s uonenpelb jooyos ybiy pue ssauipeas 869)|09
ublie 0} S|00Yds ZL-M Yum A|9sojo JJIOM pue ‘spasu Sjuspnis }asw
1s8q ey} uononisul |eyuswdojaasp Buipinoid Jo sAem mau sulwexa
—ssa00e Bunowoud pue Buiniasald 0y Alessadau auo—uonnysul ayj Jo
uolnouNy [BIJUSSSS UB SB S||IMS dIseq azijliolud 0) pasu |[Im sJojeljsiuiupe
pue Ayjnoej; abg|on ‘sebo)0d AJunwWWOD BUOZUY 1B UOol}BONpS
[euswdojansp Joy 8jos Buimolb pue penuiuod e ajealpul op Asyy

-ss999e Bunjowoud ‘sainbyy |euonjeu wouy A|gesapisuod AJea Jou op solsiiels asay) ybnoyyy

pue Buintasaad "$9S8IN09 |ejuswdolarap

0} Alessaoau alow Jo oaly} aanbas susepnis 9b9|00  Ajunwwod  Buiwooul
auo—uoljn}isul ayj 10 (9%¢€2) Jauenb-suo jsow|y ‘Buipeas Jo ysibug ul asinod ab9|j0o

-a1d auo jse9| Je alinbal 9, L1 pue ‘(s}oulsIp awos ul %zg se ybiy se sl
jo uofouny jepuasss ainbiy SIY}) yew ul 8sIn0o |eyuswdojaasp auo jses| je alinbal sjuspnis

ue se s||I)s Jiseq ab9jj0o Ajunwiwod Buiwosul e jo jley Ajybnos ‘epimalels oM [aAd)
mN_“—_._o_._Q O} po3au -969)|00 J0o} pasedaud jou ase Auew ‘sajenpesb jooyos ybiy Buowe usag
[lIM Siojejsiuiwpe

' (%69) sjuepnis pabejueapesip

pue >u_:omu_ Ajleoiwouoos se ||am se ‘(Ajpanpadsal ‘9,69 pue 9%¢59) SJUsapnls oulje
abajj0o Ajlunwwo) pue uesusWY 8AleN Joj Jamo| Ajjuedijiubis aiem sajes uonenpelb Jesh
-Inoj} ‘sieak unoj uiyum pajenpelb syuapnis |ooyos ybiy s,euozuy Jo %9/
AJUO 600Z U] "e2J0410M By} Ul sjuns Buoj Jeye uoneonpa Alepuooasisod
0} Buluinjal esoy} pue [ooydss ybiy Jo no Buiwod asoy} Yyjog—sjuapnis
Buiwoour Ag pasinbas uoneosnps |ejuswdojonsp JO JUBIX8 By} SI 9de)
sob9)j00 Ajunwwod seuozuy sabuajieyo isejealb ay; Jo auo Ajgenbly

SLIN3IANLS AIFAVdIAdEFIANN -ANNOYOMIVE




awooul Ajlwe} uelpaw euOzLY JO abejuadlad e se aouepuaje Jo S0

9s4n09 ysIjbuz [aAs]-869)|09 e 8)9|dwo9 Anjssaoons pue aosuanbas
JO 9s4n09 Buipeal Jo/pue ysibu3 jeyuswdojorsp e ybnouy) ssalbold oym sisulies| Jo Juadsad pue Jaquiny

9S4N02 Yjew [aAs]-869)|09 e 8)9|dwo9 A||njssadons
pue aouanbas 1o 8s1n02 yjew [eyuswdojansap e ybnouy}y ssaiboid oym sisules) Jo Juadiad pue JaquinN

s9869)|02 Ajunwiwo? ul Apoauaip jjoJus oym sajenpelb jooyos ybiy Jo jusoiad
$9S1N02 (puayeam Jo/pue ybiu ‘auluo “68) Jeuonipeli-uou ul pabebus sisuies| Jo JaquinN

suole|ndod paAlasiapun JO Juswi|oJu]

VOO SS3JIJV QUVMOL SSTUO0Ud 40 SUOLVIIANI AIM

‘uoneonpa Airepuodsasisod 10} apinoud sabajjoo
Ajlunwwos saniunjioddo ayj Jo ssaualeme ainsud pue ‘sabeyul| jeuoneanpd
pue sdiysiauped aaisuayaidwods ybnoayy sAemyjed uoneonpa uayjbuais
{slaulea] 10} JUSBIUSAUOD ale jey} sade|d pue sawi} je sueuozuy |[|e 1o}
Buiuies} pue uoijeonpa Ajyjenb-ybiy o) ssadoe peouq ainsud 0] :|eo) SSIIIY

SS3UO0™Ud 40 SHOLVIIANI AIM -INO VOO




‘'ssaulpeal 869)|02 0y Buipes| swelboid abpliq ul sisules| }npe pue jooyos s|ppiw abebus abs|j0) opejes
oIy 1e welboid 3Oy ynpy ay} pue sabo||0o s,edodlie|y JO ¢ e patayo joalold JOV Jolunr 8y} ‘uolippe u| ‘uonenpelb
[ooyoss ybiy Agq supaio ab9|j0o $z 01 dn uies 0} way) Bumoje ‘sioluas pue siolunl se welboid ay} ul ayedioied
0] |Jooyds ybiy jo Jeak alowoydos Jioy} ul spuspnis sinioal welsboud 3Oy ay| 969)j00 0] uonisuel} JIdY} Ul }sisse
Se ||am se ‘sjuapnis [ooyos ybiy ysu-je Buowe sinodolp aonpal 0} paubisep si weiboid spim-jousip ay -uondo
ue se 969||00 JapIsuod jJou Aew oym sjpuapnis syable} welboud (30y) uoneonpg absjj0) e Buiraiyoy s, dooLe «

‘spjaly [euonednoaoo puewap-ybiy ul swelboid 81eo1)i11a0 pajelaadoe Ul SIayIom pade|dsip [joJud 0} paubisep
weiboud yoeus-isey e padojaasp sey ab9)j09 Ajunwwo) aaeyoly ‘doys doig suQ Alunod ayy yum diysiasuped uj «

‘'spunolbyoeq Jejiwis wo.lj

SJUSpNIS JaYjo 0} SUOIIDBUU0D pue ‘Buliojusw ‘ssaualeme [einynd ‘Buiuueld jeoueuly ‘Bulioyny yjew Jo/pue abenbug)
Buipnjoul ‘syuapnis Joj Woddns aaisuayaldwod apiaoid saiunwwod Bulules| asay| saunwiwod Buiuies| pue BulAll
[enuapisal ybnoly) 969|100 Jo Jeak isaiy ay) Buunp sS800NS pue Jusw||oud Jiay) suoddns pue saljiwe) Jo)IoM-WIe)
wou} syuapnis 96900 awi-sdiy synioal (weibold uelbipy aosueisissy 969]j00) dINYD S.269]100 uIB)SOpN BUOZLY «
:apnjoul saAljeiu|

ab9]j00 0] sAemyjed aaneloqe|joo Buipirocid pue ‘Buiuiesy Jo/pue
uoneonpa Alepuodasisod 10} pasau 8y} 81ed1unwWod 0} Salouabe a21AIas |BID0S pue S|00YdS ZL-Y Yim Buusuped «

(sJ1ox40m paoe|dsip
pUEB ‘S]JUSPN]S SWODUI-MO| ‘SUBIPU| UBJLIBWY ‘SOUlleT ‘Sajew ‘ualp|iyo Jisy) pue sjuelbiwwi Buipnjoul) spualy
olydelBbowap jualind wol) Buiblaws ale jey) suonendod—jo juswijoius Buisealoul pue—o} yoeaino Bulpinocid .

:adinbai Im syl

's1oad J1oy) 01 91eINSUBWIWOD sajel Je saba)j0o Allunwiwod ul Buipaaodons pue Buljjolus jou aJe jey) suonendod
asoy) Buowe sdeb ssoooe 9S0|0 0] YJom I1snw am ‘|eob ssadoe Ino yoeal 0} ale sa8b9]j00 AJIUNWWOD BUOZLY J|

SNOILYTINdOd A3IAYIASHIANN DONONY ATIVIOALST 'SdVO SSIOIV IASOTO 'L

- IVOO SS3DIV dNO ONIAIIHIOV




‘uononJisul Bunum pue ‘Buipeal ‘yiew
Jo} sloules| aledald 0} Awepedy Sssaulpeay e paysiigelsa pue :syuapnis [ejuawdojansp Joy wesbosd Buliojusw
Joad e padojansp spasu Jaules| }JoaW 0} S}ewlo) Jayjo pue sasinod Jejnpow padojoAsp (s8sinod |eyuswdojonap
ojul saonoeld jseq 1S3 pejelboul ‘sesinod 1S3 pue ‘Bunum ‘Buipeas ‘yrew |ejuswdojaasp Joj suondo Jsjua)
Buiuiea] padojonsp :(sbuiyy Jayjo Buowe) sey 1ouISIp By} ‘spoya asay} Jo ued sy ‘sjuspnis [|e Joj juswdoljensp
s|Iqs oi1seq Buinoidwi 0y pajesipap ainyno jeuoneziuebio ue poddns o) Bupom si 8b9jj0) Alunwwo) ewid .

‘dnouib josuoo e 0] paledwod
s)sa)sod U0 S8100S Ja)eg paolelisuowsp dABY SjuspnlIs Jisy] pue ‘seonoeld Buiyoes) 1siAnoNASUod alow paldde
aney slayoea) bunedioued ‘paysijgelse alem suonjeziueblo |-/ 8y} 9oulg “saijiunuoddo juswijoius |enp Buiyeannod
pue ‘suopneoyljenb Joyniqsul Buoueyus ‘sednoeld jseq Buueys ‘suonenjeas juswaoe|d pue enouind Buiubie
AQ sS920NS JudpN)S BSEAIOUI 0} WIe ey} siayoes) [0oyos ybiy pue sppiw pue Aynoey D3 usamiaq sdiysiaupned
BAI}BIOQge||0D : SUOIBIDOSSE |- |BJOASS paysi|qe}se aAey sjooyos ybiy Japasy sy pue ab9)|0) euozlly UIS)SET .

:apnjoul saAneniu|
Spesu slauies| 0] palojie] pue a|qixa)) alow
sBuliayjo uoneonps |[eluswdojaAsp a)ew 0] s|gpow AlaAljap aAljeuls)e pue ABojouyos) uoneltsuab-1xau Buisn .

uonesedald pue ymolb 1oy saiunuoddo yim sisules| buipinoid
10 Aem |enjuassa ue se uoljeonpa |ejuawdojaaap Buizowold pue JuswdojaAap JO [apow JI01}ep B puoAaq BUIAO) «

spJepuejs ssauipeal-269(|00 0} wnnNoIND ubije 0} siepinoid AjsIaAiun pue -y yum Bunelioge|jo) «

:alinbau |m sy

"W} JOAO UOljeIpaWal 10} PEBU 8y} 80npal 0} S|00YIS ZL-Y YIM dJom 0} se ||am se ‘swesboud

|eluswdojenap aund aziwndo o) Aljiqisuodsal B aAey am ‘sebg|oo Allunwwiod Sy "SaAIoalgo Ueaued pue
‘leuoneonpa ‘|euosiad Jiay} aAaIyoe ajl| JO Syem [le wol} sjuspnis Buidjay ul pue Aiuazio pajeonps ue Buuedaid

ur sAejd 1 sjos 8y} Joj paziubooal 8g 1SNW Jeyl suo pue ‘uonoun) jeuonniisul Alewud e swo28q SS8|BylBuUoU
sey 1 ‘uoneonpa |eluswdojaAsp Ul 8ol |enuad e yons Aeid 0] 8sooyo jou pip sebsjoo Ajunwwods ybnoyyy

SSANIAVYIY 39371100 O1 ONIAV31 SAdIHSHANLEVd ANV SWVEO0dd 3ZINI1LdO ¢

- IVOO SS3IJIV dNO ONIAIIHOV




"S9SJN0J }IPJO-UOU SNOJBWNU SE [|[9M
se ‘swelboid ayeolyuad 1o saibap auljuo Ajny G| sleyo sndwe) auluQ s,869)|00 8sIyo0H ‘Ajjeuld "SaiIUNWIWOD
JO sawoy umo Jiayy wolj [puuosiad ab9)|00 [BOO] WOy aoue)sISSe %99S Jo ‘Buliojny pue BuisiApe aAlg0al ‘ssa00Nns
WOOJSSE|D JI9Y} JOJUOW URD SJuapn)s Yoiym ybnoliy) saodinles paseq-gom Jo Aelie JSeA e siayo aba)joD uia)sapn
BUOZUY ‘Bale 92IAI9S S}l SSOIOE SI9JUad [euoleonpa pue suoinjos Abojouyos) Buipinoid 0} uonippe u| "Sjusw|joJud
[|lBJBAO JO 9%(0E JOAO 1O} SJUNO2oE mou sndwed uoneosnpg aosuejsiq S} pue ‘says Aunod |eins QL seapnjoul
yoeas AL|/BuUIouaiajuod08pIA S, 8ABYOJ\ "SOSIN0D SHB JO 3)el00SSE pue (HJ9Y) WNNoLINg uoieonp3 |eJauss
BUOZIY ||B 0} SS820e 3}Is-ljNnW 8pIAcid 0} SWOOISSE|D AL| OM} pue eipawinw auo sunt DN ‘|dwexs Jo4
‘uoneonpa Jaybiy ur ayedioied o) ajqe ag asIMIaylo Jou Jybiw Oym SjUSpN)S 0} SS8IJE PUBIXd JBPIO Ul SBOIAISS
pue sa8sJnod auljuo apirnoid pue uoneonpa aduelsip ul abebus sjoulsip 869)j00 AJUNWWOD S .BUOZLY JO AUB .

"$8]IS UOIJBAI9SaI-UOU pue uoneAlasal ajdnnw je uoneonpa |ejuswdojoAsp siajjo os|e pue

‘suoneN oleaeN pue ‘idoH ‘eyoedy uleluUNOl S8IYAA ©Yl UO SIsjuad |euoneonpa sey DdN 'SIaules| awooul-mo|
1o paAlasiapun Jo suoneindod abie] yum asoyy Alenoiled ‘ssniunuwiwod [eo0] ul uoneonps Buipirnoid ul paasijaq
Buo| sey uonnsul 8yl sny) pue ‘ssjiw aienbs QQ0‘Zz sessedwoous eale 8oIAIesS S,8698||0) Jeauold pue|yLoN e
:apnjoul saAneniu|

suoneoo| sndwes
-1JO 1B pue ‘spuayeam uo ‘ybiu 1e Buipnjoul ‘seoejd pue sawi] [eUOIIPRII-UOU 1B S8DIAISS pue s8sInod Bulpinold «

$8S4N0D PLIGAY JO BUIJUO pUR ‘SI81USD YoBaJINO ‘UoIeONPa 8duelsIp Se yons spoyiaw AiaAliep jo abues e Buizijinn »
:adinbau |Im sy

"SJaules) 0] JUSIUSAUOD 1SOW

ale 1ey) sjewlo) ul pue ‘saoe|d ‘sinoy 1B S8JIAISS pue S8sINod [9A8]-869]|00 pue |eluswdojaasp apiAcid 1Snw am

‘leob ss900B INO J98W O] "SUOIIBDO0| JO S8} [euolipe] 1B S8sinod Buiye) woly way) apnjoaid jey) Seoueiswnol
aJll Jaylo aAey Jojpue ‘sndwed wol) Aeme Jej oAl ‘swn-Ued Jo -|n} yJom sjuspnis 8b9)j00 Anunwiwos Auepy

SHANHVI1 d04 LNJINGANOD 4V LVHL SFOIAHES ANV S3SHNO0O 4dINOdEd €

- IVOO SS3DIV dNO ONIAIIHOV




seoe|d pue sawi) [eUONIPeI)-UOU JB S8DIAISS PUB S8SIN0D 8pIACId B
$8SIN0J BUIUO pUR ‘SI8JUSD YOBaNO ‘UoEINPa
aoue)sIp se yons spoyjaw AlaAljap jo abuel spim e azinn ‘e
SI9UJed| 10) JUSIUSAUOID dJe Jey} SOJIAI9S PUR SBSIN0D dPIAOId €

Spasu SJUBPN)S J98W 1S9 0} UoleoNpa |ejuswdojensp Jojie] 0
uoneledaid pue ymolb
Joj saniunuoddo yum siauses| Buipinoad Jo Aem |eljuassae ue se uoneonps [ejuswdojaaap sjowold °q
splepue)s ssaulpeal-ab9)|00 yum ejnouInd gZ-) ubije o} sjeloge|jo) ‘e
ssaulpeal abajj0o 0} buipeas| sdiysiauied pue sweiboid aziwndo g

26900 0] sAemyied aAneloge||0o
ul 8b6ebus pue Buluiel Jo uoneonps Alepuodasisod ajowoid 0] S|JOOYDS ZL-Y YIMm Jauled 'q
spuaJj olydesbowsp Juauind wouy buibiaws suoneindod jo Juswjolus asealou| ‘e
suone|ndod paailasiapun Buowe Ajjeioadsa ‘sdeb ssaosoe 9so|n -}

ONINIVHL
ANV NOI1VONAdd OL SSF00V avOdd ONIAIAOHd H04 S3IDF1VELS OHOVIN

FONITT3O0X3 ¥O4 SIIOFLVAIILS




‘s|eob

Buiuiesy 1o uoneonpa
JI8Y) JO JuswBAsIyoe
ay} ybnouy} sisulies| Jo
uolnuajal ay) arosdw|




(-@04nos

awes woJy s| ydeib uy abesane [euoneN) ‘8002 . JBA pPu0oas Jiay| Bujuinjey uswysai4 abajj0) awi]-}sli4 — sajey uonu@y— ‘SINJHON .
‘abelane [euoieu ayy yum Ayjigesedwod anoidwi o} alay pajuasald aie sajel uonualal (Y4A-UoU “°8°l) [|eJ9AQ "S}UspN}s JO HoYoo

V4 109|8s e Buowe uopnualal ainseaw yalym ‘g abed uo pajuasald asoy) woly Apybijs Jayip a1ay pajuasald sajel Uoua)al apIMSIE]S 810N

's969)]00 Alunwiwod
s,euozuy Joy Ajioud Jenoied e si uonuslel
woepnis bBuinoidwi ‘ebessne  |euoneu 8y}
uey} Jamo| %g°/ Sajed UOIUBJR) BpIMaIRIS UNAA

‘sl1oad J1oy) ueyy sajel Jamo| AJua)sisuod
12 99dwoo pue isisiad  oym  (odwexs
Jo} ‘suedllOWY UBOL)Y PUB SUBIPU| UBOLIBWY)
sdnoib6 esoy} Buowe Ajepadse ‘uolnuslau
jusapn)s anoisdwi 0} YIOM jsnw uoljeu ayj
ssoJoe pue euozuy ul sabajjod Ajunwwod
Jey) Jes|o siI J ‘suoseal oy} Jo ssojpiebay

‘'saljiwey JIvy} Jo woddns ay) 01 81nqLIUOD pue
‘aleap|iyo pul} ‘sesinod |ejuswdojonsp |elaAss
aye} ‘sea) pue uonin} Aed 0} JapJO Ul HJom 0O}
paau a8y} Se yons sanssi a|dinw yym pusjuod
1snw Aay) 1ey) pue (Ajuanbal) jno doip pue 1no
dojs ‘suonnuysul aidinw Buowe |JIMms olwepede
way} Jo |e jou ‘suoseal a|dijnw Joj pusype
suepnis 969]j02 AJUNWWOD JBY]) SOUSPIAD UJIM
puodsal AjjeoidA) siepea] ab9jj00 ‘esuodsal uj

. (9%879/) suonnyisul o11gnd Jeak-inoy je sajel
uonuslal ueyy Jemo| Apueoyubis ale ‘9z'zS
JOo abeiane |euoneu e je ‘jeyl sajes uonuLal
Joy pazionuo Apjuanbauy aie sabs)j0o Ajunwiwo)

NOILVINdOd LN3IANLS ONITIIMS V -ANNOUOMIVY




(-@0inos swes wouy pajdepe s|ge]) ‘6002 ‘Aoljod pue diysiepes uoneonp] JoybiH Joj 8jnyisu| , SaWoIN0
wepn)g 869]10) AJUNWWOD aAoidw| 0} JUBWBABIYOY Buo)sa|ij\ BuizAjeuy :ss800ng 0} sBiS— " ‘UlB}sUsyO B "N “o0INys 9 ‘SO0 ,

("wud)y auo 0o} Ajuo pajj0lus oYM SJUBPNIS BPN|IXd pue Ssjuspnls awil-||ns Ajuo apnjoul Aay) asneosaq
Ainewnd ‘ebed snoinsid ay) uo pajuasald solsiiels BUOZUY 8y} ueyl Jaybiy Ajjueoiiubis aie ajqe) aAoge ay) ul sainbly uonualal :8)0N)

‘|leob

uonuajal Ino plemo) ssalboid Jo siojeolpul se syulod wnjuswow AaY |eloass sajelodioour ueld siy) ‘ANjIgeIUN0DDY
JO Ylomawel4 Alejunjo/ 8y} Ul soujaw ssalbold Juspnis JO UOISN|OUl 8Y) SE ||oM SE ‘Blep Je|iis pue 8say) Uo paseq

%€ 8y
%068

%SG 6v
%08

%C'CS
%1798

(%8S)

uonusley Joysewes

lled-o0y-lied

%099 (%9.) supaid +0g uie3 10N pid
%€ 66 (%*¥2) supaid +0g peuieq
SlipaJl) JesaA-]1Ssll]
%289  (%cL) siesA Z uilyup 81e|dwo) JoN pig
%Y L6 (%82) siesh g uiyipA pejejdwo)
ys|bug jena-absjj0D
%L0L  (%6L) SlesA Z ulyupn 8le|dwo) JoN pid
%826 (%12) SiesA g Uy peje|dwo)
Uren [1ene-e69j109
(%)

uonualey

SJUI0d Wnjua WO
lo“_.
-la)sawes

sjuiod wnjuawojy Aq uonualey

v Jeak Jsliy JIsyy Ul sypald Oz
1SE9| JB pauJes OYm 9SOy} Se ||oM Se ‘sieak om)
ulyum asinod ysibug lojpue ylew |oAsj-a69)j0o
e pojgdwod oym sjuspn}s awi-ny Buowe
sojel uona|dwod pue uonualal Jaybiy Apuesiubis
pamoys  sobojod  Alunwwod s elulojjen
ur sjuepnys Jo Apnis 00z e ‘edwexs Jo4
‘sjulod wnjusWoOW UlBKad yoeal sjuapnis JI pue
uaym Ag pojosye aq Aew uonusial moy Je )oo|
0] unbaq os|e aABY SIBYDIBaSal [BIOASS ‘AJusday

"juapn}s
jajeainba awi-|ny Jad sainypuadxs aje}s Jajealb
pue ‘saoinies poddns juapnis Jo Ajjigejieae pue
Ajjenb ayj ‘senunwwod Buiules| ul JUSWSBA|OAUI
‘sjuspn)s Jayjo pue ‘yels ‘Aynoej yum JOeuoo
Jo Aouanbauy ayy Buipnpoul ‘sabs)j0o Ajunwiwod
ul @ouajsisiad japnis anoidwi o)1 dipy Aew 1ey)
sa|qgelleA 0} pajulod sey yosessal ‘sieah Auew Jo4

SATOHSIY™HL 11d38D ANV S3SHUN0I AVMALVO -:dNNOYOMIVE




S8)el UOUS}al [[B}-0}-||e} PUB J8}SaWas-0}-19}SaWas

sJeah Z ulyym—sypalo

yz Bunejdwoo sisules| swi-led jo usoiad pue—sypald zi Bunsidwod sisuies| awi-||n} JO Juadiad
ysibu3 Jo/pue yrew |oAal-ab69)j00 Bunajdwoo Ajnjssaoons siaules) Jo Jusdiad

ajel $$929NS 9SIN0J [eyuswdojana(

9)el $S929NS 9SIN0I [9A8]-969(|0D

VOO NOILNI L3N QUVMOL SSTUO0Ud 40 SHOLVIIANI AIM

‘s|jeob Buiuies} 10 uoiyesnpa 119y} Jo
JusWIdAaIYydk 3y} ybnolay) siduded| Jo uonualal ayj anoidwi 0] :|eos) uonudlay

SSIUO0Ud 40 SHOLVIIANI A3 -:OML VOO




‘Buiules| pue Buiyoea) adueyua 0} MOY JNoge seapl aJeys 0} A)noej mojje 0} sAeq anbojeiq pue sieulwas

SNOLIeA SE ||oM sk ‘uoa|dwod pue uonualal ul sadioeld }saq SSNosIp 0} [duuosiad slieye Juapnis pue ‘siojelisiuiupe
‘Aynoey Jayyabo) sbulq jey) 90uUaIaU0D SSBIINS JUBPNIS B ‘siauleg| [eluawdojarap yum Bunuiom Aynoey o) synyisul
Jawwns e Buipnjoul ‘saniaioe juswdojaaap |euoissajold snosswnu siayo ousiq 8691100 Ajunwwo) edoouely a8y
puy ‘Buisooyd Jiay) Jo suoissas juawdoanap [euoissajold aauy ul ajedidiued o) yeys pue Ajnoey moje o} Jeak yoes
sAeq juawdojonag oaAojdwg omy siosuods ab9jj0) Alunwiwo) ouluoo0 ) ‘sdoysylom JO SJeulwas juawdojonsap
|leuoissejoid puspe 0} yejs pue Aynoey 1oy 008$ 0} dn sapiroud pue ‘uonnyisul Alepuodesisod pejpalode ue
1e Apnjs Jo sinoy jipalo 9 0] dn sasinquial Ajlenuue ‘ejdwexa Jo} ‘0b9||09 euozily [esjuad) ‘uonajdwod pue uonuslal
wepnis pue ‘Buiuies) pue Buiyoes) aAoaye ‘uawdoaasp |euoissajold usamlaq Uil 8y} Jo juswabpamouoe
ur Ajuoud Jesp e juswdojonsp |euoissajoid spew aAey Spoulsip 969)j100 AJUNWWOD SBUOZUY JO |BJOASS .
"uoiUd)aJ dsealoul pue s|iys Bujuiyy [eanuo aaoidwi 0} uMmoys uaaq aney—>bBuiium

[eulnol pue ‘Buife|d ajos ‘Buinjos wajqold ‘sejeqep juapnis ‘Buluies] aAleIadood 10 aAleIoge|00 se yons—salbolel)s
Bulules] 8AIOY "SIBYJO puB ‘9oUsI0S ¥ Yl Ul SS800NS J0) JaJud) YSYN 9yl ‘Jajua)d Bunlpn pue juswadoueyud]
Buiuiea] eyl ‘uawuianob juspnis ‘Buuojusw Joad-or-1oad Buipnpul ‘sweiboid ob69)j00 |eionas ojul salbolel)s
Buiuies| aanoe juswadwi 0} aAlenul ue si 8b9jj0) AJunwwo) ulelunoO ejeasg e sanunuoddo Juswabebuy .

:apn|oul saAlenRiu|

uoleloqe||oo
Ajnoej 1oy seniunioddo pue juswdojaasp jeuoissajold ybnolay) Buiuies| pue Buiyoes) Aiejdwexs Buioddng »

SaAl| AinJuad-1 Z J18y} 0} WN|NJLLIND 8y} J08UU0D SlauJes|

diay jey) sesse|o sue |elaqi| |euoiiped) 0} SUOIEIIIPOW J0/pue ‘sa1b0jouyda) Mau ‘©210)}JOM 8y} 0} SUOI}DBUUOD
‘sasinod Aseundiosipiaiul ybnoayy buuiyy [eonud pue uonelojdxs 4oy saiiunoddo yum siauses| Buipinoid .
:aainbau um sy

‘Jjeys pue Aynoey Joyj Juswdojanap |euoissajold pue poddns

Buiobuo se [jom se ‘swelbold asay] Ul JUBSLWIISOAUI PANUIIUOD 9)BISSSIaU ||IM uoiualal uspnis Buinoidw] "sweliboud
[euonednooo pue ojwapeoe aAlleAouul pue Ajenb ybiy jo Aeue jsea e apinoid s869)100 Ajunwwod S EUOZUY

SINVHO0Hd TVNOILYdNDOOO0 ANV JDINIAVIV ALITVYND HOIH 3AINOYd '}

- IVOO NOILN3L3Y JNO ONIAIIHOV




‘s|eoB |euoiednoo0 1o dlWwapeoe Jisy] pJemo) yoel] uo way) desy
0] sueld olwepeoe pazieuosiad aAey pue Buolis Le)S SIsules| 1ey) 8INsue 0] S8SIN0D SS820NS JUBPNIS Jo/pue
“Juswaoe|d uawasIApe ‘suonejuslio Alojepuew paydope aAey sabs)j00 snoLieA ‘[jam sy "8b8)j0o Buines) Jo Ysu 1e
1SOW 8soy) pue sjuspnis Jeak-1sli Joj seonoeld Buisiape sAisniu+ paidepe os|e aAey saba|0o [eieneg 'spoddns
olwepeoe pue suonuaaiaiul aleudoidde epinoid pue ssalboid Sieuies| doed) 0] Blep Juspnis asn Jeyl SwalsAs
usje Aues pue Buuojuow olwepeoe pajuswaldwi osje aAey sebs|j0o Aunwiwod seuozuy Jo Ajuolew ayj «

‘Buiioiny pue uononssul [ejuswslddns
se yons sa8ainosal Joddns ojwapede [ewlo) pue ‘uonjoelajul dnolb ‘Buifpnis |enseo ‘ejeqap olwepeoe 1o} aoeds
sapinoid jey) Jajua) aoue)sissy Buiulesa] e pue ‘swoolsse|o Jandwod ‘suspnys Joy sabuno| Bulules| suiejuoo
D71S yoe3 rsesndweod Inoj s Jo yoes uo (HS) suowwo) Buiules Juspnis e pauado sey ab9)j0) Ajunwwo)
aABUO\ ‘|[om Sy ‘sndwed yoesa uo uoljeoo| 9|buls B je SaJIAISS JO 189S 9SISAIP B apinoid 0} Joplo ul SIajusn)
S9OIAIS JUBpPNIS SH pajeAoual Ajusdal sey ab9)j0) Ajunwwo) ewld ‘AUejlwiS "ypoy os pue ‘sanunuoddo
Jajsuely aso|dxe ‘sdiysiejoyos 1o pie [eloueul) Jnoge uies| ‘Buisinpe 1o Bulesunod %8s ‘sasse|o ul ||oJud Ajises
ued sjuapnys aiaym doys-dojs-auo e siayo ‘ajdwexas 10} ‘969|100 uIs)SapN BUOZIY "Sa2IAISS pue swelbold papasu
YIM WY} }08UUO0D puB WOOISSE[D 8y} 9pISIN0 slaules| abebua AjpAnoays pue Ajjusiolyd alow 0} JapJo Ul SUOIBI0|
pazijesjuad ojul SadIAIes Joddns jJuapnis J1oy) palepIlosu0d aAey S}oLlSIp 969)|00 AJunwWwod S .BUOZUY JO JSOJA »

:9pn|oul saAljeniu|

WOO0JSSE|D 8y} JO BPISINO puUB UIYIM Siaules| yum suonjoelsiul |njbuiuesw ul buibebus pue ‘sadinlas
uoddns awn-ul-isnl Buipinoad ‘Alies syjuspnys ysii-1e BulAjuapl ul uoljeloqe||od yeis pue Ajnoeyj Buibeinoou] .

sanlunwwod Buluies| Jo/pue ‘suoissas Buisiape 1o uoljejualio Alojepuew
‘sdoys dojs-auo ybnouy} seaialas uoddns Jo Aedle 9|qIssadoe Ajises pue peolq e buinowoud pue BuIpinoid »

:adinbau |Im siy |
‘goudjsisiad pue Juswabebus Juspnys aaocidwi 0} Joyiabo) yJom ued jieis pue Ajnoey

MOy Se ||am se ‘pajowold pue papirnoid aie s8dIAI8S 9S8y} MOy Inoge A||ednid yuiy) 0} pasu am ‘sajel uona|dwod
pue uonuajal anoidwi Ajueoliubis 0] ‘syuapnis o) SadIAIaS Woddns palayo sAem|e aaey saba)|0o Ayunwiwod ajIYAA

S3ADINGTS LHd0ddNS LNJANLS 40 AVHEY dVO0d9d V 410INOdd ANV 3dINOdd ¢

- IVOO NOILN3I13d JNO ONIAIIHOV




"s90IAI9s Joddns pue s821nosal 869]|00 0} WY} }08UU0D 0] SBNUIU0D OYM Josiape uona|dwod e Aq pauoddns
ale Aay} ‘e)eolied Jo aaibop e plemo} ssaiboid pue sosin0d |9AS]-869|00 OJul UOIISURI) SJBuJed| Se pue
‘uapn}s JeaA-}slly yoea yim AjBAISuaiul SyJom Jsijeroads aoinosal v yiew ul Bulioin) jejuswalddns aAleoal
pue ‘@sinoo ssaoons 69|00 e pue sasinod Bunum pue Buipeal |eyuswdojorsp aye} ‘Ajunwwod Bulules)
e ul ab9||00 uibaq syuedioiued aaibaq j08loid "uoneonpa |eyuswdoljorsp Bulinbal siaules| Buowe uona|dwod
pue uonuajas Buinoidwi jo Aem e se aaibaq 108loid Bunuawe|dwi uebaq abajj0) xiusoyd | Loz Alenuer uj .

"}J0MasIn09 |eluswdojaasp ybnouayl Apjoinb aiow ssaiboud
0] W8y} MOj|e 0} SI9)SaWas Usamlaq suoissas Bulioiny [eioads papioye ale uonelpawsal Buuinbai syuspnig
‘uoneJsisibal 8sin0od pue ‘souelsisse ple |eloueul ‘Bunss) juswaoeld sepnjoul jeyy ssaisboud uonejusLo
snoJobu e siayo weiboid ay] ‘UORBONPS JIBY} SNUIIUOD JO PIdl} MBU B Ul 92J0pOM By} Jajus-al Apoinb
0] slauJes| suoiisod ‘sadlAIBS punole-dedm Yjm pauiquiod ‘yoiym swelbosd |euonednoado pue ‘olwspeoe
‘leyuswdojonap pajelsjedoe 0} SSaJJ0e UM SIoyIom paoeldsip sapinoid welboid yoeud] jseq4 S,9ABUON

:apnjoul saAljenIu|

saljiunoddo juswaoueApe Jaa.ed 1o}
way) atedaid Jo/pue aaibap 81LID0SSE UB PJEMO] 8NJODE [[IM 1BY] Uoljeonps |eJausb Jo sjuswa|e ajesodlooul
pue s||Iys |eoluyoa) sisules| uayibuais yloq o) uoneledaid jeuonednooo pue olwspeoe Bunelbayu| «

s99IAleS 1oddns juapnis
ajeudoidde se ||am Sse s||IS 2Iseq ul uoionisul ajelbajul jey) sAemyied Jajsuel) Jo/pue aaled Buijeals) .

:adinbau |Im siy |
‘swelboud |ejuswdojaasp pue ‘|euoiednddo ‘Ollspeoe Usam}aq Saduel||e dAlJBAOUUI Blow

pue Jabuo.s pjing 1snw am ‘uons|dwios pue ‘uonualal ‘uswabelbus Juspnis aAoidwi 0) UMOYS SHUI| JBNDLIND
Jaylo se [jam se ‘sAemyled Jsjsuel) pue Joaied BAI08YS 8)eald 0] aie s8b9|j00 AJUNWWOD SBuUOZUY J|

SINVYD0Yd TVNOILVANOO0 ANV "OINIAVIV
IVINIWJOTIAIA MNIT LVHL SAVMHLVYd ¥34SNVHL ANV 4334VD J1v3ALD '€

- IVOO NOILN313d JNO ONIAIIHOV




SjuswaduBApE J93a.ed 10} way} asedaid
Jo/pue aa1bop ajeID0SSe U pJemo} anJdde ||IM Jey} uoleonpa [eiauab e Jo sjuswale ajesodiooul
pue s||IXs |ea1uyos) stauies| uayibualis yjoq o} uonjesedald jeuonednooo pue olwapeoe ajelbaju] “q
s90IAIas Joddns Juapn)s ajeudoidde
SE [|om SE S||IYS 2Iseq ul uononiisul ajelbajul 1eyl sAemyied [euonednogo Jo ollspede apIncld B
swelbouid jeuonednaso pue ‘ojwapese ‘jejusawdojanap yuij ey} shemyjed Jajsuel) pue 1daled ajeal) ¢

WOOJSSE|O 8y} 9pISIN0 pue ulyim yjoq
sJaules| 1o} Joddns swi-ul-isnl pue njBuiuesw Buipirold ul uoneIoge||0o Jjels pue Aynoey abelnoouy 'q
sanunwwod Buluies| Jo/pue ‘Buisiape Jo uoljejualio Alojepuew
‘sdoys dojs-auo ybnouy} saoiales Joddns a)qissaodoe Ajises Jo Aedle peouq e ajowold pue apinold ‘e
s991A19s Joddns juapnjs Jo Aelse peouq e ajowoud pue apinold °Z

uoleloqe||oo
10} saniunuoddo pue juswdojensp |euoissajold ybnoayy Buiuies| pue buiyoes) Alejdwaxs uoddng g

Bunjuiyy |eanio pue uonjeloldxs Joj saiunuoddo yum sisules| apinold ‘e
sweuabouid jeuoijednaso pue slwapese Ayjjenb ybiy apinoad L

NOILN3I13d ONINOHdINI 04 S3I93LVHLS OHOVIN
FON3ITT3O0X3 ¥O4 SIIOFLVAULS




‘swelbo.d

1O $8SIN02 uoneINPd
92.10J)I0M 1Ipalo

-uou 8)8|dwo9o J1o/pue
‘AlIsIaAIUN B 0] Jajsuel]

‘91e21411192 10 2albap

e 9)9|dwod ‘s|jeob
Buluiel) Jo uoneonpo
J1ay] aA8Iydoe oym
SJauJles| JO Jaguinu ay)
aseaJoul Ajjueoiiubig




(*@24n0S awes wo.y

ydesb u ejep [BUOIEN)  600Z .‘SONSIEIS UOIEONPT JO JSalfl— ‘SONSHE}S UONEdNPS o) Jajua) [BUOHEN ‘UoleoNnpd Jo juswueded ‘SN ,
‘sejel jeuoneu yum Ajijigesedwos aaosdul o) aiay pajussald ale sajel uona|duwod (Y4A-Uou 1) ||I8AQ ‘SJUSPN]S JO LOYOD YA 108]8S

e Buowe uone|dwoo ainsesw yoiym ‘g abed uo psjussaid asoy; wouy Apybis Jayip atey pejussald sejes uone|dwos epimalels 810N

‘suedisjunod uelpu|
uedllBWY puUB ‘UBdlIBWY UBOLYY ‘OulleT Jidy) pue sisuled] auym usamieq sdeb juswansiyoe jusjsisiad yym
‘sjuapnis Jo sdnosbgns juasayip Buowe sajel uona|dwod ajeoiad/ealbap ul uoneleA Jueoiubls osje si a1ay]

'sieak 9 uIyim a)edlyila0
Jo 9aibap B uies sisules| JO Jslenb B JBAO ‘salsnpul
pue sassauisng Agieau yum A[@SO|0 oM ey} asoy}
Alenoied ‘syousip Jayjo 1y 'slaules| jo jusoiad 9 U0 G
AJuo uo sa)jeolIad Jo saalbap JaJuod—UuOISSIW Jajsued) ay)
aznjoud jey) asoy) Jo/pue sjyuspnis swil-ued Jo sebejusolad
abiel yum osoy;} Apuenoued—oawog sjolsip 869|109
Aunwwod euozuy Buowe Apealb Aiea ssajes uons|dwon

"%81 Japun isnl si 8inby yey)
‘euozily U] 'sieak g ulyum a1edlils0 Jo salbep e eye|dwod
sjuepnis 869|009 AJuUNWWOd JO 9 /¢ Isowle ‘AjjeuoneN

"Juswiuie)e ayeolla9/aa1bap pue Jajsuel) Jo SwIs)
ul Jeneq op ueo—saba|0o Ajunwwod Bulpnjoui—uoneonpa
Jaybly Jo suonniisul jeyl juawebpamoudoe ue  Aq
os|e Jnqg ‘eoe|djoxiew [egolb e ul ssauaAiedwod JILOoU0dd
S91e]S pajun 9yl ulejal 0} alisep e AQ Ajuo jou pawely
ale saAneniul uonsidwod asay] -sealbop Alepuodssisod
JAYJ0 pue SJojBYoeq YpM susaziio ‘SN O Jequwinu
ay} Buiseaoul Ajjeonewelp ul 8ol s,869)|00 AUNWWOoD 8y}
uo uonuane snooj 0} unbaq aaey suoneziuebio aidoiyyueyd
Jolew |esanes pue juswulanob [elapa) ayy ‘sieak juadal uj

VAN3IOV NOILITdINOD FHL -ANNO™UOMIVE




"(s@ounos swes wouy ydeib) 200z 14 ‘Aloiuyia/eoes Ag seyenpelbiapun

swili-1sul Jo yusw|ag— (Sa3dl) weisAg eyeq uoneonpy Alepuoossisod pejesbeju| ‘uoleonp3 jo Juswpedaq "S'N ‘pig! .

0102 .'SHoYyod

uoneonpa-1aybiy-0}-mau 10} sojel Jajsuel] Arewwns spm&ES— ‘(1SISSY) Jajsuel] JuspniS UO UOIBWIOLU| JO) WBISAS 9)e1S BUOZUY |

‘suonje|ndod asay} Jo ssa29ns ayj 0} uonjuajle Jejnoijied Aed 3snhw am ‘pieoq
9y} SSO0Jok Udjsueu) asealoul o0} sjoyd ul Buibebus ase sabajj0d AjUnwWWOD S.BUOZLY IBIYM . S069|/00
AJunwiwod Ul Jusw|oJud JIdY} YUM 3}BJNSUSWIWOD Sdjel Je Jajsuel) Jou Op Sjuspnjs ouljeT] pue ‘uelpu| uedsuawy
‘uedlBWY UBOYY B)Iym ‘uoleindod Jsjsuel) euozuy oy} Buowe pajuasaldoallono ale Ssjuspnis Uelsy pue ajlypn

J(039V)
wiN|NoLLINYD UoieoNpPT |BJauac) BUOZIIY dY] WOJ) 8SIN0D 9109 duo Jses| Je Bunsjdwoo pue ‘ealbop Jajsuel) e uielqo

JO Jajsuel) 0} Juajul ue Buueoap ‘sinoy jpalto 86900 AJlunwiwod alow Jo Z| Bulules :se paulap Si JoIABYaq Jusjul
Jajsuel] ‘sainbly [euoneu o} ajgqeledwod ale sajel 8say] sieak g ulyum AjsiaAlun olgnd ajejs-ul Ue 0} Jajsued)
AjInyssaoons Joineyaq jualul Jajsuesy ul abebus oym syuspnis a69)|00 AJUNWWOD BUOZLY JO %97 ‘©pimale)s

Ad34SNVYL -ANNOYOMIVE




swAojdws uieb Jo uoneonps Jivy} aNUUOD oYM s18)e|dwod gJ9/3gV 10 usdlad

uoneonpa Jayuny

ul pajjolua Jo abem a|qenl| e yum pakojdwa Jayye saleleidwoo welboud [euonednooo jo usalad pue Jaquiny
Jeak sauo uIyuM wexa ainsua9l| e buissed siaje|dwoo welboud [euonednooo Jo Jusdled

9a1bap sJojayoeq e ulea 0} uo ob oym siajsuel} 869)|00 Ajunwiwod Jo JusdIad

awWo9)no 869|109 AJUNWWOI [NESS829NS B Buinsiyoe sisules| Jo Juadlad pue Jaquiny

AlsiaAIuN e 0} Jajsuel) Oym saules) Jo Jusalad pue Jaquiny

D39V ue 819|dwod oym siaules) Jo Jusdiad pue JaquinN

(e1e1 UOENpEIB) 8)EolIBD 10 9a1bap B ulea oYM Siaules) JO Jusdlad pue JaquuinN

sjeob Buiuiely Jo uoneonpa paje;s JIvY} SASIYOR OYM SJaules) Jo Juadiad pue Jaquiny

VOO NOILITdINOD QUVMOL SSFuO0Ud 40 SHOLVIIANI AIM

‘swelboud 10 sasinod
uoI}eONpPd 32I0J0M }Ipald-uou 3)3jdwod Jojpue ‘AjIsIdAlUN B 0] Jdjsuel)
‘9)eo113199 10 daubap e 9)9|dwod ‘sjeob Builuies} 10 uoneoNpPd JIBY]) dA3IYOE
OYyM sJduied] Jo Jaquinu ayj aseasoul Apueosyiubis o] :jeosy uonajdwo)

SSIUO0Ud 40 SHOLVIIANI A3M -334HL VOO




‘s|eob sjuspnis uo uoiew.loul Buijoa||09 40} SWa)SAS umo J1ay) aAey saba||0) Ajlunwwo) edodlel\ pue uls}sap)
BUOZIY YlOg pue ‘[gpow Bupjoed) juajul juapnis s,00d uawsadwi o0} unbaq sey ab9)j0) Ajunwwo) SABYOJ «

‘uone|dwod pue uoiud)al 8SEaIoUl UBD Jey) suoljuaAlalul pajabie) Jayjo
apinold pue ‘shemyjed Jajsuel} anoidwl UBD SaIJISISAIUN B)B}S pue DDd dlaym seale 10algns Jo swelboid Ajuapl
‘boddns |euonippe apinoid 0} Joplo ul paadons 0} Ay sso| ale jey) suoneindod Ajjuspl 0} paziin 8q os|e ued
Bjep Jusju| ‘ejep JBYJ0 pue jusjul JO uojeulquod e Buisn uone|dwod pue uonuslal Juapnis aulwexs 0} 969]|00 sy}
Buimolie ‘ypo} 0s pue ‘Joineysq Bupe) 8sinod ‘poylsw AJBAIIBP |euoljonJisul ‘sapelb pue 4o ‘shiels pie [eloueuly
‘loA9] uoneonps ‘solydelbowsp Buipnjoul ‘uoiew.olul JUspn}s Jaylo Aue yjim pauiquiod 8q uay} ued ejep jusjul DDd

‘("0 ‘suoseal |eloueul ‘patisjsuel) ‘[eob Jeuoneonpa pasiyoe
‘Apnis Jo weiboid pa}s|dwod) uoseas e 109|9S 0} payse aJe sjuapnis ‘uinjal o) Buiuueld Jou ale Asy) J| ‘swus)
oM} Juanbasgns ayj Jo auo ul DDd O} uinjal 0} uejd Aay} Jaylaym ajejs pue ‘Apnjs Jo eale papusjul disy) Ayjuapl
‘(sasse|0 DDd Bupje) wspnis yijon 40 ‘ss qol ‘ysaisiul jeuosiad ‘Isjsuel) ‘9)eoiIuad 10 salbap) D4 Buipusye
10} UOSsEeal J1ay} 109]9S Sjuapn)s "lo)sawes yoea Ja)sibal Aay) awi} 1sdiy 8y} Sjuapnis ||e 1o elep S}09]|09 jey) ssaooud
Buyoely Jusjul Juspnis auluo ue payoune| (DDd) 969]10D Ajunwwo) ewid je siojedisiuilupe pue yeis 00z Ul «

:9pnjoul saAljeliu|

sjeob Buiuiel) 1o uoneonNpa Palels Siaules| Jo JUusWaAsIyoe ay) punoJe suoys uona|dwod pue uonuslal Buisnoo «
Ja)sawas yoes—uwlia) Jusnbasgns e ul 869|090 ay) 0} uinyal 0} suejd Juspn)s
8y JoU 1o Jaylaym pue ‘Apnis Jo eale papuslul ‘Buipusne o) suoseal Buipnjoui—ejep jusiul Juspnis Bunos|io) .

:adinbau Im sy

‘s|eob Buluiely Jo uoeoNpa Sisules| JO JUBWSASIYOE pue uoljeoijuspl
8y} punoJe suoys uons|dwod Jajuad jsnw am—suonuanleul jobie) Ajgjeudoldde slow 0]} pue—uons|dwod
pue uonuajal Juapnis azAjeue Ajgjeindoe aJow 0} Japlo U ‘s|eob jeuoieonpa Jo AJoleA apim e aAeY sjuapnls a69)100
Aunwwoo ‘ealbap sJojpyoeq e ules 0} wie AjjealdA) oym salisisAlun pue sabs|0d JesA-Inoy 1B sjuspnis ayiiun

STVOO ONINIVHL 0 NOILVONAdS .SHdANEVY1 40 LNJNIATIHOV
ANV NOILVYOI4ILN3dl 3HL dNNOdV S1d044d NOILT1dINOD J341NFD 'L

- TIVOO NOILITdINOD JdNO ONIATIHIV




"ainynoniA pue ABojoua ul 8a16ap saje1oosse ue Jayo 0} welboid ainynoniA sy puedxs 0}
sue|d 869|100 ay] "Ajuno) 1edeaeA Jnoybnoly} SiSIeIN}NOIJIA PUB SJBUIUIA YJIM SBoUElj|e S]e)l|Ioe) 0} WNIHOSUOD) SUIAN
Aajle apJIaA 8y} yum jjasy paubie sey pue ‘sndwed AgjjleA apia/ 8y} Uo pleAauln a10e-auo e uiejuiew pue jueld o}
swabeuel plekaulp usais) upapy yim pasauned a69)j00 ay| ainynonia ul welboid a1eolad jeuoijedndoo mau e
padojanap sey abajj0) 1edene) ‘epeoap jsed ay} ul Ajueoyiubis umoub sey As|le apJa 8y} ul Alysnpul SUIM BU) SY «

‘99169p 8)eI00SSE JBaA-0M) B 10 8)Bd1)11180
Jeak-auo e 0} Buipes| ABisus Jejos pue s|enjoiq ul S8sIN09 sy s) Buuayo aq |m ab9)j0o ayy | L0z Buuds u| "ABisus
aAleusa)e ul swelbold [euoioniisul 81eald 0} JBpJo Ul JogeT Jo Juswuedaq ‘SN 9yl wod) uelb Buiuies] qor peseg
Ajunwwo) uoliw zZ'Z$ e paaiedal pue Joy paldde 869|100 euozuy |esua) ‘sieonpold [anjoiq pue Jejos |euolippe
10e4))Ee 0] sue|d s@jels ay) Buimalnal pue ‘spjaly 8say) ul ymoub juswAojdwa [euoneu pue ‘sjels ‘|euoibal JO S}Sedalo)
[eonsnels buluiwexs ‘euoziy [esjuad ul Buiesado saiuedwod Jejos pue [anjoiq snoLieA yum Buninsuod Jaye ‘0L0g Ul »

:apnjoul saAneniu|
seale puewsap-ybiy ul JuswAojdwae s)eipawwl
JoJ sJsules| atedaid 1ey) swelboid Buiuiel) 101U Jo [euonednooo apircid pue ubisep o) (SQJLr) S1ouIsIg uoneonpg

[BOIUYDS | JUIO[ Jo/pue ‘S8ssauIsng |eo0] ‘salousbe juswdojoAsp 82.101I0M [e20] pue alels yim Buneloge|jo) .

spuewap adJopom bBuibisws j19aw 0} swelboud ajeolyniao pue salbap ubisapal 10 dojsAsp 0} JepJo U—sIapes)
Ansnpul pue ssauisng [Bo0] yum sdiysuoie(al buluiejuiew se ||om se—s)seoalo) AJjsnpul pue 91louodd BUlIOjIUO| «

:adinbau Im sy
‘s|eob Jaa.ed Jo ‘Buluiel ‘uoieonpa Jiay) uiepe syuapnis divy

1By} pue ‘spaau juswdojanap 9210)J0M |ED0| JO/pUB B)e)s Uim paubije ale jey) sdiysisupned ul abebus pue swesboud
apinoad jsnw am ‘sisules| Jo uoneindod esieAlp e Joj uonesedald juswAodwa JO SNXBU B SB 9AI8S 0} JapJo U|

INIWAOTAINT FLVIAINNI SO FLVYOI411H3TO 'FI3HOIA V OL Av31 LVHL ANV
‘SA3AN LNINJOTIAIA FDHOIMHOM VOO T HO/ANV FLVLS HLIM AINDITV IV
1VHL SdIHSHAN1dVd ANV SINVHO0dd 'TVNOILVdNDOD0 ANV OIN3AVIV 4dINOdEd ¢

- IVOO NOILITdINOD JdNO ONIATIHIOV




‘suonnyisul yloq Aq papiaoid saoiaias Joddns pue WooISSe[O Yim ‘uoljeanpa
aouejlsip ybnoliyy NSy wouy Buisinu ul s Jojpyoeq Jisy} ules o0y welboud Buisinu s DN Jo sajenpelb moje |im welboud
SIYL "NSY UM uopeioge|od ul weibold NSE<NY Ue Jayo o} uibaq |im 869jj0) Jeauold puejyuoN LLOZ e} U]«

‘aaibap s Jojayoeq e Buiules pue Bullsisuel) A||nyjssaoons ul sjuapnjs sisse o} Buisinpe
ol pue ‘saolnies ‘swelboid sepinold yoiym ‘wesbold sjen asiyood) ay) dojgasp 0} Yinos euozuy Jo AJISIsAlun ay)
yum paxyiom sey absjon asiyoo) pue ‘NYN Yim sjuswaalbe sejiwis dn jas aney sabsjjo) Ajunwwon edooliep pue
9ABUOJ\ ‘SWa)SAs pue sa21nosal Alsiaaiun pue ab9)j0o Ajunwwod Bunebiaeu ul 8oUR)SISSE dAI80al puUB ‘JUBWSSIAPE
paJojie} wolj Jsuaq ‘sypalo Jajsuel) Aissejweas 0} sjuapnis 969100 Ayunwwod Buimojie ‘(NVYNZODD) Alsieniun
BUOZUY WaYWON ypm welbosd suoissiwpe julol Alejldwaxa ue padojgrsp sey ab9)j0D Alunwwo) ouluod0?) «

‘swelboud (9] ) 88i1ueIENS UOISSIWPY Jojsuel | Jejiwis padojaasp aney
(aneyO pue ‘DdN ‘ewld Buipnjoul) sjoulsip Jayjo [Blanss ‘Y49 wnwiuiw e uies pue sAemyyed aaibap pauljop-NSY
|BJOASS JO BUO MOJ|0} Oym Sjuapn}s 969|j00 AJunwwod 1o} (NSY) AlISIaAIUN 81B1S BUOZLY O}Ul UoIssiwpe pasjuelentb
pue saAluadul uoniny sapinoid yoiym ‘jepowl (ddviIN) SsAemyieq welboid olwepedy s.edoouely Buimolod .

:9pn|oul saAleniu|

slaules| punog-aoe|d Jo |ednJ 0} saljiunuoddo ajealne|eddeq pusixa
0} Japuo ul sasndwed 369|102 Allunwiwod uo swelboid aaibap s Jojoyoeq juiol 10 pajedo|-02 apinoid 0} Bunjeioge|o) «

ajealneeooeq ayj 0} Yyied Jeajo e yym swelboid aaibop oidiynw
ul sjuapnis apiaoid 0] saljisiaAlun aje)s-ul Yum swelboud uoissiwpe pasjuelenb Buinosdwi jo/pue Buidojana(g »

:aainbal pm sy
‘Algeoidde pue Ajjiqelajsuel;
9SIN0D dZIWIXBW puUe JdJSUeJ) 0} S9|0BISqO UOWWOD aziwiuiw Yyjoq jeyy sAemyjed pue swelboid Bunsixa anoidwi

pue mau dojansp 0} sisuped AJSIBAIUN JNO Y)M 8)eIOQe||0D JSNW dA\ "Buozuy Ul uononposd saibap s.Jojayoeq
pue Jajsuel) asealoul Ajjuesiiubis o] ate am Ji Juaioiyns Jabuoj ou sI swelboud pue sasinod Jajsuel) Buipinoid Aldwig

J1V3dNV1vOOve
dH1 OL ONIAV3T SAVMHLVd ANV SANVEO0dd NJHLONTH1S Ol 341vVd08VvVT1100 €

- IVOO NOILITdINOD dNO ONIAIIHIOV




SJauJea| punog-ade|d Jo |eint 0} SS90k d)ealne|eddeq
puajxa 0} sasndwed ab9)j00 Ayunwwod uo swelboud
aa.bap s J0joydeq pajeool-09 1o julol apinoid 0} ajesoge|j0) ‘e
a)ealne|eddeq ay}
0] yjed Jes|o e yym sjuapnis apinoid 0} SaljISIaAluNn a)e)s-ul
yum swelboud suoissiwpe pasjuelenb anoidwi Jo/pue dojpaeq ‘e
a)eaunejesseq ayj} o} buipes| skemyjed pue sweiboid uayjbuaiys 0} ajeioqejjon ¢

seale puewap-ybiy ui JuswAojdwsas ajeipawwi 0} buipes| swelboud jeuoinednado apinoid 0y syeloge|o) q
SPUBLWISP 92J0)I0M
Buibiewsas j9aw 0} sweibolid ubisapal 10 dojoAsp 0} J8PIO Ul S}SED8.0} AJjSNpul pUB JIWIOUOIS IOHUO|\ ‘B
juswAojdwa ajeipawiwi] 10 ‘93eo1}11439 ‘9ai63ap e 0} pes| Jey} pue spaau JusaWdo|dA3P 9210I0M
|eooj] Jo/pue 3je}s ypum paubije ale jey) sdiysiauied pue sweisboid jeuoiednaso pue ojwapede apinold g

s|eob Buluied) 1o UoEONPS SIBUJEd| JO JUSLWIBASIYOER 8Y) puNnoJe SUOoyS uons|dwod pue uonualel SNoo4 ‘g
Ja)sawas yoea ejep juslul JUSPNIS 109|100 ‘B

s|jeob
Bujuiel) 10 UOI}EINPS SIDUIEI| JO JUBWDAIIYOE pue UOoI}edI1judpl 9y} punoJe syoyd uonajdwod Jajuan -}

d34SNVHL ANV NOILFTdINOD ONISVIHONI 404 SHI931IVHLS OHOVIN
dON3T130X3 ¥O4 SAIOILVHLS




"SOlIJaW S)I pue uoIsIA o16a)els siy) Jo JuswdojaAsp ay) ul [nydjay
Ajqipaioul aiem sisquisw Jejs asoym Jo yoes ‘sjolisip 869)j00 AUNWWOoD (] S,BUOZUY e S8d10
SseusAljoaye yoleasal |euonnyisul 8yl Aq pepiroid aiem ueid siyy ul payo Apoldxe jou eyep ||

NpPa°JoN’ 0" MMM
"apIsIonly DN 1B ($D) aAneloge|jon o69|j00 Ajunwiwo) eluioyie) dy} pue Jaysh ‘g auled
"I JO 9@ouelsSISSe 2yl YIM pajeald sem UoISIA d1barens wua] -buo :sabajjo) Alunwiwo) euozuy

101381q 969)|00 Ajlunwiwo) 8s1yd20D) 1os1q 9b9)j0D Ajlunwwo) edoouey
J9pIampoy "a-r 4a Jadse|9 snjny uq

101381q 969)|00 AJlUNWIWO) Zed e/ewnA 1oms1g 9b9)j09 Ajunwiwo) ewid
a|Aep uug|o uq salo|4 Aoy "uqg

101381q 969)100 Ajlunwiwo)) aneyoN 101381q 969)100 Ajlunwiwo) weyels)
suJea)| [9eysIA “1d ‘ar ‘eakug yiep

1ous1g 8b9)|0D Alunwwo) |euld 10u381q 969)|0D AlUNWWOD OUIUO20D
supjuar siuuaq N ujasulog ] yea "ug

1ou3s1q 969)109 Aunwwo) redene A 10181g 9b9)|0D Ajlunwiwo) oleaeN
UO}IOH Ssawer uq Jieyd ‘noypiemsg auuear uq

TIONNOD SLINAAISTYd ID93TT0I ALINNNINOD VNOZINY ‘SHIFINIIN



Study Session
Agenda ltem #2.
(First Read)
February 15, 2011

2011-2012 Tuition and Fee Schedules

Backaground I nfor mation:

Continuing State budget concerns along with constraints on property tax leviesincrease
the importance of maintaining steady tuition revenue growth. Historical tuition rates are
included along with comparative information presented on the tables and charts following
the schedules. Staff will present and discuss the information in detail.

Approximately $200,000 of additional revenue will be generated by the proposed
increases in tuition.

No changes are proposed in the general fee schedule.

Instructional staff conducted a comprehensive review of all course fees to assure fees are
based on cost of consumable supplies and other course specific expenses. Over 1,300
courses are listed in the current catalog, with approximately one-third of the courses
requiring a course fee. Proposed course fee changes are not expected to generate
additional revenue beyond the increased cost of course supplies, equipment maintenance
and course-specific operation expenses.

In the Arts and Sciences division afee increase of 10% is proposed for one credit I nternet
courses based largely on the fact that |ess than 20% of enrollment in these classes come
from within Navajo and Apache counties. A fee has been proposed for SPT178 to cover
make-up kits that will be distributed to students.

In the Career and Technical Education division, AlS and BUS proposes increased fees
due to the increasing cost of instructional supplies, including CDs, flash drives and other
Instructor materials needed for the courses. Proposed increases in CIS course fees are a
result of new courses requiring instructiona supplies and heavy use of computer parts
and components. FRS fees are proposed to increase for some courses and decrease for
other courses as the fee schedule is being further refined to more closely align with actual
expenditures. HQO courses fees are proposed to increase to more fully account for




equipment maintenance and fuel costs. The proposed fee will cover approximately one-
third of the actual cost per student. Proposed IMO course fees are based on severa new
courses. Proposed increasesin WLD course fees are aresult of the increasing cost for
purchasing metal pipe.

The Nursing and Allied Health division is proposing an increase in HES 109-
Phlebotomy that is based on current calculation of actual cost of supplies per student. The
proposed fee will cover approximately one-half of the actual cost of supplies per student.




NAVAJO COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NORTHLAND PIONEER COLLEGE

2011-12
PROPOSED
Approved Proposed
TUITION 2010-11 2011-12
IN-STATE $56 per credit hour $60 per credit hour
APACHE COUNTY | $56 per credithour [ $60 per credit hour

OUT-OF-STATE

$95 per credit for 1-6 hrs.
$270 per credit for 7 hours
and beyond.

$100 per credit for 1-6 hrs.
$295 per credit for 7 hours
and beyond.

SENIOR CITIZENS
60 years or older

50% of the applicablerate:
In-District, Apache County,
or Out-of-State. (Does not
apply to non-credit courses)

50% of the applicablerate:
In-District, Apache County,
or Out-of-State. (Does not
apply to non-credit courses)

REFUNDS FOR TUITION

100% before 1% day of
semester and if NPC cancels
the class. 50% during 1%
and 2™ weeks of the
semester. No refund after
the end of the second week
of the semester

100% before 1% day of
semester and if NPC cancels
the class. 50% during 1%
and 2™ weeks of the
semester. No refund after
the end of the second week
of the semester

SUMMER SESSION REFUNDS

100% prior to 1% day of
session. 50% through 1%
two days of theterm

100% prior to 1¥ day of
session. 50% through 1%
two days of theterm

SHORT-TERM COURSE REFUNDS

100% prior to 1% day of
session. 50% through 1%
two days of the term

100% prior to 1% day of
session. 50% through 1%
two days of the term




NAVAJO COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NORTHLAND PIONEER COLLEGE

2011-2012
Proposed
FEES | Approved2010-11 |  Proposed 2011-12
GENERAL
Media Fee® $35/semester $35/semester
SPECIAL

Graduation Fee (non-refundable)
Specia Certificate

Transcript (each)

Transcript (each) On demand
Transcript (each) Next day delivery
NSF Check Collection

GED Test®

GED Retest

COMPASS/ASSET Testing®

Late Registration Fee

Credit by Exam

Credit by Evaluation®

Credit by Evaluation Fee (non-refundable)
Delinquent Account Charge

HESI Testing

Student Emergency Loan Processing Fee

$35

$15

$10

$15

$20

$25

$85

$12

$10

$25

50% of in-state tuition rate
50% of in-state tuition rate
$15

$10/month

$38

$10

$35

$15

$10

$15

$20

$25

$85

$12

$10

$25

50% of in-state tuition rate
50% of in-state tuition rate
$15

$10/month

$38

$10

® Assessed to all students enrolling in three (3) or more credit hours.

@Includes a $20.00 Arizona State Surcharge Fee.
QlIncludes up to three (3) tests.

@Evaluation of Learning Certificates from business, industry, government, military, and non-regionally

accredited ingtitutions without waiver agreement.




NAVAJO COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
NORTHLAND PIONEER COLLEGE
2011-2012
Proposed Cour se Fees

Approved Proposed
ARTS & SCIENCES 2010-11 2011-12
ART 103 | Basic Design $15 $15
ART 105 | Beginning Drawing | $15 $15
ART 110 | Figure Drawing | $15 $15
ART 140 | Lettering $15 $15
ART 150 | Advertising Design $15 $15
ART 155 | Printmaking $15 $15
ART 170 | Sculpturel $15 $15
ART 175 | Painting $15 $15
ART 180 | Watercolor $15 $15
ART 185 | Handbuilding Pottery $20 $20
ART 186 | Clay Sculpture $20 $20
ART 187 | Raku Pottery $20 $20
ART 190 | Ceramics $20 $20
ART 205 | Drawing Il $15 $15
ART 206 | Figure Drawing Il $15 $15
ART 220 | Painting I $15 $15
ART 225 | Watercolor |1 $15 $15
ART 245 | Ceramicsl| $20 $20
ART 246 | Ceramicsll| $20 $20
ART 247 | Ceramics |V $20 $20
ART 280 | Art Studio — 2 Dimensional $15 $15
ART 281 | Art Studio — 3 Dimensional $20 $20
BIO 100 | Biological Concepts $35 $35
BIO 160 | Intro. to Human Anatomy & Physiology $35 $35
BIO 181 | Genera Biology | $35 $35
BIO 182 | Genera Biology Il $35 $35
BIO 201 | Human Anatomy & Physiology | $35 $35
BIO 202 | Human Anatomy & Physiology || $35 $35
BIO 205 | Microbiology $35 $35
CHM ALL | All Courses $35 $35

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.



, Approved Proposed
ARTS & SCIENCES (cont’d) 2010-11 2011-12
ECD | ALL | ECD Permanent Number/1 cr. $17 $17
ECD 143 | Inclusion of Children w/ Special Needs $17 $17
ECD 233 | Developing Poalicies and Procedures for Early $35 $35
Childhood Programs
EDU 281 | Introduction to Structured English Immersion $50 $55
GEO 111 | Physical Geography $20 $20
GLG | ALL | All Geology Courses $25 $25
MUS | 155 | Music Applied (al) $120 $120
PHO 100 | Beginning Photography $20 $20
PHO 101 | Digital Photography $20 $20
PHO 115 | Pictorial Journalism $20 $20
PHO 150 | Investigative Photo | $20 $20
PHO 151 | Investigative Photo |1 $20 $20
PHO 200 | Intermediate Photography $20 $20
PHO 201 | Intermediate Digital Photography $20 $20
PHO 212 | Color Photography | $20 $20
PHO 213 | Color Photography Il $20 $20
PHO 220 | Advanced Photography $20 $20
PHO 230 | View Camera Photo $20 $20
PHO 240 | Photography Portfolio $20 $20
PHO 270 | Free Lance/Stock Photo $20 $20
PHO 280 | Photography Practicum $20 $20
POS 221 | Arizona Constitution and Gover nment $50 $55
POS 222 | U.S. Congtitution $50 $55
PHY | ALL | All Physics Courses $25 $25
SPT 178 | Stage Makeup - $50

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.



Approved Proposed
CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION 2010-11 2011-12
AlS 100 | Keyboarding - $10
AlS 102 | Business Grammar - $10
AlS 105 | Developing your Professionalism - $10
AlIS 110 | Basic Keyboarding & Formatting $15 $15
AlS 111 Advanc_ed Keyboarding & Document $15 $15
Processing
AlS 112 | Proofreading - $10
AlS 113 | Basic Letter and Memo Writing - $10
AlS 114 | Introduction to the M odern Office - $10
AlIS 115 | Ten-Key Adding Machine $15 $15
AlS 116 | Electronic Calculators $15 $15
AlIS 118 | MediSoft Billing $15 $15
AlIS 119 | Medica Office Procedures $15 $15
AlS 123 | Vocabulary for the Medical Office - $10
AlS 127 | Medical Office Insurance and Coding - $10
AlIS 130 | Machine Transcription $15 $15
AlIS 135 | Intro to MedTranscription $15 $15
AlIS 140 | Microsoft Word Basic $15 $15
AlS 145 | Microsoft Word for Windows $15 $15
AlS 150 | MSPublisher Basics - $10
AlS 153 | MSPublisher Complete - $15
AlIS 170 | Written Business Comm $15 $15
AlS 180 | Records Management - $10
AlS 181 | Medical Records M anagement - $10
AlS 190 | Legal Terminology - $10
AlIS 191 | Introto Law Ofc Procedures $15 $15
AlS 202 | Customer Servicefor the Office Professional - $10
AlS 214 | Administrative Office M anagement - $10
AlIS 226 | Advanced WordPerfect $15 $15
AlS 231 | Intro to Microsoft Office $15 $15
AlIS 232 | Advanced Microsoft Office $15 $15
AlIS 235 | Adv Transcription-Med | $15 $15
AlIS 236 | Adv Transcription—Med |1 $15 $15
AlS 245 | Advanced Microsoft Word $15 $15
ATO | ALL* | All Automotive Courses except ATO 103 $30 $30
BOC 102 | Construction Safety Practice $25 $25
BOC 105 | Wood & Steel Framing $25 $25
BOC 106 | Building Exteriors $25 $25
BOC 107 | Drywall Techniques $25 $25

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.



, Approved Proposed
CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION (cont’'d) 2010-11 2011-12
BOC 115 | Block & Brick Masonry $25 $25
BOC 117 | Concrete Flatwork & Formwork $25 $25
BOC 120 | Cabinetmaking | $25 $25
BOC 130 | Contractor License & Law $25 $25
BOC 135 | Furniture making | $25 $25
BOC 136 | Plumbing Level | $25 $25
BOC 137 | Plumbing Level 1l $25 $25
BOC 138 | Plumbing Level Il $25 $25
BOC 139 | Plumbing Level IV $25 $25
BOC 146 | Electrical Level | $25 $25
BOC 147 | Electrical Level Il $25 $25
BOC 148 | Electrica Leve Il $25 $25
BOC 149 | Electricd Leve IV $25 $25
BOC 152 | Commercial Wiring $25 $25
BOC 153 | Industrial Wiring $25 $25
BOC 156 | HVAC Leve 1 $25 $25
BOC 157 | HVAC Levd Il $25 $25
BOC 158 | HVAC Levd I $25 $25
BOC 159 | HVAC Leve IV $25 $25
BOC 170 | Carpentry Level | $25 $25
BOC 171 | Carpentry Level Il $25 $25
BOC 172 | Carpentry Level lll $25 $25
BOC 173 | Carpentry Level IV $25 $25
BOC 180 | Building Maintenance $25 $25
BOC 205 | Adv Framing Techniques $25 $25
BOC 220 | Cabinetmaking II $25 $25
BOC 221 | Cabinetmaking Ill $25 $25
BOC 235 | Furniture making Il $25 $25
BUS | ALL | All Business Courses except 122, 128, 129 - $10
BUS 122 | Computer Accounting $15 $15
BUS 128 | Spreadsheet Applications for Business $15 $15
BUS 129 | DataBase Applicationsfor Business $15 $15
All 1, 2 and 3 credit CIS courses except

CIS ALL 141, 142, 145 $15 $15
CIS 141 | Managing and Maintaining Your PC | - $200

142 | Managing and Maintaining Your PC 11 - $200

145 | Network + Certification Preparation - $275
COS ALL | All Cosmetology Courses $40 $40

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.



Approved Proposed
CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION (cont'd) 2%"10_11 20101-12
DRF | ALL | All Drafting Courses $30 $30
FRS 100 | Firefighter Orientation & Terminology $15 $10
FRS 102 | First Responder for the Fire Service $25 $10
FRS 104 | Firefighter | & I $225 $225
FRS 106 | Firefighter Health & Safety $20 $10
FRS | 108 | Firefighting Sirategies & Taeties $10 Delete
FRS 109 | Hazardous M aterials Awar eness $30 $10
FRS 110 | HazMat First Responder $20 $20
FRS | H2  Managing Company Tactical Ops $10 Delete
FRS 113 | Confined Spacel $30 $10
FRS 115 | Principles of Fire Prevention $10 $10
FRS 116 | Intro Respiratory Protection $10 $10
FRS 117 | Intro to Forcible Entry Tools $10 $10
FRS 118 | Intro to Fire Hose, Streams & Nozzles $10 $10
FRS 119 | Intro to Fire Pumps/Apparatus $10 $10
FRS 120 | Emergency Vehicle Driving $20 $20
FRS | 121 | Emergency Stabilization & Extrication $35 $35
FRS 122 | Fire Svc Ventilation & Ladders $10 $10
FRS 123 | Intro to Extinguishers & Foam Suppression $25 $25
FRS 124 | Intro to Fire Svc Ropes & Knots $20 $20
FRS 125 | Intro to Water Supply & Hydrant Testing $10 $10
FRS 126 | Rope Rescuel $10 $20
FRS 127 | RopeRescuell $10 $20
FRS 128 | Rope Rescuelll $10 $20
FRS 130 | Incident Command System $10 $10
FRS 131 | Vehicle Firefighting $10 $10
ERS 133 | Introto Fire Behavior & Detection - $10
ERS 134 | Rapid Intervention Crew - $10
FRS 136 | Fire Apparatus, Equipment, & Hydraulics $10 $10
FRS 137 | Strategies and Tactics $10 $10
FRS 140 | Fire Service Report Writing - $10
FRS 150 | Wildland Firefighter - $10
FRS 207 | Fire Svc Bldg Construction $10 $10
FRS 211 | Leadership | - $10
FRS 212 | Leadership Il - $10

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and

type of each.




, Approved Proposed
CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION (cont’'d) 2010-11 2011-12
FRS 213 | Leadership I11 - $10
FRS 214 | Incident Safety Officer $10 $10
FRS 217 | Fire Officer | $10 $10
FRS 218 | Fire Officer Il $10 $10
FRS 219 | Fire Officer Il $10 $10
HPE 106 | Aerobics $20 $20
HPE 110 | Beginning Weight Training $20 $20
HPE 111 | Adv. Weight Training $20 $20
HPE 115 | Golf $20 $20
HPE 124 | Beginning Swimming $20 $20
HPE 126 | Fitness Swimming $20 $20
HPE 127 | AquaFit $20 $20
HPE 128 | Aquatic Cdisthenics $20 $20
HPE 136 | Karatel $20 $20
APE 0 | physical Fitness! - v $20 $20
HPE 161 Land Navigation & Wilderness Survival $20 $20
HPE 192 | Square Dance $20 $20
HPE 232 | Water Safety Instructor $20 $20
HQO 109 | Basic Operations Techniques/Tractors $45 $100
HQO 119 | Introduction to Earthmoving and Trucks $45 $100
HQO 121 | Rollersand Scrapers $45 $100
HQO 122 | Loaders and Forklifts $45 $100
HQO 211 | Backhoes and Dozers $45 $100
HQO 212 | Intro Crew Leader & Excavators $45 $100
HQO 230 | Motor Graders $45 $100
HQO 232 | Finishing/Grading & Soils $45 $100
HQO 233 | Cranesand Rigging $45 $100
HQO 240 | Adv Loader Operation $45 $100
HQO 241 | Adv Dump Truck Op $45 $100
HQO 242 | Adv Scraper Operation $45 $100
HQO 243 | Adv Backhoe Operation $45 $100
HQO 244 | Adv Excavator Operation $45 $100
HQO 245 | Adv Forklift Operation $45 $100
HQO 246 | Adv Dozer Operation $45 $100
HQO 247 | Adv Motor Grader Op $45 $100
INA ALL | All Industrial Arts Courses $25 $25

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.



, Approved Proposed
CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION (cont’d) 2010-11 2011-12
IMO* ALL | All Industrial Maintenance Courses except
160, 161, 200, 201, 270, 271 $145 $145

P 105 Unified Technical Concepts of Physics | $10 Delete

P 106 | Unified Technica Conceptsof Physies H $10 Delete

TP 150 | Pneumatics/Hydraulics Control Systems $10 Delete
IMO 151 | Electrical Leve | $45
IMO 152 | Electrical Levd 11 $45
IMO 153 | Electrical Leve 111 $45
IMO 154 | Electrical Leve |V $45
IMO 155 | Instrumentation Level | $45
IMO 156 | Instrumentation Level 11 $45
IMO 157 | Instrumentation Level 111 $45
IMO 158 | Instrumentation Level 1V $45
IMO* 160 | Robotics $10 $10
IMO* 161 | Intro to Computer-Aided Mfg. $10 $10
IMO* 200 | Systems Critical Thinking & Control $10 $10
IMO 201 | Introduction to Industrial Maintenance - $75

TP 209 | Industria-Computational-Skills $50 Delete
IMO | 270 | DC Analysisand Lab - $50
IMO 271 | AC Analysisand Lab - $50
REA 190 | Principlesof Real Estate $60 $60
REA 191 | Agency in Read Egtate $15 $15
REA 192 | Contract Writing $15 $15
REA 193 | Commissioner’s Rules $15 $15
REA 194 | Fair Housing $15 $15
REA 195 | Real Estate Legal Issues $15 $15
REA 196 | Exploring the MLS Software | $15 $15
REA 290 | Real Estate Broker Law & Finance $60 $60
WLD 130 | Metal Art $55 $55
WLD 131 | Int. Metal Art $55 $55
WLD 151 | Cutting Process & Welding $55 $55
WLD 152 | SMAW Platel $55 $55
WLD 153 | SMAW Platell $55 $55
WLD 154 | GMAW Plate $55 $55
WLD 155 | GTAW Hate $55 $55
WLD 157 | AWS Levd | Certification $55 $55
WLD 240 | Intro to Plastics $55 $55

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.



, Approved Proposed

CAREER & TECHNICAL EDUCATION (cont’d) 2010-11 2011-12
WLD 241 | Plastic Welding $55 $55
WLD | 242 | Fabrication of Plastics $55 $55
WLD 243 | Pipe Fitting for Plastic $55 $55
WLD 260 | Fit Up/Inspect/Metallurgy $55 $55
WLD 261 | SMAW Open 'V Buitt | $55 $55
WLD 262 | SMAW OpenV Buit |1 $55 $55
WLD | 263 | SMAW Open Root Pipel $55 $75
WLD | 264 | SMAW Open Root Pipell $55 $75
WLD 265 | GMAW Pipe $55 $75
WLD | 266 | FCAW Pipe $55 $75
WLD | 267 | GTAW Pipel $55 $75
WLD 268 | GTAW Pipell $55 $75
WLD 290 | Welding Fabrication $55 $55

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.



Approved Proposed
NURSING AND ALLIED HEALTH 2010-11 2011-12
HES | 109 | Phlebotomy $100 $200
EMT 090 | Heart Saver CPR $10 $10
EMT 095 | Healthcare Provider CPR $10 $10
EMT 104 | Hedthcare Provider CPR & First Aid $10 $10
EMT 120 | Emergency Medical Responder $10 $10
EMT 121 | EMR Refresher $10 $10
EMT 130 | EMT Prep Course $10 $10
EMT 132 | Emergency Medical Training $15 $15
T | e 40 40
EMT 134 | EMTIVC $25 $25
EMT 236 | Advanced Cardiac Life Support $80 $80
EMT 237 | Pediatric Advanced Life Support $80 $80
EMT 238 | ACLS Renewa $50 $50
EMT 239 | PALS Renewal $50 $50
EMT 240 | Basic ECG & Pharmacy $10 $10
EMT 241 | ALS Refresher $150 $150
EMT 244 | Paramedic Training | $600 $600
EMT 245 | Paramedic Training I $600 $600
EMT 250 | Instructor Strategy $20 $20
EMT 251 | Instructor Renewal $10 $10
MDA | 120 | Administrative Ofc Procedures $10 $10
MDA 123 | Clinical Procedures $60 $60
NAT 101 | Nursing Assistant $40 $40
NUR 116 | LPN to RN Transition $200 $200
NUR 121 | Nursing | $200 $200
NUR 122 | Nursing Il $200 $200
NUR 221 | Nursing Il1 $200 $200
NUR 222 | Nursing IV $200 $200
NUR 290 | RN Refresher Course $200 $200
PHT | 101 | Pharmacy Technician $40 $40
TMP 105 | A& Pwith Kinesiology | $20 $20
TMP 106 | A& P with Kinesiology Il $20 $20
TMP | 203 | Applied Therapeutic Massage $25 $25
TMP | 215 | Massage Techniques $25 $25
TMP | 250 | Massage Clinical Practice $50 $50

199-299 and non-credit/special interest courses have variable fees determined by the length and
type of each.




Procedure 2720

CHANGES IN TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT

A. Purpose

A change in terms of employment may consist of a reduction in force, a reduction in work hours, a reduction
in compensation and/or a furlough. Such changes may be necessitated by a variety of circumstances,
including but not limited to changes in or decreases to work requirements, reorganization, a decline in
enrollment, elimination of educational or administrative services or programs, reduced funding or financial

constraints.

B. Applicability

This procedure applies to all employees except for student employees, temporary employees, or
probationary employees.

C. Procedure

1.

If the President determines that a change in terms of employment is necessary, the
President shall make a written recommendation for such a change to the Board. The
recommendation shall identify the employees who would be affected by the recommended
change in terms of employment. The President's recommendation should be designed to
achieve any necessary savings with as little disruption to the College’s mission as possible.

The change in terms of employment that is recommended by the President shall take effect
on the date proposed by the President, which shall be at least ninety (90) days after the
recommendation is submitted by the President to the Board, unless the Board rejects or
modifies the recommendation prior to its effective date.

Employees who would be affected by the proposed change in terms of employment shall
be given prompt notice of the President’'s recommendation. Those employees may submit
written comments concerning the recommendation to the Board. Such comments should
be submitted no later than ten (10) days prior to the meeting at which the Board is to
consider the President’s recommendation.

The Board shall consider the President’'s recommendation at a public meeting. The Board
may allow a reasonable opportunity for public comment concerning the President’s
recommendation. The Board shall approve, modify or reject the President's
recommendation within ninety (90) days from the date it is submitted to the Board by the
President.

D. Procedures Applicable to a Reduction in Force

1.

When a change in terms of employment consists of a reduction in force, during a one (1)
year period from the date when an employee’'s employment was terminated, affected
employees shall be considered on layoff status. Such employees shall be offered
reemployment if suitable positions become available. If positions become available that
could be filled by more than one employee on layoff status, the President shall determine
the order in which reemployment will be offered. An individual who is offered
reemployment will have ten (10) working days within which to accept or decline the offer.
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To be entitled to an offer of reemployment, the affected employee must inform the College's
Human Resources Department of his or her availability for work. The employee must also
keep the Human Resources Department apprised of his or her current mailing address
throughout the one (1) year period. Written notice of any offers of reemployment shall be
sent to the most current address on file for the employee with the College’s Human
Resources Department. After one (1) year following the effective date of a layoff, the
employee will have no further hiring priority rights.

Layoff status will impact the benefits of affected employees in the following ways:
a. Retirement service credit is not accrued during the layoff period.

b. Health benefits are covered to the extent permitted under COBRA regulations. If
the employee elects to continue health coverage, he or she must pay the entire premium
for the insurance, which will include both the employee's and the College's portion of the
premium.

C. Annual or any other leave benefits are not accrued during the layoff period. Annual
leave or any other leave benefits due at the beginning of the layoff period will be paid to the
affected employee at normal paycheck distribution time following the date of layoff.

d. Sick leave is not accrued during the layoff period, but sick leave hours that have
already accrued at the time the employee is placed on layoff status will be retained. Sick
leave benefits may not be used during the layoff period.

e. Employees on layoff status and their eligible dependents may continue to
participate in the employee tuition waiver program during the one (1) year period.

The Human Resources Department will assist employees on layoff status in finding new

employment by providing outplacement counseling and services for three (3) months
following the layoff.
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Agenda Item #7.A.
February 15, 2011

Reguest to Approve Procedure 2755 External
| nvestigators

Recommendation:
Staff recommends the District Governing Board approval of the attached list of external

Investigators to support newly revised Procedure 2755, Due Process.

Summary:

The newly revised Procedure 2755 moves the appointment of the investigative entity
from inside the college to an external individual, promoting fairness for any employee
involved in Due Process. As part of the revision to Procedure 2755, the District
Governing Board is asked to approve, annualy, alist of individuals quaified and
available to conduct hearings under Procedure 2755. The attached list has been prepared
In conjunction with an attorney who has conducted hearings for the college in the past.
The qualifications and availability of these individuals has been verified in conjunction
with this attorney.




Procedure 2755
DISCIPLINE OF EMPLOYEES
I. SCOPE OF PROCEDURE
A. Applicability
1. This procedure governs employee discipline that consists of a suspension without pay for

longer than ten (10) days or dismissal from employment. This procedure applies to all non-
probationary employees who have a contract of employment for a specified term with the College.

2. Deans, directors, the controller and administrators may be dismissed from employment at
any time without cause, although any contractual obligations to such individuals must be honored in
the event of such a dismissal without cause. This procedure applies to such individuals in instances
where the President proposes to suspend the individual without pay for longer than ten (10) days for
cause, or to dismiss the individual from employment for cause.

B. Grounds for Discipline

Discipline may be imposed for any conduct that is inconsistent with an employee’s duties, including
but not limited to:

1. Unsatisfactory job performance, which includes incompetence in classroom instruction in the
case of faculty members

2. Inefficiency

3. Neglect of duty

4. Insubordination

5. Dishonesty

6. Use of alcohol in violation of College policy

7. Current illegal use of drugs

8. Absence without leave

9. Conviction of a felony, or of a crime that would be a felony if committed in Arizona

10. Conviction of a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude or behavior involving moral turpitude
which adversely reflects on the College or affects the employee's suitability for continued
employment

11. Discourteous treatment of coworkers, students or the general public
12. Misuse, unauthorized use or abuse of college property or funds

13. Unsatisfactory attendance



14. Loss of required qualifications, license or certification including, but not limited to, any third
party or agency approval required by the employee's contract or contracts between the College
and such third parties or agencies

15. Falsification of any document, including the employment application
16. lllegal discrimination
17. Sexual or other prohibited harassment

18. Habits or conduct which risk the safety or health of persons in the working environment or risk
damage to property

19. Violation of any portion of college policy or procedure

II. PROCEDURE FOR DISCIPLINE

A. Notice of Intent

1. Before imposing discipline, the President shall provide the employee with written notice of
the President’s intent to impose discipline. The notice shall be delivered in person or sent to the
employee by first-class mail.

2. The notice shall identify the discipline that is contemplated. The notice shall also identify
the specific conduct that is the basis for the proposed discipline, including the names of
witnesses. The notice shall identify any policies or laws that the employee is alleged to have
violated. The notice shall be sufficiently specific that the employee will be able to prepare a
defense.

3. Once the President has given notice of intent to impose discipline, neither the employee
nor the Administration shall discuss the merits of the matter with any Board member except in
accordance with this procedure.

B. Request for Hearing

The employee may request a hearing with regard to the proposed discipline. The request must be
in writing and must be received by the President within ten days after the employee receives the
notice of intent to impose discipline. If a timely request for a hearing is not received, the President’s
decision to impose discipline shall be final.

C. Assignment of Hearing Officer

1. When an employee submits a timely request for a hearing, a hearing officer shall be
appointed. The Board shall approve a list of acceptable hearing officers on an annual basis.
Hearing officers shall be assigned from the approved list by the Human Resources Director, who
shall choose the first available hearing officer on the list according to a set rotation. In the event
Board has not approved a list of acceptable hearing officers, a hearing officer shall be appointed by
the Board.

2. Once a hearing officer has been appointed, all issues shall be directed to the hearing
officer.

3. The Administration and the employee must raise any objection to the hearing officer's



impartiality, or to the manner of appointing the hearing officer, within five (10) days of becoming
aware of the grounds for such objections. Such objections shall be raised with the hearing officer.
Any objections not raised in a timely manner shall be waived.

D. Hearing on Proposed Discipline

1. The hearing officer shall complete the hearing within thirty (30) days after being appointed.
Continuances beyond that deadline shall not be granted except under extraordinary circumstances.

2. An audio recording of the hearing shall be made unless the parties agree to a different
approach to making a record.

3. The Administration shall have the burden of showing, by a preponderance of the evidence,
that the proposed discipline is warranted.

4, Both sides may present evidence at the hearing. Both sides may be represented by
counsel at their own expense.

5. Within ten (10) days after completing the hearing, the hearing officer shall prepare a written
recommendation to the President that includes relevant findings of fact and conclusions of law.

E. Decision by the President and Appeal to the Board

1. As soon as is practical after the President receives the hearing officer's recommended
decision, the President shall render a decision with regard to the proposed discipline.

2. The employee may appeal the President’s decision to the Board by providing written notice
of the employee’s desire to take such an appeal to the President within ten (10) days after receiving
the President’s decision. If no timely notice is received, the President’s decision shall be final.

3. The Board shall consider and decide any appeal as soon as is practical. The Board may,
in its discretion, allow the Administration and the employee to present written and/or oral arguments
regarding the proposed discipline and the hearing officer’s findings. The Board shall defer to the
hearing officer’s findings of fact unless the employee or the Administration demonstrates that a
finding is clearly erroneous. The Board’s decision shall be final.

4. When the President’s decision is to dismiss an employee, the employee shall receive no
further salary or benefits from the date of the President’s decision, other than salary and benefits to
which the employee is already entitled. If the employee appeals and the Board does not uphold the
President’s decision to dismiss the employee, the employee shall receive salary and benefits for the
period of time between the President’s decision and the Board’s decision.



Agenda Item #7.B.
February 15, 2011

Reguest to Accept the Single Audit Reporting
Package for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Recommendation:
Staff recommends acceptance of the Single Audit Reporting Package for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2010.

Summary:
Copies of the Single Audit Reporting Package have been received by the Office of the

Auditor General. The audit results are an Unqualified Opinion with no findings. The
Independent auditors did not identify any weaknesses and found no instances of non-
compliance or other matters that required reporting in the audit of the financial
statements. Additionally, the independent auditors did not identify any deficienciesin
internal control over compliance with requirements of federal programs.

The 2010 audit was again completed well ahead of the submission deadline established
by the US Department of Education, March 31, 2011. The audit was submitted to the US
Department of Education on January 27, 2011. Many people across many departments
were involved in the completion of the audit, including Bookstore, Business Office,
Computer Services, Financia Aid, Information Services, Maintenance, Payroll, and
Records and Registration. The key facilitator of the effort was Maderia Ellison, Director
of Financial Services. The successful audit process was accomplished during a period
when the Controller position was vacant. The efforts of Ms. Ellison and the Business
Office staff are particularly remarkable.

The independent auditors, Heinfeld, Meech & Co. and to the Office of the Auditor
General continue to provide timely and professional work.

The preliminary version of the financia statements and findings will be reviewed by the
Audit Committeein April.

Staff will review the audit package at the Board meeting and will be prepared to respond
to Board questions.




HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

January 25, 2011

To the Governing Board
Navajo County Community College District

We have audited the financial statements of Navajo County Community College District for the
year ended June 30, 2010, and have issucd our report thereon dated December 3, 2010.
Professional standards require that we provide you with the tollowing information related to our
audit.

Our Responsibilitics under Auditing Standards Generallv Accepted in the United States of
America, Government Auditing Standards, and OMR Circular A-133

As stated 1n our engagement letter our responsibilily, as desertbed by professional standards. is to
express opinions about whether the firancial statements prepared by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in all marerial respects, o conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audi of the financial statements does
not relieve you or management of vour resonsibilities.

In planning and performing our zudit, we considered MNavajo County Commumty College
District’s internal congel over financial reporting in order fo defermine our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide
assurance on the intemal control over financial reporting. We also considered internal control
aver compliance with requiremients that could have a direct and material effect on major federal
programs in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 0piaion
on comphiance and to test and report on internal contrel over compliance ;v accordance with
OMB Circular A-133.

As part of obtaining reasonable asswrance about whether Navajo County Community College
District’s financial stateruents are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with cerlain provisions -of laws, regulativas, contracts. and grants, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material ¢ffect on the determination. of firancial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion oni compliance with- these srovisions was nol an
objective of our audit. Also in accordance with OMB Ciccular A-133, we examined, on a tesl
basis, evidence abour Navajo County Community College District’s comphance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the US. Office of Muragement and Budgel (OMB)
Circular A-133 Complianze Supplerment apphcabie to each of its maror tedaral programs for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on Navajo County Community College Disirict’s compliance
with those requirecments. While aur aud:t provides a reasonable basis for cur opinton, it does not
provide a legal determination of Navajo County Connmunity Ceollege District’s compliance with
those requirements.

3033 N. Central Ave., Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Tel: (602) 277-9449  Fax: (602) 277-9297



Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to
you in our engagement letter and communicated to management throughout the planning and
performance of the audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting poticies. The
significant accounting policies used by Navajo County Community Colege District are
described in Note 1 to the financial statements.” Management has informed us there were no new
accounting policies adopted during the year, nor were there any changes in the application of
existing policies. We noted no transactions entered into by the Navajo County Community
College District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.
There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a
different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral,
consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate tevel
of management. During the course of the audit we did not identify any uncorrected
misstatements and/or audit adjustments that we deemed to be material.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated December 5, 2010.
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion™ on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Navajo County Community
College District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant tc check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge. there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Responsibility for Fraud

It 1s important for both management and the members of the Board to recognize their role in
preventing, deterring, and detecting fraud. One common misconception is that the auditors are
responsible for detecting fraud. Auditors are required to plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements do not include material misstatements caused
by fraud. Unfortunately most frauds which occur in an organization do not meet this threshold.

The attached document is provided as a courtesy and provides some basic steps that should be
taken to help prevent fraud from occurring in your organization. Some of these steps may
already be in place, others may not. Not even the most well-designed internal controls or
procedures can prevent and detect all forms of fraud. However, an awareness of fraud related
factors, as well as the active involvement by management and the members of the Board in
setting the proper “tone at the top”, increases the likelihood that fraud will be prevented, deterred
and detected.

The information in this letter is intended solely for the use of the members of the Board and
management of Navajo County Community College District and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Hewgetdd uechd C0.7C

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants
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Steps Management Should Take in Preventing the Occurrence of Fraud

First and Foremost, acknowledge that fraud can and does occur — Fraud occurs in
organizations often because management provides the perpetrator with a substantial amount of
authority and a high degree of trust. Consequently, management performs limited or no review
of the individual’s work. Recognizing that fraud can occur in any organization, including your
own, 1s the first step in prevention.

Clearly communicate to employees the behavior that is expected of them — Believe it or not,
ignorance has been cited as a common cause of fraud. Some employees have been trained to
commit fraudulent acts without knowing what they were doing, just assuming that "that’s the
way it’s done",

Take strong actionm against employees who commit fraud — Call the police or other law
enforcement agency and press charges. Failing to do so sends a message to other employees that
management doesn’t take fraud seriously.

Provide employees an opportunity to report the occurrence of fraud or other abuse
anonymously — In a recent survey, one in five employees said they were personally aware of the
occurrence of fraud in the workplace. Eighty percent said they would be willing to report fraud
if they did not have to identify themselves. Management can establish a fraud hotline,
"suggestion boxes," or other means to enable employees to bring the occurrence of fraud to its
attention without requiring employees to give their names.

Conduct your own activities on a high ethical level — Employees will follow the lead of the
governing body and management, whether that lead is ethical or not. More than what is said or
included in a policy manual, the actions of the governing body and management establish
behavioral norms.

Be alert to changes in employee attitudes, behavior and lifestyles — Because of day-to-day
contact, management is in the best position to observe the unusual — attitudes that are hostile or
defensive toward management or the organization in general, changes in behavior that are
inconsistent with employees’ normal disposition or lifestyles that are not reasonable based on the
employees’ level of compensation. Matters that may be of particular concemn include:

s Indications of dissatisfaction with compensation, or a lack of promotion

¢ Indications of gambling

¢ Indications of drug use or excessive use of alcohol

¢ Indications of financial distress

o Indications of severe stress



Steps Management Should Take in Preventing the Occurrence of Fraud

Perform thorough background checks on all new employees — Call former employers and
educational institutions for verification of previous employment and education. Beware of

"gaps" in employment or educational history. Consider obtaining a credit report (if authorized
by the candidate) before employment.

Require uninterrupted vacations for all employees and establish a schedule of rotation of
employee respousibilities — More than just good management, rotation of duties provides a
strong disincentive to commit fraud. In addition, it provides an opportunity to discover fraud that
has already occurred.

Establish a budget — The governing body/management should establish an operating budget and
monitor actual results on a regular basis. Any significant variances should be investigated.

Monitor exception reports — Unprocessed transactions should be carefully examined for
propriety. This includes revenues, expenses, purchasing and payrol] transactions.

Control the mail —The mail should be picked up by an employee who has no responsibilities
related to the handling or recording of deposits, accounts receivable records or revenues. All
remittances should be directed to a post office box. Limiting access to the organization’s mail is
essential in preventing the unauthorized negotiation of cash receipts.

Control the bank statements ~ Similarly, the bank statements should be picked up by an
employee who has no related responsibilities and delivered to the management or other person
independent of the reconciliation process. This person should review the contents of the
statements before they are reconciled. Specific items to be alert to include:

e Missing checks

o Checks issued out of sequence

¢ Unknown payees

o Checks that appear to have been altered

e Checks not signed by authorized signatories

e Other unusual items
Account for sequences — Whether it is checks, invoices, credit memoranda, receiving reports,
shipping documents, or other pre-numbered items, all sequences should be accounted for.

Voided documents should be defaced to prevent unauthorized use and retained to complete
sequences.



Steps Management Should Take in Preventing the Occurrence of Fraud

Control general journal entries — Management should either make or personally review and
approve all general joumal entries. Supporting documentation should be reviewed before
approving general journal entries. In particular, the following items should be investigated:

e Eatries made to unrelated accounts
e Lntries made to receivables or revenues at or near the close of a period

e [Latries made by persons whose responsibilities are not consistent with the accounts
being adjusted

Obtain reasonable fidelity bond coverage — If the unthinkable occurs, insurance coverage is
the most likely means of recovery of amounts misappropriated. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed periodically for adequacy.

Evaluate the internal control framework — Lastly, evaluate he internal control framework of
your organization. One particular useful evaluation tool is available in the Committee of
Sponsoring Organization’s (COSO) guidance on internal control over financial reporting for
smaller organizations. This guidance may be obtained through the AICPA’s website at
www,cpa2biz.com (product #990017).

© Audit Litigation, Training and Efficiency Consulting, Inc. 2008
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3033 N. Central Avenue, Suite 300
HEINFELD, MEECH & CO,, P.C. Phoenix, Arizona 85012

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Tel (602) 277-9449
Fax (602) 277-9297

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditor General of the State of Arizona

The Governing Board of
Navajo County Community College District

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and
discretely presented component unit of Navajo County Community College District (District), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the District’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the District’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the
discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the discretely presented component unit, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely presented component unit were
not audited by the other auditors in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
business-type activities and discretely presented component unit of Navajo County Community
College District, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. '

TUCSON s PHOENIX » FLAGSTAFF
www.heinfeldmeech.com



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 9 is not a required part of the
basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it.

QOur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 5, 2010, on our consideration of the Navajo County Community College District’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

Relufetd, meeeh 4o, P.0.

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

December 35,2010



Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2010

This discussion and analysis prepared by the District’s management introduces the basic
financial statements and provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the year
ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements, which
immediately follow.

Basic Financial Statements

The District’s annual financial statements are presented in accordance with U.S, generally
accepted accounting principles prescribed by the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), the authoritative body for establishing Generally Acceptcd Accounting Principles
(GAAP) for state and local governments, including public institutions of higher education.
These standards permit public colleges and universities to use the guidance for special-purpose
governments engaged in business-type activities. The standards allow for the presentation of the
District’s financial activity in a consolidated, single-column, entity-wide format. This format is
similar to the type of financial statements typical of a business enterprise or not-for-profit
organization. The basic financial statements consist of the following:

The Statement of Net Assets reflects the financial position of the District at June 30, 2010. It
shows the various assets owned or controlled related liabilities and other obligations, and the
various categories of net assets. Net assets is an accounting concept defined as total assets less
total liabilities, and as such, represent institutional equity or ownership in the District’s total
assets.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets reflects the results of
operations and other changes for the year ended June 30, 2010. It shows the various revenues
and expenses, both operating and nonoperating, reconciling the beginning net assets amount to
the ending net assets amount, which is shown on the Statement of Net Assets described above.

The Statement of Cash Flows reflects the inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents for
the year ended June 30, 2010. It shows the various cash activities by type, reconciling the
beginning cash and cash equivalents amount to the ending cash and cash equivalents amount,
which is shown on the Starement of Net Assets described above. In addition, this statement
reconciles cash flows from operating activities to operating loss on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, und Changes in Net Assets described above.

Financial Highlights and Analysis

Consistent with its mission, the District creates, supports and promotes lifelong learning. Major
funding sources supporting all functions include property taxes, state appropriations, governiment
grants and contracts, and tuition and fees. The District may exercise primary and secondary
property tax levy authority for generation of funds used for operating, capital equipment, and
debt retirement purposes.

The condensed financial information below highlights the main categories of the Statement of
Net Assets. Assets are distinguished as either current or noncurrent. Current assets are resources
available to meet the District’s operating needs. Other liabilities are made up of accounts
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Yecar Ended June 30, 2010

payable, accrued payroil and employee benefits. Net assets are divided into three categories
reflecting the broad characteristics of institutional equity in the assets of the District. In addition
to the District’s capital assets, the District holds resources that external parties have restricted for
specific programs or purposes. The remaining net assets are unrestricted but are dedicated to the
District’s primary mission. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the District’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

Condensed Financial Information
The following is a listing of condensed financial information for the District as of June 30, 2010

and 2009:

Condensed Statement of Net Assets - Primary Government
June 30, 2010 June 30, 2009 % Change

Asgsets:
Current assets $ 26,368,745 § 17,193,921 53%
Noncurrent assets, other than
capital assets 1,144 810 1,842,680 -38%
Capital assets, net 32,314,878 33,252,059 -3%
Total assets 59,828,433 52,288,660 14%
Liabilities:
Other liabilities 989,254 995,390 -1%
Long-term liabililies 311,160 338,933 -8%
Total liabilities 1,300,414 1,334,323 -3%
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 32,314,878 33,252,059 3%
Restricted net assets 716,192 750,289 5%
Unresiricted nict assets 25,496,949 16,951,989 50%
Total net assets 3 58,528,019 § 50,954,337 14%

Current assets Increased $9.2 million. The increase is primarily related to cash/investments held
with local banks and the state and county treasurer, which increased $10.6 million. A reduction
of $1.3 million in net accounts receivables, which returned to normal levels after a State TFiscal
Stabilization Fund receivable in 2009, and reduction in inventories of $500,000 provided most of
the offset.

Noncurrent assets, other than capital assets, decreased $700,000 primarily due to reductions in
both student and third party accounts receivables, which dropped from $1 million to $400,000.
Restricted investments and secondary property taxes receivable also decreased.

Unrestricted net assets increased $8.5 million due to a net increase from operations of the
College. The increase during a period of revenue reductions occurred as a result of system-wide
expenditure cuts. The increase in unrestricted net assets will allow the College to continue
providing quality services to students and communities as the funding climate remains uncertain,



Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2010

The condensed financial information on the next page highlights the main categories of the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Generally, revenues generated by
the District from exchange transactions are considered operating revenues. Other revenues such
as state appropriations, property taxes, and certain govermnment grants are considered
nonoperating revenues. In compliance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
scholarships applied to tuition and fees are recorded as an offset to operating revenues, instead of
being reported as an expense to the District.

Depreciation expense is recorded in accordance with the adoption of the economic resources
measwrement focus. The construction and acquisition of capital assets, although budgeted and
tracked as expenditures in the accounting system, are not reflecled as expenses in these
staternents. Such transactions are instead capitalized and reported as assets, with the systematic
depreciation of the costs expensed over the useful lives of the assets constructed or acquired.

The District shows an operating loss because the three largest revenue sources, property taxes,
state appropriations, and government grants are considered nonoperating revenues. Please refer
to the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Note 1), which directly follows the
presentation of the basic financial staterments, for a description of the differences between
operating and nonoperating revenues.



Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Assets - Primary Government
Year Ended June 30

2010 2009 % Change
Revenues:
Operating
Tuition and fees (net of
scholarship allowance) $ 3,062,113 § 2,824,047 8%
Government contracts 1,868,359 2,058,901 9%
Private grants and contracts 150,763 529,310 -15%
Bookstore income (net of
scholarship allowance) 701,123 803,661 -13%
Other 297,825 247,370 20%
Total operating revenues 6,380,183 6,463,289 -1%
Nanoperating
Property taxcs 11,353,707 12,321,619 -8%
State appropriutions 10,214,000 9,807,911} 4%
Government grants 4,956,184 5,083,645 -3%
Share of state sales taxes 422,737 453,912 7%
Investment income 130,851 257,027 -49%
Total nonoperating revenues 27,077,519 27,924,114 -1%
Total revenues 33,457,702 34,387,403 3%
Expenses:
Operating 25,884,021 28,343,785 -9%
Nonoperating - 67,163 -100%
Total expenses 25,884,021 28,410,948 9%
Income before other revenues,
expenses, gains, or l0sscs 7,573,682 5,976,455 27%
Increase in net assets 7,573,682 5,976,455 27%
Total net assets, July 1 50,954,337 44,977,882 13%
Tota) net assets, June 30 $ 58,528,019 § 50,954,337 15%

Operating revenues remained relatively stable with only a 1% decrease, or $83,000, from the
prior year. Decreases in government and private contracts were nearly offset by increases in
tuition and fees. Government contracts decreased primarily as a result of lower Northern Arizona
Vocational Institute of Technology (NAVIT) enrollment. While private scholarships increased
18 percent, private grants decreased nearly $132,000. Bookstore gross income was nearly
unchanged, however increases in book scholarship awards increased for a net reduction in
revenue.

Nonoperating revenues decrcased 3 percent, or necarly $850,000, from the prior year. Reductions
occurred in nearly all revenue categories. The decrease in property taxes revenues was
anticipated as the secondary property tax to fund repayment of general obligation bonds was
retired. Government grants was down $127,000 due to decreased funding from the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Recovery Act). The funding fro 't = ecovery Act
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2010

was distributed through the State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) — State Grants, Recovery Act
(Education Stabilization Fund), and diminished $880,000 from the prior year. Other federal and
state grants were down $620,000. The reduction in government grant funding was offset by a
$1.4 million increase in Pell awards to students. Investment income continued to decrease as a
result of low interest rates. The singular exception to revenue downturn was an increase in State
equalization funding as the State budget authorized adherence to the statutory formula. Even
with an 8.5 percent cut in State operating aid and the complete elimination of State capital aid,
the net increase in state appropriations totaled approximately $400,000.

2010 2009 % Chauge
Operating Expenges
Educational and general:
Instruction $ 5,067,801l $ 10,565,902 -14%
Pubtic service 14,178 14,126 0%
Academic support 985,173 785,099 25%
Student services 3,750,620 3,364,710 11%
Institutional support 7,151,218 7,814,683 -8%
Operation and maintenance
of plant 1,599,258 2,037,450 -22%
Scholarships 605,337 980,151 -38%
Auxiliary enterprises 1,270,886 1,547,548 ~-18%
Depreciation 1,435,550 1,234,076 16%
Total operating expenses 25,884,021 28,343,785 -9%
Nonoperating Expenses
Interest expense on debt - 67,163 -100%
Total nonoperating expenses - 67,163 -100%
Total Expenses $ 25,884,021 § 28,410,948 -9%
Auxiliary Operating Expenses by Category

Depreciation

Scholarships 6%

2%
Opcration and
maintenance
of plant
6%

Academic support

Institutional support
4%

28%

Student services
14%



Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Operating expenses were reduced by a substantial amount, down 9% or $2.5 million. The
District instituted cost containment injtiatives in FY09 in response to the state budget cuts.
Additional cost containment injtiatives were added in FY10, including Jayoffs, a hiring and wage
freeze, closure and consolidation of facilities. As all arcas of the District have been impacted, the
District is making every effort to maintain comprehensive and quality services to the students
and communities in the service area.

Nonoperating expenses were eliminated as general obligation bonds and certificates of
participation were retired.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets are defined as those items costing over $5,000 and which have a normal useful life
of more than one year. Implementation of the Master Technology Plan continues and will
incorporate additional projects identified as Presidential Initiatives, including dedication of
significant resources to sustaining technology and implementing web conferencing for delivery
of coursework. While previous strategic planning documents called for the development of a
Master Facilities Plan, this concept has been eliminated due to ongoing budget constraints and
zero state capital aid. The District will continue to focus on maintenance and repair of existing
facilities and related infrastructure. Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be
found in Note 3 to the basic financial statements.

The District currently has no long-term debt and does not anticipate acquiring new debt. General
obligation bonds issued in 2003 and certificates of participation issued in 1994 have been fully
retired.

Current Factors Having Probable Future Financial Significance
The District has four primary revenues sources: property taxes, state appropriations, government
grants and contracts, and tuition.

Property taxes continue to be levied at the maximum rate allowed by statute; however, with the
downturn in the economy collection of assessed property taxes may become more difficult.

Funding from the state continues to decreasc and the District expects a precipitous drop in state
funding in the future. In FY10, operating state aid decreased an additional 8.5% and capital state
aid was not funded again. The District did qualify for equalization aid of $6,624,000 in FY10,
which was funded according to the statutory formula; however, future equalization funding is in
jeopardy as the funding formulas for higher education in the state is reevaluated.

Program funding from external sources such as federal and local grants and contracts, along with
community and business partnerships will become more important to the District. The District
has been competitive in receiving Title III grants from the U.S. Department of Education and has
been awarded an Equitable Access to Gainful Learning Experiences (EAGLE) grant for the next
five years totaling $1.9 million. The District is pursuing additional grant and partnership



Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Ycar Ended June 30, 2010

opportunities while recognizing the increasingly competitive environment and constriction of
available resources.

The District will continue to evaluate its tuition and fee structure and shift financial
responsibility for education to students in the form of increased tuition and fees. However, the
District 1s limited in the amount of increases it can implement based on the demographics of its
service area. The District’s service area covers approximately 21,158 square miles and is one of
the poorest, most remote, and least populated of both Arizona and the United States. In-state
tution was increased 8%, or $4, to $52 per credit hour. The District continues to offer one of the
lowest tuition rates in the State. A continuing demand for additional services and programs,
along with tncreasing dissatisfaction with class availability and service reductions, must be
balanced with anticipated rcductions in funding,

National and state reform initiatives will demand greater accountability and resources needed to
provide required information, Concern for the future fiscal health of the District prompted the
addition of a new Board financial condition policy setting budget and cash management
guidelines.

The District’s Nursing Program achieved initial accreditation from the National League for
Nursing Accrediting Commission, recognizing outstanding performance and will provide
increased opportunities for students.

The District received continued accreditation for ten years from the Higher Learning
Commission. An extremely successful October 2009 accreditation visit followed an intensive
period of self study and resulted in high praise from the team of peer reviewers. Reaffirmation
of accreditation will allow the District to continne to advance its mission to create, support and
promote lifelong learning. The Higher Leamning Commission is in process of restructuring the
accreditation pathway, which will demand immediate attention to several critical strategic
initiatives: address online processes, quality checks and compensation issues; plan for
Assessment of Student Services Support of Student Learning; dedicate resource to sustain
network, technology and instructional support resources; implement web conferencing for
delivery of coursework.

Request for Information

This discussion and analysis is designed to provide a general overview of the Navajo County
Community College District’s finances for all those with an interest in such matters. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in the basic financial statements or requests for
additional information should be addressed to Administrative Services, Northland Pioneer
College, PO Box 610, Holbrook, Arizona 86025,

Separately issued financial statements are issued for Northland Pioneer College Foundation, a
discretely presented component unit of Navajo County Community College District. Complete
financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from Northland Pioneer College
Foundation, P.O. Box 610, Holbrook, Arizona 86025.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Statement of Net Assets - Primary Government
June 30, 2010

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)
Accounts
Property taxes
Student loans, current portion

Inventories

Prepaid items

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Property taxes receivable
Student loans receivable, long term portion
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and employee benefits
Deposits held in custody for others
Current portion of compensated absences payable
Total current liabilitics
Noucurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences payable
Total noncurrent tiabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets

Invested in capital assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendable - endowments
Expendable:
Restricted investinent for NATC
Scholarships, grants and coniracts
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Busioess - Type
Activities

2,433,254
20,477,064

811,048
588,778
91,489
905,460
1,061,652

26,368,745

12,414
703,778
19,247
409,371
709,291
31,605,587

33,459,688

59,828,433

641,731
309,927

37,596
233,370

1,222,624

77,790

77,790

1,300,414

32,314,878
12,414
477,769

226,009
25,496,949

$

58,528,019




Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer Collcge)
Statement of Financial Position - Component Unit
June 30, 2010

Northland Pionecr College Foundation

Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,825
Restricted cash-savings 75,357
Accounts receivable 1,745
Investments:
Certificates of deposit 42350
Real estate 18,000
Prepaid expense 8,716
Utility deposit 1,705
Land and building, net of
accumulated depreciation 36,250
Total assets $ 216,948
Liabilitics and Net Assets:
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 247
Credit card payable 2,344
Total liabilities 2,591
Net Assets
Unrestricted 139,007
Temporarily rcstricted 21,681
Permanently restricted 53,669
Total net assets 214,357
Total liabilities and net assets $ 216,948

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Primary Government
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Business - Type

Operating revenues: Activities
Tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowance of §1,100,276 $ 3,062,113
Government contracts 1,868,359
Private grants and contracts 450,763
Bookstore income, net of scholarship allowance of $429,589 701,123
Other sales and services 242998
Other 54,827

Total operating revenucs 6,380,183

Operating expenses:
Educational and general:

Instruction 9,067,801
Public service 14,178
Academic support 985,173
Student services 3,750,620
Institutional support 7,151,218
Operation and maintenance of plant 1,599,258
Scholarships 609,337
Auxiliary enterprises 1,270,886
Depreciation 1,435,550
Total operating expenses 25,884,021
Operating loss (19,503,838)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Property taxes 11,353,707
State appropriations 10,214,000
Government grants 4,956,184
Share of state sales taxes 422,737
Investment income 130,891
Total nonoperating revenues 27,077,519
Income before other revenues, expenses,
gains, or losses 7,573,682
Increase in net assets 7,573,682
Total net assets, July 1, 2009 50,954,337
Total net assets, June 30, 2010 3 58,528,019

Sce accompanying notcs to financial statements.
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Navajo County Community College District

(Northland Pioneer College)

Statement of Activitics - Component Unit

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Northland Pioneer College Foundation

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Support and Revenue:
Special events revenue, net $ 4,738 § - 3 - 3 4,738
Contributions 11,511 - 11,605 23,116
Interest income 957 574 56 1,587
Total support and revenue 17,206 574 11,661 29,441
Net Assets Released from Restrictions:
Satisfaction of donor restrictions 3,045 (3,045) - -
Total Support, Revenue and Net
Assets Released from Restrictions 20,251 (2,471) 11,661 29,441
Expenses:
Program services 40,176 - - 40,176
Support services 21,939 - - 21,939
Total expenses 62,1)5 - - 62,115
Increase(decrease) in net assets (41,864) (2,471) 11,661 (32,674)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year (Restated) 180,871 24,152 42,008 247,031
Net Assets, End of Year 3 139,007 $ 21,681 § 53,669 § 214,357

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioncer College)
Statement of Cash Flows - Primary Government
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:

Tuition and fees

Government contracts

Bookstore receipts

Other receipts

Payments to suppliers and providers of goods and services
Payments to employees

Payments to students for scholarships and loans

Net cash used for operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing acitivities:

Property taxes

State appropriations

Grants

Share of state sales taxes

Deposits held in custody for others disburscd

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Property taxes
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2009
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2010

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Business - Type

Activities

$

4,739,197
2,319,122
1,219,770
297,825
(8,770,688)

(15,199,079)

(609,337)

(16,003,190)

11,272,958
10,214,000
4,956,184
422,737
1,574

26,867,453

78,606
(498,369)

(419,763)

130,891

130,891

10,575,392
13,051,118

23,626,510

(continued)



Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)

Statement of Cash Flows - Primary Government - Concluded
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used for operating activitics:

Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used for operating activities:

Business - Type
Activities

$  (19,503,838)

Depreciation 1,435,550
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in:
Accounts payable 40,933
Prepaid items (95,150)
Decrease in:
Accounts receivable 1,096,990
Accrued payroll and employee benefits (48,643)
Student loans receivable 580,094
Inventories 518,647
Compensated absences payable (27,773)

Net cash used for operating activities

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents,
as presented on the Statement of Net Assets:

$  (16,003,190)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,433,254
Investments 20,477,064
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 12,414
Investments 703,778
Total cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2010 $ 23,626,510

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policics

The accounting policies of the Navajo County Community College District conform to generally
accepted accounting principles applicable to public institutions engaged only in business-type
activities adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A. Reporting Entity

The District is a special-purpose government that is governed by a scparately elected governing
body. It is legally separate and fiscally independent of other state and local governments. The
accompanying financial statements present the activities of the District (the primary government)
and its discrete]y presented component unit, the Northland Pioneer College Foundation
(Foundation).

The Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization. It acts primarily as a fund-raising
organization that receives gifts and bequests, administers those resources, and disburses
payments to or on behalf of the District for scholarships and other educational purposes.
Although the District does not control the timing or amount of the receipts from the Foundation,
the Foundation’s restricted resources can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the District or its
constituents. Consequently, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the District and is
discretely presented in the District’s financial staternents.

For financial reporting purposes, the Foundation fotllows the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) statements for not-for-profit organizations. As such, certain revenue recognition
criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and
presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial
information included in the District’s financial report. Accordingly, those financial statements
have been reported on separate pages following the respective counterpart financial statements of
the District. For financial reporting purposes, only the Foundation’s statement of financial
position and activities are included in the District’s financial statements as required by generally
accepted accounting principles for public colleges and universities. The Foundation has a Junc
30 year end.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Foundation distributcd $27,298 to and on behalf of the
District for both restricted and unrestricted purposes. Complete finaocial statements of the
Foundation can be obtained from the Northiand Pioneer College Foundation, P. O. Box 610,
Holbrook, Arizona 86025-0610.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

B, Basis of Presentation and Accounting

The basic financial statements include a statement of net assets; a statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets; and a statement of cash flows.

A statement of net assets provides information about the assets, liabilities, and net assets of the
District at the end of the year. Assets and liabilities arc classified as either current or noncurrent.
Net assets are classified according to external donor restrictions or availability of assets to satisfy
District obligations. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt represents the value of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less any outstanding debt incurred to acquire or
construct the assets. Nonexpendable restricted nct assets are gifts that have been received for
endowment purposes, the corpus of which cannot be expended. Expendable restricted net assets
represent grants, contracts, gifts, and other resources that have been externally restricted for
specific purposes. Unrestricted net assets include all other net assets, including those that have
been designated by management to be used for other than general operating purposes.

A statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets provides information about the
District’s financial activities during the year. Revenues and expenses are classified as either
operating or nonoperating, and all changes in net assets are reported, including capital
contributions and additions to endowments. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from exchange transactions. Accordingly, revenues such as tuition and bookstore charges are
considered to be operating revenues. Other revenues, such as property taxes, state appropriations
and certain government grants are not generated from exchange transactions and are considered
to be nonoperating revenues. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. Other expenses, such as interest
expense on debt, are considered to be nonoperating cxpenses.

A statement of cash flows provides information about the District’s sources and uses of cash and
cash equivalents during the year. Increases and decreases in cash and cash equivalents are
classified as operating, noncapital financing, capijtal financing, or investing.

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at
the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Property
taxes are recognized in the year for which they are levied. State appropriations are recognized as
revenue in the year in which the appropriation is first made available for use. Grants and
donations are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. The District eliminates all internal activity.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

The District’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incwred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

The District follows FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989; Accounting Principles Board Opinions; and Accounting Research Bulleting, unless those
pronouncements conflict with GASB pronouncements. The District has chosen the option not to
follow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1985.

C. Cash and Investments

For the statement of cash flows, the District’s cash and cash cquivalents are considered to be
cash on hand, demand deposits, cash and investments held by the County Treasurer, investments
in the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool, aand highly liquid investments.

D. Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.

E. Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported at actual cost, or estimated historical cost if historical records are not
available., Donated assets are reported at estimated fair value at the time received.

Capitaljzation thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the
capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets
reported in the financial statements are as follows:

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life
Land $ 5,000 Not applicable Not applicable
Buildings 5,000 straight-line 10 - 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 5,000 straight-line 40 years
Equipment 5,000 straight-line 5 —10 years
Library books All straight-line 10 years
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

F. Investment Income

Investment income is comprised of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of
applicable investments.

G. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences consist of vacation and sick leave earned by employees based on services
already rendered.

Employees may accumulate up to 224 hours of vacation depending on years of service, but any
vacation hours in excess of the maximum amount that are unused at the end of August are
forfeited. Upon termination of employment, all unused and unforfeited vacation benefits are
paid to employees. Accordingly, vacation benefits are accrued as a liability in the financial
Statements.

Generally, sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and are cumulative but do not vest
with employees. Therefore, a liability for sick leave benefits is not accrued in the financial
statements,

H. Scholarship Allowances

A scholarship allowance is the difference between the stated charge for goods and services
provided by the District and the amount that is paid by the student or third parties making
payments on behalf of the student. Accordingly, some types of student financial aid, such as Pell
grants and scholarships awarded by the District, are considered to be scholarship allowances.
These allowances are netted against tuition and fces revenues, and bookstore income fees in the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets.

Note 2 — Deposits and Investments

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) requires the District to deposit special tax levies for the
District’s maintenance or capital outlay with the County Treasurer. The statutes do not require
the District to deposit other public monies in its custody with the County Treasurer; however, the
District must act as a prudent person dealing with the property of another when making
mvestment decisions about those monies. The statutes do not include any requirements for credit
risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk or foreign currency risk
for the District’s investments.
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(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 2 — Deposits and Investments - Continued

At June 30, 2010, the District’s deposits and investments, including restricted cash consisted of
the following:

Reported on the Statement of
Net Assets as:

Cash and
Cash
Equivalents Investments

Deposits:

Cash on hand 5 11,632

Cash in bank 2,421,622

Restricted cash 12,414
Investment at fair value:

Held by Navajo County Treasurer $ 16,326,869

Investments with State Treasurer’s pool 3,730,552

Restricted investment with State Treasurer 1,123,421

Total $ 2,445,668 $ 21,180,842

Deposits: At June 30, 2010, the carrying amount of the District’s cash in bank was $2,434,036
with $12,414 being restricted funds and the bank balance was $2,674,618. The District currently
does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.

Investments: At June 30, 2010, the District’s investments consisted of the following:

Weighted Average

Maturity Fair Value
County Treasurer’s investment pool 22.1 months $ 16,326,869
State Treasurer’s investment pool 5 0.7 months 4,853,973
Total $ 21,180,842

The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s pools. The fair value
of a participant’s position in the pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares and
the participant’s shares are not identified with specific investments. No comparable oversight is
provided for the County Treasurer’s investment pool, and that pool’s structure does not provide
for shares.
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(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 2 — Deposits and Investments - Continued

Interest Rate Risk: The District currently does not have a formal investment policy that limits
investment maturjties as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from

increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk: The District has no investment policy that would further limit its investment
choices. As of June 30, 2010, the District’s investment in the County Treasurers’ investment
pools did not receive a credit quality rating from a national rating agency. The State pool that the
District invests with has a Standard and Poor’s Rating Service rate of AAAf/S1+.

Custodial Credif Risk: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the
counterparty’s failure, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District currently does not

have an investment policy for custodial credit risk.

Note 3 — Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010, was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1,2009 Increases Decreases June 30, 2010
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $§ 709,291 $ - $ - § 709,291
Coustruction in progress 62,715 - 62,715 -
Total capital assets nor being depreciated 772,006 - 62,715 709,291
Capital asscts being depreciated:
Buildings 32,224,278 24,797 - 32,249,075
Equipment 4,929,432 263,451 48,937 5,143,946
Impravements other than buildings 6,978,542 265,870 94,559 7,149,853
Library books 624,638 16,315 32,529 608,424
Total capital assets being depreciated 44,756,890 570,433 176,025 45,151,298
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 6,790,294 780,131 - 7,570,425
Equipment 3,430,888 334,889 39,589 3,726,188
Improvements other than buildings 1,723,332 266,658 94,559 1,895,431
Library books 332,323 53,873 32,529 353,667
Total accumulated depreciation 12,276,837 1,435,551 166,677 13,545,711
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 32,480,053 (865,118) 9,348 31,605,587
Capital assets, net $ 33,252,059 $ (865,118) $ 72,063 $§ 32,314,878
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(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 4 - Long-Term Liabilities

Compensaled Absences Payable: The following schedule details the District’s long-term
liability and obligation activity for the year ended June 30, 2010:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30, Due within
2009 Addijtions Reductions 2010 one year
Compensated absences payable $ 338,933 $ 319,479 § 347252 $ 311,160 $ 233,370

Note 5 — Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; natural disasters; errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. The
District participates with other Arizona community college districts and school districts in the
Arizona School Risk Retention Trust, Inc., a public entity risk pool. The Trust insures the
District against liabilities arising from general liability, professional liability, property,
automobile, boiler and machinery, and commercial crime risks. The Trust’s operating agreement
includes a provision for the member to be charged an additional assessment in the event that total
claims paid by the Trust exceed the members’ contributions and reserves in any one year. The
District will be charged for any such assessment in the following year. The District has never
been charged such an assessment.

The District also carries commercial insurance for other risks of loss, including workers’
compensation, accidental death and dismemberment for students and employees, employee
travel, and extended reporting for errors and omissions. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past 3 fiscal years, except in the
year ended June 30, 2010, when the District reached its life time no fault limit on mold coverage
for one campus and paid additional expenses of $§10,175. The no fault mold coverage is limited
to $25,000 per campus and covers direct physical loss or damage caused by fungus, wet or dry
rot, or bacteria, including the cost of removal and the cost for clearance testing. The limitation is
for mold damage not linked to a specific occurrence. Property damage insurance continues to be
available for occurrences reported within 30 days of the cvent. The District does not anticipate
any further expenses associated with exhausting its no fault mold coverage.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 5 — Risk Management - Continued

The District was unable to obtain health coverage at a cost it considers to be economically
justifiable; therefore, the Disirict joined the Navajo County Schools Employee Benefit Trust
(Trust). The District together with other school districts in the state use the Trust to manage risks
of loss related to employee health and accident claims. The Trust is a public entity risk pool
operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its member school districts.
The Trust is funded by irrevocable contributions from the District for employee coverage and
from employees for dependent coverage. The Trusi, which is managed by a separate board of
directors, allows the fund to be self-funded, insured, or both. Additionally, if the Trust becomes
insolvent, the District would be assessed, on a pro-rata basis, an additional assessment not to
exceed the amount of the annual contribution. Should the District withdraw from the Trust, it
would then be responsible for its proportional share of claims and would forfeit all rights to the
return of any surplus, unearned contributions, or other legally permitted distributions from the
Trust. Whether the District withdraws or the Trust becomes insolvent, the District remains liable
for assessments for liabilities of the Trust incurred during the District’s period of membership in
the Trust. The Trust has not assessed the District any additional assessments above its annual
contribution in any of the past threc fiscal years.

Note 6 — Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan descriptions — The District contributes to a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan; a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health care plan; and a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit long-tern disability plan, all of which are
administered by the Arizona State Retirement System. The Arizona State Retirement System
(through its Retirement Fund) provides retirement (i.e., pension), death, and survivor benefits;
the Health Benefit Supplement Fund provides health insurance premium benefits (i.e., a monthly
subsidy); and the Long-Term Disability Fund provides long-term disability benefits. Benefits
are established by state statute. The System is governed by the Arizona State Retirement System
Board according to the provisions of AR.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 2.

The System issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The most recent report may be obtained by writing the
Arizona State Retirement System, 3300 North Central Avenue, P.O. Box 33910, Phoenix,
Arizona 85067-3910 or by calling (602) 240-2000 or (800) 621-3778.

23



Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 6 — Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits - Continued

Funding policy — The Arizona State Legislature establishes and may amend active plan
members’ and the District’s contribution rates. For the year ended June 30, 2010, active plan
members were required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 9.40 percent
(9.00 percent for retirement and 0.4 percent for long-term disability) of the members® annual
covered payroll and the District was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially
determined rate of 9.40 percent (8.34 percent for retirement, .66 percent for health insurance
premium, and .4 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered payroll.

The District’s contributions for the current and two preceding years, all of which were equal to
the required contributions, were as follows:

Retirement Health Benefit Long-Term
Fund Supplement Fund Disability Fund
Years ended June 30, '
2010 b 859,122  § 67,989 $ 41,171
2009 929,372 111,664 58,158
2008 880,719 114,876 54,703

Note 7 — Operating Expenses

The District’s operating expenses are presented by functional classification in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets — Primary Govemment. The operating
expenses can also be classified into the following:

Personal services $ 15,122,656
Contract services 1,729,224
Communications and utilities 1,399,939
Depregiation 1,435,550
Supplies and other services 5,399,355
Scholarships 609,337
Other 187,960

Total $ 25,884,021
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Navajo County Commuuity College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 8 — Discretely Presented Component Unit Disclosures

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Northland Pioneer College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) have been
prepared on the accrual basis. The significant accounting policies followed are described below to
enhance the usefulness of the financial statements (o the reader.

Nature of Foundation

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation operating in accordance with Section 501(c) (3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Foundation is located in Snowflake, Arizona, and provides
supplemental philanthropic support for students, and programs and services that advance the mission
of Northland Pioneer College (NPC). The Foundation receives cash contributions, gifts, and
membership dues, administers and invests securities and property, conducts special event fundraisers,
and disburses payments to NPC for educational purposes.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Membership dues and other revenues received for support of current operations are recorded as
revenues. Membership dues and other revenues received for support of future operations are
deferred and recognized over the periods to which the dues and revenues relate.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Foundation is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
permanently restricted net assets. In addition, the Foundation is required to present a statement of

cash flows.
Income taxes

The Foundation is a public foundation and is exempt from federal and state income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 43-1201 of the Arizona Revised
Statutes. Therefore, the accompanying financial statements contain no provision or liability for
income taxes, In addition, the Foundation qualifies for the charitable deduction under Internal

Revenue Section 170(b)(1)(A).
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 8 — Discretely Presented Component Unit Disclosures - Continued

Contributions

The Foundation records contributions received as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently
restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

Endowment Funds

The Foundation is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (UPMIFA), which requires enhanced disclosures for all its endowment funds. UPMIFA
provides the Foundation with guidance on accounting for the net asset classification of such
endowment funds.

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt
securities are reported at their fair values in the Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the change in net assets.

B. Cash

The total cash held by the Foundation at June 30, 2010, is as follows:

Checking $ 5,001

Money market 73,269

Savings 29,912
_$ 108,182

C. Investments

Investments consist of certificates of deposits held in financial institutions by the Foundation and real
estate comprising several lots of land. As of June 30, 2010, the certificates of deposit totaled
$42.350. Real estate totaled $18,000 as of June 30, 2010. These investments arc stated at market
value and adjustments have been made to accrue earned interest income on the certificates of deposit.
The certificates of deposits earned interest at rates varying from 0.59% to 1.39% for the year ended
June 30, 2010.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

Note 8 — Discretely Presented Component Unit Disclosures - Continued

D. Endowment Funds

The Foundation’s endowment consists of two funds established for the Charles E. Lisitsky
Scholarship and the Martia A. Smith Memorial Art Scholarship. As required by generally accepted
accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the
Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Board of Directors of the Foundation has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring the preservation of
the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies
as permanently restricted net assets the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment
and the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment.

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are
appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following
factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:
(1) the duration and preservation of the various funds, (2) the purposes of the donor-restricted
endowment funds, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible effect of inflation and deflation,
(5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments, (6) other resources of
the Foundation, and (7) the Foundation’s investment policies.

As of June 30, 2010 the endowment funds consisted of temporarily restricted net assets of $12,240
and permanently restricted net assets of $53,669 for a total of $65,909.

E. Restated Financial Statements

During the year ended June 30, 2010, management discovered that an endowed scholarship
(permanently restricted) received during the year ended June 30, 2009 in the amount of $20,311 had
been classified as a restricted use scholarship (temporarily restricted) in error. Also, in accordance
with the endowment agreement, 20% of the related interest income eamed on this fund must be
added back to the permanently restricted principal. This portion of interest income for the year ended
June 30, 2009 was $88 and was also classified as temporarily restricted. The result of these errors
was an overstatement of previously reported temporarily restricted net assets and an understatement
of previously reported permanently restricted net assets of $20,399 as of June 30, 2009. The
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2009 have been restated to correct these errors.
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Navajo County Community College District

(Northland Pioneer College)

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2010

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Pass-Through
Grantor/F'rogram Title Number Grantor's Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Labor
Passed through White Mountain Apache Tribe
WIA Adult Program 17.258 B51605008155 3 31,945
Pagsed through Arizona Department of Commerce
WIA Pilots, Demoastrations, and Research Projects 17.261 2IBMR8671 25,587
Total U.S. Department of Labor 57,532
U.S. Small Business Adminjistration
Passed through Maricopa County Community College District
Small Business Development Centers 59.037 9-6030012-0003-17 106,365
U.S. Depariment of Education
American Recovery and Reinvestruent Act
Passed through Governor's Office of Economic Recavery
ARRA-State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) -
Education State Grants, Recovery Act 84.394A None 418,920
Student Financial Assistanee Cluster
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 40,000
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 99,537
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 3,494,842
Academic Competitiveness Grants R4.375 20,224
Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 3,654,603
Passed through Coconino Community College
Higher Education - Institutional Aijd 84.031A None 56,666
Passed through the Arizona Department of Education:
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States 84.0024 09FAEADL-970595-03A 16,038
Adult Education - Basic Granls (o States 84.002A 09FAEABE-970555-04A 264,952
Total Adult Education 280,990
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States BA4.048 09TFCTDBG-570595-01A 133,427
Tech-Prep Education 84.243 0SFCTDTP-970595-02A 93,571
Total passed through the Arizona Department of Education 507,988
Passed through Arizona Commission for Postsecondary Education:
Leveraging Educational Assistance Partnership 84.069 209PE233 51,206
Total U.S. Department of Educalion 4,689,383
Teotal Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 4,853,280

See accompanying notes to schedule.
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Navajo County Community College District
(Northland Pioneer College)
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2010

Note 1 — Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of Navajo County Community College District and is presented on the accrual basis of
accounting. The information on this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the financial statements.

Note 2 — Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Numbers

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2010 Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance or from the federal or pass-through grantor.

Note 3 — Subrecipients

The District did not provide federal awards to subrecipients during the year ended June 30, 2010.
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3033 N. Central Avenue, Suite 300
‘N8 HEINFELD, MEECH & CO, P.C. Phoenix, Arizona £5012

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Tel (602) 277-9449
Fax (602)277-9297

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Auditor General of the State of Arizona

The Governing Board of
Navajo County Community College District

We have audited the financial statemcnis of the business-type activities and discretely presented
component unit of the Navajo County Community College District as of and for the year ended June
30, 2010, which collectively comprise Navajo County Community College District’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2010. Our report was modified to
include a reference to our reliance on other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with
United States of America generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the Northland Pioneer College
Foundation, the discretely presented component unit, as described in our report on the District’s
financial statements. The financial statements of the Northland Pioneer College Foundation were not
audited by the other auditors in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The Northland
Pioneer College Foundation did not provide the reported results of the other auditors’ testing of
internal control over its financial reporting. Consequently, this report does not include our
consideration of the other auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting that is reported
on separately by those other auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the basic financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencics, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis.
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Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the Arizona State
Legislature, the Auditor General of the State of Arizona, the Governing Board, management, others
within the District, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of
public record, and its distribution is not limited.

Heiufetd, mosch & o, -0

HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

December 5, 2010
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3033 N. Ceniral Avenue, Suite 300
HEINFELD, MEECH & CO., P.C. Phoenix, Arizona 85012

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Tel (602) 277-9449
Fax (602) 277-9297

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’> REPORT
ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERTAL EFFECT ON
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Auditor General of the State of Arizona

The Governing Board of
Navajo County Community College District

Compliance :
We have audited Navajo County Community College District’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular
A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010. The District’s major federal programs are
identified in the Summary of Auditors’ Results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings
and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the District’s management.
Our responstbility is to express an opinion on the District’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing
standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s
compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Navajo County Community College District complied, in all material respects, with
the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of
its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The District’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance and to test and report on intemnal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does.not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weakuesses. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of members of the Arizona State
Legislature, the Auditor General of the State of Arizona, the Governing Board, management, others
within the District, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of
public record, and its distribution is not limited.

selngged, magen 4-Co, £ C.
HEINFELD, MEECH & CO.,P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

December 5, 2010
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NAVAJO COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
o Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
s Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
o Matcrial weakness(es) identified? yves X no
o Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X nonereported
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? yes X mno
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
84.007 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants
84.033 Federal Work-Study Program
84.063 Federal Pell Grant Program
84.375 Academijc Competitiveness Grants
84.394A ARRA-State Fiscal Stabilization Fund (SFSF) — Education State Grants,
Recovery Act
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type
B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
Other Matters
Auditee’s Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133 (section .315[b])? yes X no
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NAVAJO COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2010

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None reported.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None reported.
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NAVAJO COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Status of Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

The District had no findings or questioned costs related to federal awards noted in prior audits
that still needed to be corrected.
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Agenda Item #7.C.
February 15, 2011

Request to Approve Membership in the
Apache/Navajo Counties Regional Sustainability
Consortium

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that Northland Pioneer College become part of the Apache/Navajo
Counties Regional Sustainability Consortium. It further recommends that the Apache
County Coordinator become a member of the Executive Board of the Economic
Development for Apache County (EDAC).

Summary:
The Apache/Navajo Counties Regiona Sustainability Consortium has received HUD

grant monies to prepare an integrated plan for regiona development over a 20-year time
frame. Theregiona plan will include community priorities such as land use planning,
public transportation, air quality, water infrastructure, water quality, housing, economic
development, open space, and recreation. Apache County will hold all fiscal and
administrative responsibility for regular interaction with HUD. The appointment of the
Apache County Coordinator to EDAC will facilitate communication between Apache
County, grant management and Northland Pioneer College.




Agenda Item #7.D.
February 15, 2011

Request to Approve Title 1l Evaluation
Contract

Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of afive-year contract with GeoDriven, LLC in the amount
of $125,000 for external evaluation services of the EAGLE project under the Title 111
grant that Northland Pioneer College was awarded in the fall of 2010.

Summary:

The proposed contract provides external evaluation services, including formative and
summative evaluation, as outlined in the evaluation plan section of the Equitable Access
to Gainful Learning Experiences (EAGLE) grant proposal (P031X100002, page 43-45)
and according to the proposal’ s implementation schedul e (page 30- 36).

All tasks, processes, and deliverables will be consulted with and reviewed by the Project
Director and/or other designated NPC personnel. GeoDriven, LLC will make any future
adjustments to the evaluation process as needed and as approved by the Project Director.

Services will be paid at arate of $25,000 per year for five years with payments submitted
biannually.




Eva Putzova
GeoDriven LLC
3473 W. Lois Ln
Flagstaff, AZ 86001

Eric Bishop February 9, 2011
Director of Information Services

Northland Pioneer College

2251 N. Navajo Boulevard

Holbrook, AZ 86025

Dear Eric:

Per our phone conversation, here is a consulting services agreement to provide external
evaluation for the EAGLE project under the Title Il grant Northland Pioneer College was
awarded in fall 2010.

CONSULTING AGREEMENT

GeoDriven, LLC and its principal consultant Eva Putzova will provide NPC external evaluation
services, including formative and summative evaluation, as outlined in the evaluation plan
section of the Equitable Access to Gainful Learning Experiences (EAGLE) grant proposal
(P031X100002, page 43-45) and according to the proposal’s implementation schedule (page 30-
36).

All tasks, processes, and deliverables will be consulted with and reviewed by the Project

Director and/or other designated NPC personnel. GeoDriven, LLC will make any future
adjustments to the evaluation process as needed and as approved by the Project Director.

DELIVERABLES

Data collection and appropriate analysis will be conducted to comply with the EAGLE project’s
evaluation requirements. All associated reports will be delivered to NPC according to the
schedule outlined in the Implementation Strategy Charts section of the proposal.

Eva.Putzova@gmail.com (928) 225-0170




TIMELINE

This agreement applies to all external evaluation services provided for the EAGLE project
between January 23, 2011 and December 31, 2015.

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Northland Pioneer College agrees to pay $25,000 annually for a total of $125,000 for five
years of services under this agreement. The professional fees will be payable to GeoDriven
twice a year according to the following schedule:

Amount Cumulative
Invoice | Date Invoiced Amount
1| February 1, 2011 $12,500 $12,500
2 | October 1, 2011 $12,500 $25,000
3 | February 1, 2012 $12,500 $37,500
4 | October 1, 2012 $12,500 $50,000
5 | February 1, 2013 $12,500 $62,500
6 | October 1, 2013 $12,500 $75,000
7 | February 1, 2014 $12,500 $87,500
8 | October 1, 2014 $12,500 $100,000
9 | February 1, 2015 $12,500 $112,500
10 | October 1, 2015 $12,500 $125,000

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

e At all times GeoDriven, LLC will comply with the terms of the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act of 1974 in all respects

e This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. The parties shall
have all remedies available by law or in equity.

e The parties may change this agreement only through a written amendment.

e To the fullest extent permitted by law, GeoDriven, LLC shall defend, indemnify, and hold
harmless NPC, its agents, officers, officials, employees, and volunteers from and against
all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees and
court costs) arising from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or service of
GeoDriven, LLC, its agents, employees, or any subcontractors in the performance of this
agreement.

e Funding for the EAGLE project will come from a grant. If funding becomes unavailable,
or if NPC decides to discontinue the EAGLE project for any other reason, NPC may
terminate this agreement with sixty days' prior written notice. If NPC terminates this
agreement, GeoDriven, LLC shall be entitled to payment for all work performed prior to
the effective date of the termination.

Eva.Putzova@gmail.com (928) 225-0170




e Asrequired by A.R.S. §§ 35-391.06 and 35-393.06, GeoDriven, LLC, certifies that it does
not have a scrutinized business operation in either Sudan or Iran.

e Asrequired by A.R.S. § 41-4401, GeoDriven, LLC, certifies that it and all of its
subcontractors, if any, are in compliance with federal immigration laws and regulations
that relate to their employees and with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). A breach of this warranty
shall be deemed a material breach of this agreement and shall be subject to penalties
up to and including termination of this agreement. NPC shall have the right to inspect
the papers of GeoDriven, LLC, and of any subcontractors to ensure that GeoDriven, LLC,
and any subcontractors are complying with this warranty.

e Asrequired by A.R.S. § 38-511, NPC gives notice as follows: NPC may, within three years
after its execution, cancel this contract, without penalty or further obligation, if any
person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the
contract on behalf of NPC is, at any time while the contract or any extension of the
contract is in effect, an employee or agent of any other party to the contract in any
capacity or a consultant to any other party of the contract with respect to the subject
matter of the contract.

CLOSING

| would be happy to rework this agreement to comply with any standard agreement NPC may
want to use. If this is sufficient to initiate the contract, please sign and return to me either
electronically or by mail.

Sincerely,

Eva Putzova

Accepting the terms of the agreement for Northland Pioneer College:

Dr. Jeanne Swarthout, Date
President of Northland Pioneer College

Eva.Putzova@gmail.com (928) 225-0170




Agenda Item #7.E.
February 15, 2011

Reguest to Approve 2011-2012 Academic Calendar

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the 2011-2012 academic calendar. The calendar includes
afall semester start date of August 22 and a spring commencement date of May 19.




FALL 2011

August 18

August 19

August 19

August 22

August 29

July 29

August 1 & 2

August 5
September 5

September 16

October 5

October 7

November 11

November 24-26

November 28

December 10

December 14

Dec. 11-

Jan. 6, 2010

ACADEMIC CALENDAR 2011-2012

Class Cancellation Day - Courses without sufficient enrollment will be dropped

9 month faculty return to work

College Professional Development Day/Convocation (College Closed - No

Classes).

Regular Fall 2011 Term Classes Begin

Application of late registration fee begins

Students must get instructor permission to register for classes from this date forward.

Last day to make course schedule changes for financial aid purposes

No registration. Financial aid finalizing awards.

Refunds available to students
Labor Day (College Closed- No Classes)

Last Day for Students to Withdraw from Classes without a "W" on transcript and

Instructor Signature. Dean and instructor approval required for course add.

FTSE Day

Last Day to File for December Graduation

Veterans Day (College Closed - No Classes)

Thanksgiving Recess (College Closed - No Classes)

Spring 2012 Registration begins

Last Day of Fall 2011 Semester

Fall Semester Grades Due

Winter Break — No Regular Session Classes. (NPC offices will be CLOSED
December 26-30.)

Spring Semester 2012



November 28,
2011

December 16

December 19 & 20

December 23

January 17

January 23

January 30

February 10

February 20

March 1

March 5

March 26-30

April 11

April 30

May 19

May 19

May 24

Spring 2012 Registration begins

Last day to make course schedule changes for financial aid purposes

No registration. Financial aid finalizing awards.

Refunds available to students

Regular Spring 2012 Term Classes Begin

Application of late registration fee begins

Students must get instructor permission to register for classes from this date forward.

Dean and instructor approval required for course add.

Last Day for Students to Withdraw from Classes without a "W" on transcript and

Instructor Signature.

Presidents Day (College Closed - No Classes)

FTSE Day

Last Day to file Application for Graduation

Spring Break (College OPEN - No Classes)

SUMMER 2012 Registration begins

FALL 2012 Registration begins - use online class schedule search engine to find

course offerings

Commencement Ceremony

Last Day of Spring 2012 Semester

Spring Semester Grades Due

Summer Session 2012

April 11

Summer 2012 Registration begins



May 8 No Registration. Financial Aid finalizing awards

May 11 Business Office mails Financial Aid checks

May 28 Memorial Day (College Closed - No Classes)

May 29 Summer 2012 Session begins

July 4 Independence Day Holiday (College Closed - No Classes)

Printed Fall 2012 Class Schedule available (before this date use online class

July 22 ) ) )
schedule search engine to find course offerings)

August 3 Last Day of the Summer 2012 Semester

August 8 Summer Final Grades Due



Agenda Item #8.A.
February 15, 2011

Curriculum: Reguest to Approve Program Deletions
and M odifications

Recommendation:
The College recommends, by unanimous approval of the Instructional Council, deletion
of the following programs:

Industrial Technology
Electronics
Library Media Technician

Industry-relevant portions of Industrial Technology will be incorporated in the revisions
to the Industrial Maintenance and Operations program. Electronics and Library Media
Technician have little enrollment, no full time faculty to manage programs, and little to
no local employment prospects.

The College aso recommends, by unanimous approval of the Instructional Council, the
revision of the following programs:

Associate of Science transfer degree
Industrial Maintenance and Operations

The Associate of Science modification will remove Physics from the Physical and
Biological Science core component but retain Physics as an option in the Science/Math
Option category. Since the College has neither the regular enrollment nor availability of
qualified Physics faculty to regularly offer the course sequence, we should not present
PHY 113/114 as a sequence option.

Industrial Maintenance and Operations is undergoing a complete revision, based on
national industry standards and input from the local program advisory board, to better
meet the needs of students and local industry.




a.c.r.e.s. Page 1 of 1

Deletion of an Existing Program Form
Northland Pioneer College
Industrial Technology Degree Program has core required courses and certificates of proficiency that are not

offered.
Originator: Kenny Keith Status: In Process Department: IMO Industrial
Maintenance and Operations
Date Created: 12/07/2010 Submitted: 12/07/2010 Completed: To

ACETS:

Name of the
Program:

Effective Term: Fall
Effective Year: 2011

Type of
Program:

Current Status Degree Program has core required courses and certificates of proficiency
of the Program: that are not offered.

Total number of
credit hours in
the program
(current):

Program OBJECTIVE: The Industrial Technology Program prepares
Description students to be technicians and operators capable of

(current): understanding the entire system with which they work. Core
courses cover the complex related mechanical, pneumatic,
hydraulic, electrical, thermal and sensory/control systems used
in modern industry.
Local career opportunities exist in all Northland district
communities and throughout the state and nation. Technical
employers include power plants, paper mills, sawmills, various
utilities and communications companies and small to medium
manufacturing companies.

Effect on Other No
Programs:

IF yes, list
programs
affected:

Rationale for the IMO Advisory recommended having one degree program. The current ITP
Modification: program has too much emphasis on ELC courses and courses no longer
offered.

Implications: N/A
Proposer: Kenny Keith

Industrial Technology

AAS CAS CoP

64

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011



Page 1 of 1

Department: Electronics

Completed:

a.c.r.e.s.
Deletion of an Existing Program Form
Northland Pioneer College
Electronics Technology Inactive
Originator: Kenny Keith Status: In Process
Technology
Date Created: 02/23/2010 Submitted: 12/03/2010
ACETS:
Name of the :
Program: Electronics Technology

Effective Term: Fall
Effective Year: 2011

Type of
Program:

Current Status
of the Program:

Total number of
credit hours in
the program
(current):

Program
Description
(current):

Effect on Other
Programs: ves

IF yes, list
programs Industrial Technology
affected:

Rationale for the
Modification:

Implications: No implications noted.
Proposer: Kenny Keith

AAS CAS CoP

Inactive

The Program has been inactive for several years

To

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011



a.c.r.e.s. Page 1 of 2

Deletion of an Existing Program Form
Northland Pioneer College
Library Media Technology ACTIVE

Originator: Eric Henderson Status: Approved Department: Library Media
Technology
Date Created: 01/21/2011 Submitted: 01/22/2011 Completed: 02/10/2011
To ACETS:
Name of the

Program: Library Media Technology

Effective Term: Fall
Effective Year: 2011

Type of
Program:

Current Status
of the Program:

Total number of
credit hours in
the program
(current):

Program The Library Media Technology program prepares
Description students to be library technicians or library technical assistants.

(current): Library technicians may work under the direction of a
librarian, teacher or other professional. Work may be found in
public, community, school, special, and college and university
libraries. Career or volunteer opportunities exist in rural,
suburban and metropolitan areas.
Library technicians assist with the acquisition, processing
and organization of library materials. They help library users
find materials and information. Library technicians may also
operate and maintain audio/visual equipment, enter and
retrieve information from computer databases or the Internet,
and instruct customers in the use of library resources.
Library Media Technology courses are available online. Arizona
teachers interested in a Library Media Specialist Endorsement
may use Library Media Technology courses to prepare for the
Library Media Specialist portion of the Arizona Educator
Proficiency Assessment.

AAS CAS

ACTIVE

Effect on Other
Programs:

IF yes, list
programs
affected:

Rationale for the three major factors support the recommendation to delete the LMT
Modification: program:

1. Consistent with the Bureau of Labor Statistics comment that "smaller

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011



a.C.r.e.s.

Implications:

Proposer:

Page 2 of 2

libraries may hire individuals with only a high school
diploma"(http://www.bls.gov/oco/ocos316.htm#outlook), most librarians in
the NPC service area express little interest in favoring LMT program
graduates for employment.

2. Low levels of student interest and the likely lack of change in that level
of interest.

3. There are a number of alternative sources for skills training offered
through (or sponsored by) a variety of other institutions and agencies such
as the Arizona State Library and the American Library Association.

While the degree and certificate "programs" should be eliminated, there is
still reason to retain individual courses for the time being. Several of these
courses are highly regarded as professional development opportunities
and other, equally excellent courses, may attract students involved in
degree or certificate programs at other institutions (especially given the
online delivery format).

SEE FULL ABSTRACT (attached)

Mesa Community College has a similar program. Only one course is
transferable to all three universities, two others are transferable to NAU
and UA. Courses will be maintained and re-evaluated over the next several
years. Retaining courses will allow students to complete the degree or
certificate (under the cureent catalog) over the next few years.

Eric Henderson

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011
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Modification to an Existing Program Form
Northland Pioneer College
Associate of Science Delete PHY113 & PHY 114 as a sequence satisfying the core requirements of the AS and
the AGEC-S. Retain the courses in the "options" category. PHY113 and PHY114 are included (since 2007) in the
core of the AS and in the AGEC-S Associ

Originator: Eric Henderson Status: Approved Department: Physics
Date Created: 01/11/2011 Submitted: 01/11/2011 Completed: 02/10/2011
To ACETS:
Name of the , .
Program: Associate of Science

Effective Term: Fall
Effective Year: 2011

Type of
Program:

Proposed Delete PHY113 & PHY 114 as a sequence satisfying the core
Modification: requirements of the AS and the AGEC-S. Retain the courses in the
"options" category.

Current Status PHY113 and PHY114 are included (since 2007) in the core of the AS and
of the Program: in the AGEC-S

Total number of
credit hours in
the program
(current):

Total Number of
Credit hours in
the program
(proposed):

Program
description
program
(proposed):

Program
Description see attachment
(current):

Effect on Other
Programs:

IF yes, list
programs
affected:
Rationale for the , , , ,
Modification: NPC's PHY113 & PHY 114 is not designed for science majors and does
not conform to what other Arizona community colleges use for the AGEC-
S. Northland Pioneer College does not have a calculus based majors-level
physics course. Thus, it should be eliminated from the core courses listed
for satisfying the sequence requirement. As with Coconino College we can,
for the time, leave this "college physics" class in the options category. (This

AS

64

no change

No

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011



a.c.r.e.s. Page 2 of 2

will allow students to use the courses, if already taken to complete the AS
under next year's catalog).

Implications: This conforms NPC's requirements with those of other colleges. This

should reduce student confusion concerning what is required of science
majors.

Business Plan:
Proposer: Eric Henderson

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011



Associate of Science —
General Education

Requirements
* 64 Credits

Objective : The General Education component of the
Northland Pioneer College Associate of Science Degree
fulfills the Arizona General Education Curriculum (AGEC-S).
The AGEC-S, when completed, will transfer to the three public
Arizona state universities as a block meeting all lower division
general education requirements.

Transfer : All coursesincluded in these degrees must
transfer to the three Arizona public universities as direct
equivalents, departmental elective credits, or general elective
credits. Students planning to transfer to afour-year college or
university are advised to work with NPC academic advisers
to facilitate a smooth and efficient transfer process. Accessto
information about degrees and pathways, common courses,
Course Equivalency Guides, transfer guides and Arizona
college and university catalogs is available through an
academic adviser or directly on the Internet at
www.AZTransfer.com.

Students transferring to NPC from other institutions must
complete a minimum of 15 credits of AGEC courses at NPC,
which will include 13 or more credits from the arts and
humanities, physical and biologica sciences and the social and
behavioral sciencesin order to receive certification of AGEC
completion from NPC. If the AGEC-S block is not completed,
courses will be articulated at the universities on a course-by
course basis and may not meet the specific general education
requirements at the university.

Requirements : The Associate of Science degree requires
aminimum of 64 hours of course credits to complete, with
agrade of ‘C’ or better in all courses and a cumulative grade
point average of 2.0 on a4.0 scale.

Additionally, some of these courses have placement or course
prerequisites that must be fulfilled. Completion of these
prerequisites may result in coursework beyond 64 credits.
For coursesthat do have prerequisites or require satisfactory
placement, agrade of ‘C’ or better isrequired in the
prerequisite courses. [For prerequisite purposes only, a

‘P’ (passing) gradeisthe equivalent of a‘C’ grade.] More
information about course prerequisites may be found in

Part IV, Course Descriptions, which listsindividual courses, or
by consulting an academic adviser.

Graduates must complete at least 36 credits of general
education options as listed for the specific degree. These
must include six creditsin English composition, four credits
in mathematics, six credits from the arts and humanities,

14 credits from the physical and biological sciences, and six
credits from the social and behavioral sciences. An additional
28 credits should be chosen carefully based on lower division
and common course requirements for majors at the college or
university to which the student plansto transfer.

Emphasis: In most NPC general education courses, special
emphasisis placed upon devel oping written communication
skills with intensive writing requirements embedded within
each. Race and ethnic issue awarenessis also embedded
throughout the general education requirements of the arts and
humanities, social and behavioral sciences, and physical and
biological sciences. Specific courses, as noted in the degrees,
meet the requirement for contemporary global, international or
historical awareness.



General Education Requirements » 36 cr.
Completion of the 36 general education course credits
fulfills all requirements for the Arizona General Education
Curriculum (AGEC) requirements.

English 6 cr.
ENL 101 College Composition | 3 cr.
ENL 102 College Composition |1 3 cr.

Mathematicse 4 cr.
MAT 221 Calculus | (or amathematics course for which
MAT 221 isaprerequisite) 4 cr.

Artsand Humanitiess 6 cr.

Courses must be selected from the following list and from at
least two disciplines:

ART 101 Understanding Art 3 cr.

ART 115 Art History | 3 cr.

ART 116 Art History Il 3 cr.

ENL 220 World Literature| 3 cr.

ENL 221 World Literature |l 3 cr.

ENL 224 English Literature | 3 cr.

ENL 225 English Literature 1l 3 cr.

HUM 150 Humanities in the Western World | 3 cr.
HUM 151 Humanities in the Western World 11 3 cr.
MUS 150 Music Appreciation 3 cr.

PHL 101 Introduction to Philosophy 3 cr.

PHL 105 Introduction to Ethics 3 cr.

SPT 130 Introduction to Theatre 3 cr.

SPT 150 Introduction to Film 3 cr.

SPT 155 History of Television 3 cr.

Physical and Biological Sciencese 8 cr.
Courses must be selected from the following list:
BI1O 181 General Biology | 4 cr.,

AND

BI1O 182 General Biology Il 4 cr.;

or

CHM 151 Genera Chemistry | 4 cr.,
AND

CHM 152 General Chemistry Il 4 cr.;
or

AND

PHY-114 General-Physics H-4-¢r.

Social and Behavioral Sciencese 6 cr.

Courses must be selected from the list below and from at

least two disciplines. At least one asterisk (*) course must be
chosen in order to meet requirements for contemporary global,
international or historical awareness.

*ANT 102 Cultural Anthropology 3 cr.

BUS 140 Principles of Economics - Macro 3 cr.

BUS 141 Principles of Economics - Micro 3 cr.

*GEO 110 World Regional Geography 3 cr.

*HIS 105 U.S. History to 1877 3 cr.

*HIS 106 U.S. History Since 1877 3 cr.

*HIS 155 Western Civilization to 1700 3 cr.
*HIS 156 Western Civilization Since 1700 3 cr.
POS 110 American Government 3 cr.

PSY 101 Introduction to Psychology 3 cr.

PSY 200 Psychology of Adjustment 3 cr.

PSY 240 Developmental Psychology 3 cr.

SOC 120 General Sociology 3 cr.

SOC 121 Social Problemsin America3 cr.
SOC 130 Racial, Ethnic & Gender Relations in Modern Society
3cr.

SOC 225 Sociology of the Family 3 cr.

Science/M athematics Option « 6 cr.

Courses must be selected from the following list:
BI1O 105 Environmental Biology 4 cr.

B10O 160 Introduction to Human Anatomy and Physiology | 4
cr.

**B|O 181 Genera Biology | 4 cr.

**B|O 182 General Biology Il 4 cr.

B10 201 Human Anatomy and Physiology | 4 cr.
B10O 202 Human Anatomy and Physiology 11 4 cr.
BI10O 205 Microbiology 4 cr.

**CHM 151 General Chemistry | 4 cr.

**CHM 152 General Chemistry Il 4 cr.

GEO 111 Physical Geography 4 cr.

GLG 101 Introduction to Geology | - Physical 4 cr.
GLG 102 Introduction to Geology Il - Historical 4 cr.
MAT 231 Calculusll 4 cr.

MAT 241 Calculuslll 4 cr.

MAT 261 Introduction to Differential Equations 4 cr.
**pPHY 113 Genera Physics| 4 cr.

**PHY 114 General Physicsll 4 cr.

** |f not taken to satisfy Physical and Biological
Sciences requirements.

Electivese 28 cr.

Courses from this area should be selected by the student from:
* Courses identified as Common Courses in university
transfer guidesin the major of choice

« 0 to 16 credits of language, if required in the major of
choice at the university the student plansto attend

* Prerequisites

* Electives

The electives component must consist of credits that transfer
to al three public Arizona universities as defined in the Course
Equivalency Guide of the year the student completesthe
cour se. Access to information about degrees and pathways,
common courses, Course Equivalency Guides, transfer guides
and Arizona college and university catalogs is available
through an academic adviser or directly on the Internet at
www.AZTransfer.com.



a.c.r.e.s. Page 1 of 2

Modification to an Existing Program Form
Northland Pioneer College
Industrial Maintenance and Operations Change all the prefixes to IMO. Add the following CoP's Industrial Plant
Operations, Mechanical Maintenance, Wastewater Collectionand Treatment, Water Supply Treatment,Electrical,
and Instrumentation. Change in the
Originator: Kenny Keith Status: Approved Department: IMO Industrial
Maintenance and Operations

Date Created: 01/18/2011 Submitted: 01/18/2011 Completed: 02/10/2011
To ACETS:

Name of the
Program:

Effective Term: Fall
Effective Year: 2011

Type of
Program:

Proposed Change all the prefixes to IMO. Add the following CoP's Industrial Plant
Modification: Operations, Mechanical Maintenance, Wastewater Collectionand
Treatment, Water Supply Treatment,Electrical, and Instrumentation.
Change in the General Education Requirements. Delete SPT and add ENL
109, Add Arts and Humanities and Physical and Biological Science.

Industrial Maintenance and Operations

AAS CAS CoP

Current Status
of the Program:

Total number of
credit hours in
the program
(current):

Total Number of
Credit hours in
the program
(proposed):

Program The Industrial Maintenance & Operations
description Program prepares students to be technicians and operators
program capable of understanding the entire system with which they
(proposed): work. Core courses cover the complex related mechanical,
pneumatic, hydraulic, electrical, thermal and sensory control
systems used in modern industry.

Program The Industrial Maintenance & Operations
Description Program prepares students to be technicians and operators
(current): capable of understanding the entire system with which they
work. Core courses cover the complex related mechanical,
pneumatic, hydraulic, electrical, thermal and sensory control
systems used in modern industry.

Effect on Other
- Yes
Programs:

IF yes, list

Active Program with AAS and CAS

64

64

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011



a.c.r.e.s. Page 2 of 2

programs
affected:

Rationale for the To have one solid degree program that will allow students to pursue both
Modification: an IMO degree and certificates of proficiency.

Implications: N/A
Business Plan:
Proposer: Kenny Keith

IMO Program is taking the COP's from the ITP program

https://aztransmac?2.asu.edu/cgi-bin/WebODbjects/acres.woa/4/wo/gHruyUAPTU3EX2iLCG... 2/11/2011



Recommendations for IMO/IMO/ELC

e Delete the Electronics Technology Program from the catalog.
e Delete the following ELC courses from the catalog and course bank:
0 ELC-105,106,107, 110, 111, 140, 141, 210, 245, 246, 250, 251, 255, 256
o Delete the following IMO courses from the catalog and course bank:
0 [IMO0-105,106,150, 209,220,221,222,223,240,250, 251, 252,253.
e Delete the Industrial Technology Program (IMO) AAS/CAS/CP
e Change prefixes of all ITP courses to IMO

Proposed IMO Program (2011-2012) AAS/CAS/CP

Associates of Applied Science (AAS) 64 credits
General Education Requirements * 19 credits
Communications 6 credits

ENL 101 College Composition | 3 credits
ENL 102 College Composition Il 3 credits
OR
ENL 109 Technical Writing 3 credits
Mathematics * 3 credits
MAT 101 Basic Technical Mathematics 3 credits
Or
MAT 109 Algebra I: Introductory 3 credits

or any mathematics class for which MAT 109 is a prerequisite.
Computer Science * 3 credits

CIS 106 Computer Literacy 3 credits
Arts and Humanities* 3 credits

(Any one course from the AAS Discipline Studies list arts and humanities)
Physical and biological Science*4 credits

(Any one course from the AAS Discipline Studies list physical and biological sciences)

AREAS OF SPECIALIZATION
e Power Fundamentals
Core Requirements * 24 credits

IMO 210 Power Principles | 6 credits
IMO 211 Power Principles Il 6 credits
IMO 212 Power Principles llI 6 credits
IMO 213 Power Principles IV 6 credits

e Maintenance Fundamentals
Core Requirements * 24 credits

IMO 230 Mechanical Maintenance | 6 credits
IMO 231 Mechanical Maintenance Il 6 credits
IMO 232 Mechanical Maintenance 11 6 credits

IMO233 Mechanical Maintenance IV 6 credits



e Operations/Maintenance *28 credits

IMO 201 Introduction to Industrial Maintenance 4 credits
IMO 210 Power Principles | 6 credits
IMO 211 Power Principles Il 6 credits
IMO 230 Mechanical Maintenance | 6 credits
IMO 231 Mechanical Maintenance Il 6 credits

e Electrical *24 credits

IMO 151 Electrical Level One 6 credits
IMO 152 Electrical Level Two 6 credits
IMO 153 Electrical Level Three 6 credits
IMO 154 Electrical Level Four 6 credits

¢ Instrumentation *28 credits

IMO 155 Instrumentation Level One 7 credits
IMO 156 Instrumentation Level Two 7 credits
IMO 157 Instrumentation Level Three 7 credits
IMO 158 Instrumentation Level Four 7 credits

Required Electives * 15 credits
Complete a minimum of 15 credits from the List of Required Electives
Required Electives

AIS 114 Introduction to Modern Office 3 credits
AIS 231 Introduction to Microsoft Office 3 credits
BUS 103 Success on Your Job 2 credits
BUS 105 Techniques of Supervision 3 credits

IMO (any unduplicated 100 or higher level courses)

Unrestricted Electives *2 or 6 credits (depending on which area of specialization or Certificate of
Proficiency)

Any unduplicated 100 or higher level courses
Certificate of Applied Science (CAS)

To complete a Certificate of Applied Science degree in Power or Maintenance Fundamentals and
Electrical or Instrumentation or Operations/Maintenance, a student must complete the core
requirements in an area of specialization, ENL 101or ENL 109 and MAT 101 or MAT 109.

Certificates of Proficiency (CP)

¢ Industrial Plant Operations * 24 credits

IMO 210 Power Principles | 6 credits
IMO 211 Power Principles Il 6 credits
IMO 212 Power Principles Ill 6 credits

IMO 213 Power Principles IV 6 credits



Mechanical Maintenance * 24 credits
IMO 230 Mechanical Maintenance |
IMO 231 Mechanical Maintenance |l
IMO 232 Mechanical Maintenance lll
IMO 233 Mechanical Maintenance IV

Operations/Maintenance *28 credits

IMO 201 Introduction to Industrial Maintenance
IMO 210 Power Principles |

IMO 211 Power Principles Il

IMO 230 Mechanical Maintenance |

IMO 231 Mechanical Maintenance Il

Electrical *24 credits

IMO 151 Electrical Level One
IMO 152 Electrical Level Two
IMO 153 Electrical Level Three
IMO 154 Electrical Level Four

Instrumentation *28 credits

IMO 155 Instrumentation Level One
IMO 156 Instrumentation Level Two
IMO 157 Instrumentation Level Three
IMO 158 Instrumentation Level Four

Wastewater Collection and Treatment *18 credits
IMO 140 Wastewater Collection and Treatment |
IMO 141 Wastewater Collection and Treatment I
IMO 142 Wastewater Collection and Treatment IlI

Water Supply Treatment *18 credits
IMO 130 Water Supply and Treatment |
IMO 131 Water Supply and Treatment I
IMO 132 Water Supply and Treatment ll|

6 credits
6 credits
6 credits
6 credits

4 credits
6 credits
6 credits
6 credits
6 credits

6 credits
6 credits
6 credits
6 credits

7 credits
7 credits
7 credits
7 credits

6 credits
6 credits
6 credits

6 credits
6 credits
6 credits
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Agenda Item #8.C.
January 18, 2011

Human Resour ces Update
February 15, 2011

Controller — John Bremer. Bachelor of Sciencein Accounting from
Minnesota State University, Mancato.

Cashier-Bursar — Jessica Amos

Faculty in Biology — 12-1-2010/1% Review. 23 Applicants.

Faculty in Art — 12-1-2010/1% Review. 27 Applicants.

Faculty in English — Closed 12-10-2010. 67 Applicants.

Faculty in Early Child Development/Education — 12-15-10/1% Review.
13 Applicants.

Network and Systems Administrator — Closed 1-7-2011. 34 Applicants.
Human Resources Director — Open until filled. 19 applicants.

Network Support Technician — Closed 1-28-2011. 38 applicants.

Dean of Nursing and Allied Health — Closes 2-15-2011. 3 applicants.
Interim Dean of Nursing and Allied Health — Nancy Williams
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